
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

October 8, 2024
Mark W. McBrayer, Mayor
Christy Martinez-Garcia, Mayor Pro Tem, District 1
Gordon Harris, Councilman, District 2
David Glasheen, Councilman, District 3
Brayden Rose, Councilman, District 4
Dr. Jennifer Wilson, Councilwoman, District 5
Tim Collins, Councilman, District 6

    W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Matt Wade, City Attorney

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance,
please contact the City Secretary's Office at (806)775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48
hours in advance of the meeting. 

Executive Session Disclosure Statement: The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time during
the course of the meeting to discuss any item listed on this agenda as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code,
including but not necessarily limited to §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), §551.072 (Deliberations regarding Real
Property), §551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts and Donations), §551.074 (Personnel Matters), §551.076 (Deliberations
regarding Security Devices), §551.086 (Public Power Utilities: Competitive Matters), §551.087 (Deliberations regarding
Economic Development Negotiations). 

A quorum of the City Council will be physically present in City Council Chambers located in Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K,
Lubbock, Texas, as it is the intent of the City Council to have a quorum physically present at this location. One or more members
of the City Council, however, may participate in the meeting by video-conference call as permitted under Section 551.127 of the
Texas Government Code. 

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order. 

  
 

12:30 p.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers in Work Session regarding items
for presentation and discussion on such issues that may require in-depth consideration by the City
Council. No action will be taken by the City Council in Work Session.
 

           
1. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as

appropriate.
  

 

1. 1. Frenship Independent School District Update   

 

At the completion of the Work Session, City Council recesses into Executive Session.
 

2. Executive Session   

 

http://www.mylubbock.us


2. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071,
with legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
agreement and on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

  

 

2. 1. 1. Lake 7   

 

2. 1. 2. Vital Statistics   

 

2. 1. 3. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission Charge 453-2024-01616   

 

2. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section
551.072, to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.

  

 

2. 2. 1. Lake 7   

 

2. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to
the Electric Utility Board, Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation Board,
Lubbock Emergency Communications District Board of Managers, Planning & Zoning
Commission, and Zoning Board of Adjustment.

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 

1:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 

3. Ceremonial Items   

 

3. 1. Invocation   

 

3. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

Call to Order
 

4. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to   



4. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided
at the meeting, no later than 1:30 p.m. on October 8, 2024. Citizen Comments provide
an opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda
items. 

  

 

5. Minutes   

 

5. 1. August 30, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
September 10, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting

 

6. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

6. 1. Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute,
for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Compromise Settlement Agreement and
Release of All Claims, in a lawsuit involving a motor vehicle collision, by and between the
City of Lubbock and Fransisa Reyes (Cause No. DC-2023-CV-0500 – Fransisa Reyes v.
City of Lubbock).

 

6. 2. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing
portions of a private utility easement located in Section 6, Block E-2, Lubbock County,
Texas, in the Ranchland Terrace Subdivision, at the northeast corner of 40th Street and
Chicago Avenue.

 

6. 3. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) street, public use, and right-of-way deed and
one (1) drainage easement, and all related documents, in connection with certain real
property located in Section 3, Block JS, Lubbock County, Texas, at the southwest corner
of Erskine Street and Milwaukee Avenue, to be utilized for the Erskine Street Project. 

 

6. 4. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 17634, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for professional engineering services
associated with the design of Pump Station 11B at the North Water Treatment Plant.

 

6. 5. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 18335, with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., for an Impact Fee Report Update,
including land use assumptions and capital project plans. 

 

6. 6. Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchasing



6. 6. Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchasing
Order Contract 10027872, with SHI Government Solutions, Inc. for short-term
rental permitting, compliance, and Hotel Occupancy Tax collection software utilizing Buy
Board Contract 661-22.

 

6. 7. Resolution - Public Works Traffic Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the
Mayor to execute Amendment No. 1 to Contract 17858, with AtkinsRealis, for additional
engineering services related to the City's Americans with Disabilities Act Transition
Plan Sidewalk Gap Analysis Project.

 

6. 8. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 12871, a Community Development Block Grant Funding Agreement, and
all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the U. S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development, for the funding of public service activities, non-public
service activities, housing, direct delivery of services, and administration.

 

6. 9. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 12872, an Emergency Solutions Grant Funding Agreement, and all
related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the U. S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development, for the funding of Emergency Shelter, Rapid
Re-Housing, Homeless Management Information Systems, and administration.

 

6. 10. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 12873, a HOME Investment Partnership and Funding Agreement, and all
related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development, for the funding of Community Housing Development
Organization operations and projects, affordable housing, and administration.

 

6. 11. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
grant the waiver of Payment in Lieu of Taxes for Fiscal Year 2023, requested by the
Lubbock Housing Authority.

 

6. 12. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 19 to Contract 15200, with RS&H, Inc., for professional architectural and
engineering services for Runway Lights Replacement at Lubbock Preston Smith
International Airport.

 

6. 13. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Fifth
Amendment to Contract 15038, with Webber LLC, to extend the contract term and rental
rate for the land lease agreement at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

 

6. 14. Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Purchase Order 33100052, with Paradigm Traffic Systems, for the purchase of
Ruggedcom L3 Switches for the Traffic Signal Network.

 



6. 15. Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager or his
designee, to purchase all approved vehicles and equipment, including their lighting and
associated accessories, for Fiscal Year 2024-25, to replace essential assets in various City
departments.

 

6. 16. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an agreement,
by and between the City of Lubbock, the United States Department of Justice, and the
United States Drug Enforcement Administration, for participation in the Fiscal Year
2025-High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area Task Force Agreement and any associated
documents, including an Asset Sharing Agreement, to disrupt illicit drug traffic in the
Lubbock area. 

 

6. 17. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an agreement,
by and between the City of Lubbock, the United States Department of Justice, and the
United States Drug Enforcement Administration, for participation in the FY 2025
Program-Funded State and Local Task Force Agreement - Task Force Group (Lubbock)
and any associated documents, including an Asset Sharing Agreement, to disrupt illicit
drug traffic in the Lubbock area.

 

6. 18. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Memorandum of Understanding with the Children’s Advocacy Center of the South Plains,
for coordination of joint investigations involving child abuse.

 

6. 19. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Memorandum of Understanding for Law Enforcement Services, by and between the City
of Lubbock and the Lubbock Independent School District, to outline communication and
coordination efforts between the department and the agency, according to Texas Education
Code, Section 37.081 (g).

 

6. 20. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0131,
for Zone Case 2161-M, a request of HFA for Lubbock Commercial Buildings, for a zone
change from Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) to Auto-Urban Commercial District
(AC), at 2731 82nd Street, located south of 82nd Street and east of Elgin Avenue, on
approximately 1.25 acres of unplatted land out of Block E-2, Section 13.

 

6. 21. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0132,
for Zone Case 3267-A, a request of Spindlebock Properties, LLC for a zone change from
Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 3202,
3204, 3206, 3208, 3210, and 3212 118th Street and 3215, and 3217 116th Street, located
between 116th Street and 118th Street and east of Indiana Avenue, Triple C Business Park
Addition, Tracts A through H.

 

7. Regular Agenda   

 

7. 1. Ordinance Single Reading - Finance: Consider an ordinance providing for the issuance



7. 1. Ordinance Single Reading - Finance: Consider an ordinance providing for the issuance
of City of Lubbock, Texas, General Obligation Refunding Bonds, not to exceed
$50,000,000, in one or more series, of current outstanding bond issuances with the
refunding candidates being General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014, Tax and
Waterworks System Surplus Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2015, General
Obligation Refunding, Series 2015 and General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Taxable
Series 2015; levying a tax in payment thereof; providing for the award of the sale thereof in
accordance with specified parameters; approving an official statement; approving
execution of a purchase contract; and enacting other provisions relating thereto.

 

7. 2. Ordinance Single Reading - Finance: Consider an ordinance providing for the issuance
of City of Lubbock, Texas, Water and Wastewater System Revenue Refunding Bonds not
to exceed $65,000,000, in one or more series, of current outstanding bond issuances with
the refunding candidates being the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014, Tax
and Waterworks System Surplus Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2015, and
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015; providing for the award of the sale
thereof in accordance with specified parameters; approving an official statement;
approving execution of a purchase contract; and enacting other provisions relating thereto.

 

7. 3. Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution authorizing the defeasance and redemption
of Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport's outstanding General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2019A; approving and authorizing the execution of an escrow
agreement; and resolving other matters incident and related thereto.

 

7. 4. Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution authorizing the redemption of Lubbock
Preston Smith International Airport's portion of the 2015 General Obligation Refunding
Bonds.

 

7. 5. Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution expressing intent to finance expenditures to be
incurred in the General Fund, Internal Service Fund, Airport fund and Water/Wastewater
Fund for various capital projects and equipment approved by the City Council in the Fiscal
Year 2024-25 Operating Budget and Capital Program, and to reimburse the City from the
proceeds of obligations that will be issued after the expenditure of funds to pay costs of
such projects and equipment.

 

7. 6. Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution authorizing publication of Notice of Intent to
issue City of Lubbock, Texas, Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, not to
exceed $66,000,000 for the following projects: Lake 7 Design and Land Acquisition, West
Lubbock Water System Expansion, Pump Station 11B, East 50th Street Water Line
Extension, Southwest Lubbock Sanitary Sewer Expansion and SEWRP Plant #4 Primary
Clarifier Rehabilitation.

 

7. 7. Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Consider a resolution authorizing the redemption
of the outstanding Series 2015 Electrical Light and Power Systems Revenue Bonds.

 

7. 8. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Airport Board,



7. 8. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Airport Board,
Animal Services Advisory Board, Capital Improvements Advisory Committee,
Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation Board, Keep Lubbock Beautiful
Advisory Committee, Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Inc. Board of Directors,
Lubbock Emergency Communications District Board of Managers, Market Lubbock, Inc.
Board of Directors, Model Codes & Construction Advisory Board, Planning & Zoning
Commission, Veterans Advisory Committee, and the Zoning Board of Adjustment.

 

7. 9. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Electric Utility
Board.

 

7. 10. Ordinance 1st Reading - Planning: Consider and take action on the City of Lubbock
Planning and Zoning Commission's final report of October 3, 2024, to the Lubbock City
Council, on proposed amendments to the Unified Development Code (Ordinance No.
2023-O0054) recommended for adoption, limited to the following:

1. Section 39.03.015.e – Ground cover Requirements
2. Table 39.03.016-2 – Bufferyard Classifications and Division 3.4 Trees, Landscaping,
and Buffering
3. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System
4. Section 39.10.002 Definitions
5. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System
6. Section 39.03.019.a.6.B - Installation & Maintenance
7. Section 39.10.002 - Definitions
8. Appendix A Plant List and Chapter 39 – Unified Development Code
9. Section 39.03.019.a.2 – Installation and Maintenance
10. Section 39.03.016.e.1 – Bufferyard Standards
11. Section 39.03.014.b General Provisions and Table 39.03.014-1 Required Landscaping
Types Summary
12. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System
13. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System
14. Section 39.03.016.e.3.B – Parking Bufferyard Standards
15. Section 39.03.019.e.6 - Installation and Maintenance
16. Table 39.03.014-1 – Required Landscaping Types Summary
17. Table 39.03.015-1 – Landscape Points System
18. Table 39.03.015-1 – Landscape Points System - Other
19. Section 39.03.016.e.4 – Street Bufferyard
20. Table 39.03.016-3 – Street Bufferyard Requirements
21. Section 39.03.016.e.3.A – Parking Bufferyard Standards
22. Section 39.03.016.e.3.B.i – Parking Bufferyard Standards - Composition
23. Section 39.03.019.d.6 - Installation and Maintenance
24. Section 39.03.015 – Development Landscaping
25. Section 39.03.015 – Development Landscaping
26. Figure 39.03.015-2 – Illustrative Parking Lot Planting Requirements
27. Section 39.03.016.d.1 - Composition of Bufferyards
28. Table 39.03.016-1 – District Bufferyard Standards

 

7. 11. Ordinance 1st Reading - Public Works Water Utilities: Consider an ordinance



7. 11. Ordinance 1st Reading - Public Works Water Utilities: Consider an ordinance
amending Section 22.03.083 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, regarding
deposit requirements and related exceptions for utility service.

 

7. 12. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Wastewater Utility: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0133,
amending the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, Chapter 22, "UTILITIES", to provide
for establishing new definitions, delineating sewer line repair and maintenance
responsibilities, amending the regulation for City participation for large mains, and
repealing certain inapplicable provisions. 

 

7. 13. Public Hearing - Business Development: Hold a public hearing for the City Council to
consider the creation of a Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone for the North Park
development area, whose boundaries include approximately 332.8 acres of land in a
portion of the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, generally bounded by Erskine
Street to the north, North Winston Avenue to the east, West Loop 289 to the south, and
Frankford Avenue to the west. 
 

 



 AI# 12878 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 2. 3. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to discuss
personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the Electric Utility
Board, Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation Board, Lubbock Emergency
Communications District Board of Managers, Planning & Zoning Commission, and Zoning Board of
Adjustment.

Item Summary
Discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the Electric
Utility Board, Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation Board, Lubbock Emergency
Communications District Board of Managers, Planning & Zoning Commission, and Zoning Board of
Adjustment.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 12906 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 1. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
August 30, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
September 10, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting

Item Summary
August 30, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Electric Utility Board
September 10, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting

Fiscal Impact
None 

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

Attachments
8.30.2024 S EUB 
9.10.2024 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

August 30, 2024
3:00 P.M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 30th of August, 2024, in
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 3:00 p.m.

3:06 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer; Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Tim
Collins; Council Member Brayden Rose; City Secretary Courtney Paz; City Attorney Matt
Wade; Deputy City Manager Bill Howerton 

Absent:  Council Member David Glasheen; Council Member Gordon Harris; Council Member Dr.
Jennifer Wilson 

This was a meeting of the Electric Utility Board. A quorum of Council Members attended and
participated in discussions during the meeting in which the Board considered the following topics as
shown below.

Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
Public Comment; and 3.1.
No quorum, of City Council, was present for all other items.

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

Public comment is an opportunity for the public to make comments and express a position on agenda
items.

1. 1. This period, of up to thirty minutes, is dedicated to public comment. Each member of the public will
have three minutes to speak. Any member of the public that requires the assistance of a translator will
have six minutes to speak. Comments must be limited to only those items posted on the Electric Utility
Board agenda. Any member of the public wishing to speak shall sign up on the public comment sheet
on the day of the Electric Utility Board meeting. The Electric Utility Board shall follow the order of
persons wishing to speak as listed on the sign-up sheet. If everyone who signed up to speak has been
given an opportunity to speak and the thirty minutes designated for public comment has not been
exhausted, the Electric Utility Board may, at its discretion, open the floor to anyone else wishing to
address the Electric Utility Board, subject to all the same procedures and guidelines.

No one appeared to speak.

3:30 p.m. – Approximately - Following completion of the Executive Session, the Electric Utility Board and



3:30 p.m. – Approximately - Following completion of the Executive Session, the Electric Utility Board and
City Council will reconvene in open session to discuss the items listed below. It is anticipated that the open
session will begin at 3:30 p.m. However, this is an approximation and the Board and City Council may begin
the open session earlier or later depending on when the Executive Session is complete.
 
2. EXECUTIVE SESSION
 
2. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.074 to deliberate the

appointment, employment, evaluation, and duties of a public officer or employee (Director of Electric
Utilities/Chief Administrative Officer, and General Counsel).
 
*This item was deleted.

 
3. REGULAR SESSION
 
3. 1. Discuss and the Board will take action on the Fiscal Year 2024-25 Delivery Service Tariff (including

delivery rates, discretionary rates, and fees), and recommend approval of same to the City Council of
the City of Lubbock pursuant to §2.03.415(a) of the Code of Ordinances, City of Lubbock, Texas.
 
Harvey Hall, chief financial officer for LP&L, gave a presentation and answered questions from the
Board. Joel Ivy, director of electric utilities, gave comments and answered questions from the Board.
 

Motion by Board Member Eddie Schulz, seconded by Board Member Solomon Fields, to
approve the Fiscal Year 2024-25 Delivery Service Tariff (including delivery rates, discretionary
rates, and fees), and recommend approval of same to the City Council of the City of Lubbock
pursuant to §2.03.415(a) of the Code of Ordinances, City of Lubbock, Texas.
 
Vote: 8-0 Motion carried

 
3. 2. Discuss and the Board will take action on the Lubbock Power & Light FY 2024-25 Operating Budget

and Capital Program and make appropriate recommendations to the City Council of the City of
Lubbock regarding Franchise Fee Equivalent (FFE) and Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT) transfers
collected through wholesale transmission rates (TCOS).
 
*This item was deleted.

 

3:40 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor McBrayer adjourned the meeting.

 
The August 30, 2024 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 8th day
of October, 2024.

  

Special City Council Meeting 
August 30, 2024 Page 2 of 3



  ____________________________________
MARK W. McBRAYER, MAYOR

ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

 

 
 
*This item was discussed, by the Board, without a quorum of Council Members present.

Special City Council Meeting 
August 30, 2024 Page 3 of 3



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

September 10, 2024
12:30 P. M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 10th of September, 2024,
in City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 12:30 p.m.

12:32 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer; Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Tim
Collins; Council Member David Glasheen; Council Member Gordon Harris; Council Member
Brayden Rose; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City
Secretary Courtney Paz; City Attorney Matt Wade 

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
Executive Session; 2.1-2.2; Citizen Comments 3; 4.1; 5.1-5.19; 5.22-5.36; 5.20-5.21; and 6.1-6.7.

1. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 12:33 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 2:01 p.m., and the meeting was called to order at 2:05 p.m.

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with
legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and on
matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

1. 1. 1. North Park Tax Increment Financing District

1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, the appointment, employment, evaluation or reassignment of the
following: 

1. 2. 1. City Attorney

1. 2. 2. City Manager

1. 2. 3. City Secretary

1. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to



1. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to
discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to
the Electric Utility Board, Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation Board,
Lubbock Emergency Communications District Board of Managers, Planning & Zoning
Commission, and Zoning Board of Adjustment.

  

 
 
 
2:00 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 
City Council reconvened at 2:01 p.m.
 
2. Ceremonial Items
 
2. 1. Invocation

 
Spencer McCombs, President of the Lubbock Texas Stake of the Church of Jesus Christ of
Latter-day Saints, led the invocation.

 
2. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem
Christy Martinez-Garcia.

 
Call to Order
 
The meeting was called to order at 2:05 p.m.
 
3. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the
meeting, no later than 2:00 p.m. on September 10, 2024. Citizen Comments provide an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. 
 
Sign ups:

Deanne Clark; Drew Landry, member of the Private Sewer Lateral Line Ad-Hoc
Committee; Keri Thomas; Dr. John Thomas; and Mikel Ward appeared before City
Council to speak on item 6.3 (an ordinance approving and adopting a budget for Fiscal Year
2024-25).
Frosty Poston appeared before City Council to speak on item 6.4 (a resolution ratifying the
adoption of the FY 2024-25 Budget). 
Jim Baxa; Deanne Clark; Keri Thomas; Dr. John Thomas; Mikel Ward; Boyd Goodloe;
and Frosty Poston appeared before City Council to speak on item 6.5 (an ordinance setting
the tax rate).

 
4. Minutes

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 10, 2024 Page 2 of 12



4. 1. August 5, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work Session 1
August 6, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work Session 2
August 7, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work Session 3
August 13, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting 

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Tim
Collins, to approve the August 5, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work
Session 1 minutes; the August 6, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work
Session 2 minutes; the August 7, 2024 Special City Council Meeting - Budget Work
Session 3 minutes; and the August 13, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting minutes. 

Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

5. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member David
Glasheen, to approve items 5.1-5.19 and 5.22-5.36. 

Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

5. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0111, 
Amendment 44, amending the FY 2023-24 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the 
Community Development Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

5. 1. 1. Resolution - Community Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0402 authorizing the Mayor to
execute Community Development Funding Contract 18278, and all related documents, with the
Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs, for the Comprehensive Energy
Assistance Program to assist low income households in meeting their immediate energy needs. 

5. 2. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0403 authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Commercial Real Estate Sales Contract, by and between the City of Lubbock and Lone Star Suds
- 19th Ltd., for the sale of real property located within Lots 1 and 2, Block 1, Elwood Place
Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County.

5. 3. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2024-R0404 authorizing the Mayor to accept, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and
all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Lot 6, Block 13,
Phyllis Wheatley Addition to the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas. 

5. 4. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2024-R0405 authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement Contract 17778, with Freese and Nichols,
Inc., for design and bid phase professional services for the Water System Electrical
Improvements Project at the North Water Treatment Plant's Terminal Storage Reservoir. 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 10, 2024 Page 3 of 12



 
5. 5. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2024-R0406 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Professional Services Agreement Contract 18273, with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., for
construction phase services for Upland Avenue, Segment 1, 66th Street to 82nd Street. 

  

 
5. 6. Resolution - Water System Operations: Resolution No. 2024-R0407 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 18255, with the United States Geological Survey, Oklahoma-Texas Water
Science Center, for monitoring and analyzing storm water discharging into both Lake Alan
Henry and the future Lake 7. 

  

 
5. 7. Resolution - Public Works Traffic Management: Resolution No. 2024-R0408 authorizing the

Mayor to execute Purchase Order 10027686, with Mobotrex, Inc., for the purchase of traffic
signal components for various intersections under construction by the Texas Department of
Transportation along 19th Street (SH114), and the intersection at Interstate 27 and Regis Street
(FM2641). 

  

 
5. 8. Resolution - Community Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0409 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Amendment No. 1 to the HOME Investment Partnership Program Funding Agreement
16771, and all related documents, with the City of Lubbock Housing Initiative, to provide
rehabilitation of affordable rental housing. 

  

 
5. 9. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0112, approving the

seventeenth supplemental ordinance updating the Vintage Township Public Improvement
District Service and Assessment Plan and Assessment Roll. 

  

 
5. 10. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0118, reviewing

classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements
of property in the Bell Farms Public Improvement District; approving, adopting, and filing with
the City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services
and improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens
against the property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the
collection of the assessment.  

  

 
5. 11. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0119, reviewing

classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements
of property in the Northwest Passage Public Improvement District; approving, adopting, and
filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll; levying the 2024 assessments for the cost of
certain services and improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing
charges and liens against the property in the district and the owners thereof; and providing for
the collection of the assessments.  

  

 
5. 12. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0120, reviewing

classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements
of property in the Upland Crossing Public Improvement District; approving, adopting, and filing
with the City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain
services and improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and
liens against the property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 10, 2024 Page 4 of 12



collection of the assessment. 
 
5. 13. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0121, reviewing

classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements
of property in the Upland Crossing 2 Public Improvement District; approving, adopting, and
filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of
certain services and improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing
charges and liens against the property in the district and against the owners thereof; and
providing for the collection of the assessment. 

  

 
5. 14. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0122, reviewing

classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements
of property in the Upland Crossing 3 Public Improvement District; approving, adopting, and
filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of
certain services and improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing
charges and liens against the property in the district and against the owners thereof; and
providing for the collection of the assessment. 

  

 
5. 15. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0123, reviewing

classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements
of property in the North Overton Public Improvement District; approving, adopting, and filing
with the City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain
services and improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and
liens against the property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the
collection of the assessment. 

  

 
5. 16. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0124, reviewing

classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements
of property in the Quincy Park Public Improvement District; approving, adopting, and filing
with the City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain
services and improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and
liens against the property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the
collection of the assessment. 

  

 
5. 17. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0125, reviewing

classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements
of property in the Valencia Public Improvement District; approving, adopting, and filing with
the City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services
and improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens
against the property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the
collection of the assessment. 

  

 
5. 18. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0126, reviewing

classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements
of property in the North Point Public Improvement District; approving, adopting, and filing with
the City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of certain services
and improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing charges and liens
against the property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 10, 2024 Page 5 of 12



against the property in the district and against the owners thereof; and providing for the
collection of the assessment. 

5. 19. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Business Development: Ordinance No. 2024-O0127, reviewing
classifications for the methods of assessing special benefits for the services and improvements
of property in the Willow Bend Villas Public Improvement District; approving, adopting, and
filing with the City Secretary the assessment roll; levying 2024 assessments for the cost of
certain services and improvements to be provided in the district during FY 2024-25; fixing
charges and liens against the property in the district and against the owners thereof; and
providing for the collection of the assessment. 

5. 20. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0420 authorizing a Downtown
Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to the YWCA of
Lubbock, located at 1500 14th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and
Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; Brianna Brown, director of business development; Matt Wade,
city attorney; and Glenda Mathis, chief executive officer of YWCA of Lubbock, gave comments
and answered questions from City Council. 

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, to close discussion and call the 
question on this item. Without objection, or a second to the motion, discussion ended and 
the vote was taken.  

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Tim 
Collins, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0420. 

Vote: 5 - 2 Motion carried

NAY:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer 
Council Member David Glasheen 

5. 21. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2024-R0421 authorizing a Downtown
Grant Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to YWCA of
Lubbock, located at 1500 14th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and
Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation. 

Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; Brianna Brown, director of business development; and Glenda
Mathis, chief executive officer of YWCA of Lubbock, gave comments and answered questions
from City Council. 

Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member
Brayden Rose, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0421. 

Vote: 4 - 3 Motion carried

NAY:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer 
Council Member David Glasheen 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 10, 2024 Page 6 of 12



  Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson 

 
5. 22. Resolution - Municipal Court: Resolution No. 2024-R0410 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 1 to the Interlocal Agreement with Lubbock County, for Juvenile Case
Manager Services.  

  

 
5. 23. Resolution - Police: Resolution No. 2024-R0411 authorizing the Mayor to execute the renewal

of the Interlocal Agreement between the City of Lubbock and Lubbock County, Texas, as
constituent agencies of the Lubbock Metropolitan Special Crimes Unit, to identify, investigate,
and deter violent criminal activity in Lubbock County. 

  

 
5. 24. Resolution - Police: Resolution No. 2024-R0412 authorizing the City Manager to establish a

program to transfer ownership of service duty weapons to retired Lubbock Police Department
officers. 

  

 
5. 25. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Ordinance No. 2024-O0113, for Zone Case

1067-G, a request of Helmos Interests LTD, for a zone change from Neighborhood Commercial
District (NC) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) Specific Use for a smoke shop, at
6909, 6911, 6913, 6917, 6923, 6925, 6931, and 6951 Indiana Avenue, located east of Indiana
Avenue and north of 70th Street, Liberty Village Addition, Lots 1-55 of Tract A. 

  

 
5. 26. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2024-O0114, for Zone Case

3303-D, a request of Steen Realty Group of Keller Williams for SE4NS Properties, LLC, for a
zone change from Industrial Park District (IP) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at
11919 and 11923 Frankford Avenue, located east of Frankford Avenue and south of
119th Street, Stonewood Industrial Park Addition, Tracts B-1 and B-2. 

  

 
5. 27. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2024-O0115, for Zone Case

3506, a request of Brian and Chad Carter, for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family
District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 5834 and 5836 146th Street, west of
Frankford Avenue and north of 146th Street, on approximately 4.978 acres of unplatted land out
of Block AK, Section 9. 

  

 
5. 28. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Ordinance No. 2024-O0116, for Zone Case

3507, a request of Mountain Top Engineering for CTJ Diamond Investments, LLC, for a zone
change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Auto-Urban Commercial District
(AC), at 7108 82nd Street, located north of 82nd Street and east of Upland Avenue, on 1.01
acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 30. 

  

 
5. 29. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 6): Ordinance No. 2024-O0117, for Zone Case

3505, a request of Seventeen Services, LLC for Scarlet River, LLC, for a zone change from Low
Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 2909 and 2911
North Frankford Avenue, located west of North Frankford Avenue and north of Ursuline Street,
on 5.023 acres of unplatted land out of Block JS, Section 12. 

  

 
5. 30. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2024-R0413 approving American Rescue Plan   

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 10, 2024 Page 7 of 12



5. 30. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2024-R0413 approving American Rescue Plan
Act Agreement No. 18314, by and between the City of Lubbock and Armstrong Mechanical
Co., Inc., for workforce training grants. 

  

 
5. 31. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2024-R0414 approving American Rescue Plan Act

Agreement No. 18315, by and between the City of Lubbock and Dale Bolles Plumbing, Inc., for
workforce training grants. 

  

 
5. 32. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2024-R0415 approving American Rescue Plan Act

Agreement No. 18316, by and between the City of Lubbock and Precision Pros Plumbing, for
workforce training grants. 

  

 
5. 33. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2024-R0416 approving American Rescue Plan Act

Agreement No. 18317, by and between the City of Lubbock and Larcon Electric, L.C., for
workforce training grants. 

  

 
5. 34. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2024-R0417 approving American Rescue Plan Act

Agreement No. 18318, by and between the City of Lubbock and Bruce Thornton Air
Conditioning, for workforce training grants. 

  

 
5. 35. Resolution - City Council: Resolution No. 2024-R0418 approving a contract amendment

to American Rescue Plan Act Agreement No. 16663, by and between the City of Lubbock and
the East Lubbock Resident Owned Business Initiative, for job training services.   

  

 
5. 36. Resolution - City Secretary: Resolution No. 2024-R0419 confirming the appointment by City

Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson, of Jimmy Lee Tillinghast as a member of the Civil Service
Commission of the City of Lubbock. 

  

 
6. Regular Agenda
 
6. 1. Resolution - City Manager: Resolution No. 2024-R0422 to ratify and confirm the appointment

of Richard M. Stewart as Fire Chief for the City of Lubbock.
 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Richard M. Stewart gave comments and answered questions
from City Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Dr.

Jennifer Wilson, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0422. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
6. 2. Ordinance 1st Reading - Planning:

Ordinance No. 2024-O0130, the City of Lubbock Planning and Zoning Commission's final
report of September 5, 2024, to the Lubbock City Council on proposed amendments to the
Unified Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054) recommended for adoption, limited to
the following: 

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 10, 2024 Page 8 of 12



Table 39.03.023-2 (related to Base Public and Nonresidential Districts Sign Standards)1.
Section 39.02.004.a.7, Section 39.02.004.b.7, Section 39.02.004.c.7, Section 39.02.004.d.7,
Section 39.02.004.e.7 (related to Signs in Residential Districts for Non-Residential Uses)

2.

Section 39.03.023.b.8 (related to Monument Signs)3.

Kristen Sager, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. 

 
  Motion by Council Member Tim Collins, seconded by Council Member David Glasheen,

to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0130. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
6. 3. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0128, approving and adopting a

budget for Fiscal Year 2024-25; approving summary of estimated and forecasted revenues,
appropriations, and use of excess reserves for all funds of the city; providing for necessary
transfers of funds between accounts and departments, if required; authorizing reduction of
spending by City Manager if necessary; re-appropriation of balances which support authorized
obligations or encumbrances; providing for filing of Adopted Budget; establishing civil service
classifications and positions; appropriating funds for the Fiscal Year 2024-25 Operating Budget
and Capital Program of the City of Lubbock; providing for continuation of appropriations for
projects in capital program; approving all permit, license, fees, and charges for service
recommended to be adjusted; approving the pay plan and positions; approving personnel;
amending subsections (a), (b), (c), and (d) of section 4.02.041 of the Code of Ordinances by
revising animal service fees as contained therein; amending subsection (a) of section 22.04.041
of the Code of Ordinances by revising the wastewater base charge as contained therein;
amending subsection (a) of section 22.04.133 of the Code of Ordinances by revising the sewage
disposal permit fee as contained therein; amending subsections (h), (i), (j), and (k) of section
22.04.174 of the Code of Ordinances by revising the septic load fees as contained therein;
amending subsections (b) and (c) of section 22.06.051 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Lubbock by revising the solid waste landfill service fees as contained therein; amending
subsection (a) of section 22.06.185 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock by
revising the solid waste collections service fees as contained therein; providing for the
reconciliation of the transfer of funds from the General Fund to Enterprise Funds; accepting the
budgets for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Market Lubbock, Inc., Civic Lubbock,
Inc., and Vintage Township Public Facilities Corporation;  finding that proper notice of meeting
provided by law and ratifying such; providing for publication; and providing for a savings clause.
 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave a presentation and answered questions from City Council.
Matt Wade, city attorney, gave comments and answered questions from City Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Tim Collins, seconded by Council Member Dr. Jennifer

Wilson, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0128. 
  Vote: 5 - 2 Motion carried

  NAY:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer 
  Council Member David Glasheen 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 10, 2024 Page 9 of 12



  Motion by Council Member David Glasheen, seconded by Mayor Mark W. McBrayer, to
amend the proposed budget to incorporate the changes in Mayor Mark W. McBrayer's
budget proposal.  

  Vote: 2 - 5 Failed

  NAY:  Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia 
  Council Member Tim Collins 
  Council Member Gordon Harris 
  Council Member Brayden Rose 
  Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson 

 
6. 4. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2024-R0423 ratifying the adoption of the FY 2024-25

Budget that will require raising more revenue from property taxes than in the previous year.
 
Matt Wade, city attorney, gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Brayden

Rose, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0423. 
  Vote: 5 - 2 Motion carried

  NAY:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer 
  Council Member David Glasheen 

 
6. 5. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2024-O0129, setting the tax rate and

levying a tax upon all property subject to taxation within the City of Lubbock for 2024;
apportioning said levy among the various funds and items for which revenue must be raised;
fixing the times in which said taxes shall be paid and assessing penalty and interest for
nonpayment of such taxes within the time provided.
 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager; and Matt Wade, city attorney, gave comments and answered
questions from City Council.
 

Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson, seconded by Council Member Brayden
Rose, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0129, to approve a property tax rate to be increased
by the adoption of a tax rate of 0.470120, which is effectively a 0.72% increase in the tax
rate.

 
Vote: 4- 3 Failed

 
NAY: Mayor Mark W. McBrayer
           Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia
           Council Member David Glasheen 
 
*State law requires a supermajority of 60%, which is 5 votes, to approve a tax rate that is
greater than the no-new-revenue tax rate.
 

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 10, 2024 Page 10 of 12



 
 
Without objection, City Council considered items 6.6-6.7 prior to reconsideration of motions
below.

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Tim

Collins, to re-open discussion and consideration of item 6.5. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
  Motion by Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson,  seconded by Council Member Tim

Collins, to approve Ordinance No. 2024-O0129, a property tax rate to be increased by the
adoption of a tax rate of 0.470120, which is effectively a 0.72% increase in the tax rate. 

  Vote: 5 - 2 Motion carried

  NAY:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer 
  Council Member David Glasheen 

 
6. 6. Resolution - Finance: Resolution No. 2024-R0424 amending the allocation of the Hotel

Occupancy Tax Revenues for FY 2024-25 and distributing receipts, net of collection expenses,
as authorized in Subsection 18.03.001(b)(2) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Lubbock.
 
Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Tim Collins, seconded by Council Member Brayden Rose, to

approve Resolution No. 2024-R0424. 
  Vote: 6 - 1 Motion carried

  NAY:  Council Member David Glasheen 

 
6. 7. Resolution - Lubbock Power and Light: Resolution No. 2024-R0425 adopting the Delivery

System Electric Rate/Tariff Schedule (Tariff) of Lubbock Power & Light (LP&L), the City of
Lubbock's municipally owned electric utility, applicable to all rate classes, effective November
1, 2024.
 
Harvey Hall, chief financial officer for LP&L, gave a presentation and answered questions from
City Council. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member

Brayden Rose, to approve Resolution No. 2024-R0425. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 

5:05 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 10, 2024 Page 11 of 12



5:05 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor McBrayer adjourned the meeting.

The September 10, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 
8th  day of October, 2024.

____________________________________
MARK W. McBRAYER, MAYOR

ATTEST:

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Regular City Council Meeting 
September 10, 2024 Page 12 of 12



 AI# 12916 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Risk Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute, for and on
behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Compromise Settlement Agreement and Release of All Claims, in a
lawsuit involving a motor vehicle collision, by and between the City of Lubbock and Fransisa Reyes
(Cause No. DC-2023-CV-0500 – Fransisa Reyes v. City of Lubbock).

Item Summary
The settlement agreement arises out of a motor vehicle incident that occurred on June 14, 2021, between
a City of Lubbock Animal Services vehicle and a vehicle driven by Fransisa Reyes.  Ms. Reyes sustained
significant injuries as a result of the collision.

Fiscal Impact
The settlement is in the amount of $90,000.  Funds are budgeted in the Adopted FY 2024-25 Risk
Management Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution - Compromise and Settlement Agreement 
Reyes Settlement 



RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVEI) BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK:

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute for and
on behalf of the City of Lubbock. a Compromise Settlement Agreement and Release of All
Claims with Fransisa Reyes, and related documents. Said Agreement is attached hereto and
incorporated in this resolution as if fully set forth herein and shall be included in the minutes
of the City Council.

Passed by the City Council on

_____________________________

MARK W. MCBRAYER, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

W. Jarr tt Atkinson, City Manager

APPROVEI) AS TO FORM:

v’:ccdocsI I!RhS .Agrint—FIoies, Matthcw
103.24

















 AI# 12892 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 2. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing portions of a
private utility easement located in Section 6, Block E-2, Lubbock County, Texas, in the Ranchland
Terrace Subdivision, at the northeast corner of 40th Street and Chicago Avenue.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close a private utility easement located in
the Ranchland Terrace Subdivision, at the northeast corner of 40th Street and Chicago Avenue.
 
The total area of the easements being closed is 2,062 square feet. There is no charge to close easements.
The proponent desires to close the easement, to eliminate this encumbrance from future title searches.
The easement, which is not currently in use, is no longer needed.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Interim Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Ordinance - Ranchland Terrace,TrB 
Easement Doc., V938, P451 
Location Exhibit 















 AI# 12894 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 3. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to accept, for and on behalf of
the City of Lubbock, one (1) street, public use, and right-of-way deed and one (1) drainage easement,
and all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 3, Block JS,
Lubbock County, Texas, at the southwest corner of Erskine Street and Milwaukee Avenue, to be utilized
for the Erskine Street Project. 

Item Summary
Danny O. Hunter and Roberta Leigh Hunter are dedicating one right-of-way deed and one drainage
easement to the City of Lubbock, to be utilized for roadway improvements on the Erskine Street Capital
Improvements Project, at the southwest corner of Erskine Street and Milwaukee Avenue.
 
The proponents will dedicate 15,994 square feet of land for street right-of-way purposes and a 122,101
square foot drainage easement, for the total consideration of $400,000, as valued in appraisal reports,
subject to final approval by the City Council and approval of title.

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the land acquisition is $400,000 plus closing costs, and is funded in Capital
Improvements Project 92713, Erskine Street.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Interim Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Resolution - Parcel 5 ROW Deed and Drainage Easement 
Parcels 5A and 5B ROW Deed 
Parcel 5 Drainage Easement 
Parcels 5A and 5B ROW GIS Map 
Parcel 5 Drainage Easement GIS Map 
Budget Detail 
CIP Project Detail 





































As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
Located within Section 3, Block JS

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

ERSKINE ST

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
3,280 sq ft

W
EST W

IN
D

M
IL

W
A

U
K

EE
 A

V
E

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

Proposed Street Deed Dedication
12,714 sq ft

INSIDE CITY LIMITS
OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS

LIN
COLN 16

ERNSKINE ST    CR 6500

SHADOW
 H

IL
LS

ESTATES

RED BUD

HEIG
HTS

SPANIS
H

BIT
 C

OURT

N
 F

RA
N

K
FO

RD
 A

V
E

4TH ST

REVIE
R FARM

S

US 84

SHADOWHILLS

DUKE S
T

N
 IN

V
ER

N
ES

S 
A

V
E

N
 IO

LA
 A

V
E

N
 K

LI
N

E 
A

V
E

DUPAGE ST

M
IL

W
A

U
K

EE
 A

V
E

SHADOW

HIL
LS

HORIZ
ON

W
EST

WALM
ART

TERRA

ESTATES N
ORTH

W
ESTCHESTER

PARK
TOW

N &
 C

OUNTRY

M
OBIL

E ESTATESFRIE
NDSHIP

 ESTATES

0 2 41
Miles



As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Drainage Easement
Located within Section 3, Block JS

Digital Orthophotography - May 2023

ERSKINE STW
EST W

IN
D

M
IL

W
A

U
K

EE
 A

V
E

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

Proposed Drainage Easement
122,101 sq ft

INSIDE CITY LIMITS
OUTSIDE CITY LIMITS

LIN
COLN 16

ERNSKINE ST    CR 6500

SHADOW
 H

IL
LS

ESTATES

RED BUD

HEIG
HTS

SPANIS
H

BIT
 C

OURT

N
 F

RA
N

K
FO

RD
 A

V
E

4TH ST

REVIE
R FARM

S

US 84

SHADOWHILLS

DUKE S
T

N
 IN

V
ER

N
ES

S 
A

V
E

N
 IO

LA
 A

V
E

N
 K

LI
N

E 
A

V
E

DUPAGE ST

M
IL

W
A

U
K

EE
 A

V
E

SHADOW

HIL
LS

HORIZ
ON

W
EST

WALM
ART

TERRA

ESTATES N
ORTH

W
ESTCHESTER

PARK
TOW

N &
 C

OUNTRY

M
OBIL

E ESTATESFRIE
NDSHIP

 ESTATES

0 2 41
Miles



City of Lubbock
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
October 8, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92713
Capital Project Name: Erskine Street

Budget

Encumbered/Expended
Staff time  $                    94,392
Electrical Pole Relocation                        23,444
Contract 16180 with HDR Engineering, Inc.                   1,544,635
Amendment 1 with HDR Engineering for CPS                                  -
Contract 16917 for Erskine Street Reconstruction                   8,708,558
Change Order 1 to Contract 16917 with Lone Star                      177,487
ROW Land Purchases                        93,492

Agenda Item October 8th, 2024
Erskine Street Parcel 5 Land Purchase                      400,000

Encumbered/Expended To Date                 11,042,007

Estimated cost for Remainiaing Appropriation
Erskine Street Improvements                      257,993

Remainiaing Appropriation                 257,992.67
Total Appropriation  $             11,300,000



Project Scope

This roadway is designated in the  2018 Thoroughfare  Master Plan to become a modified principal ar terial.  Erskine  Street
will be  built  as a concrete  5 lane mult i modal roadway with the  Milwaukee Avenue and Erskine  Street Intersection to be
built  to interim 3 lane condit ions.  Improvements will a lso be made to the  pedestrian e lements as well as the  street lights
and drainage.

Project Justi�cation

The City of Lubbock continues to strive to meet the transportation needs of its citizens. We must
continue to anticipate the infrastructure needs for a growing populous in order to provide a safe and
efficient transportation system. Erskine needs to be widened to accommodate an increase in traffic
due to continued growth in Northwest Lubbock.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed: Growth and
Development, Public Safety, Community
Improvement

FY 2020-21 $11,300,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2020-O0077

Project Dates Project Location

Bid Date for Construction: 12/2022
Award Date for Construction : 03/2023
Begin Construction: 05/2023
Construction Complete: 11/2024

Erskine St

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $11,300,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $11,300,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Fund CO Bonds $11,300,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $11,300,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

CIP 92713CIP 92713 Erskine Street Erskine Street
New RoadwaysNew Roadways

Project Manager: Project Manager: Bailey RatcliffeBailey Ratcliffe  - Engineering- Engineering

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 12846 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 4. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 17634, with
Freese and Nichols, Inc., for professional engineering services associated with the design of Pump
Station 11B at the North Water Treatment Plant.

Item Summary
The existing Pump Station 11 at the North Water Treatment Plant was approved for construction in
1965. Consequently, this pump station is nearly 60 years old, and is showing clear signs of reaching the
end of its design life.

Pump Station 11 is the City's primary way of distributing treated drinking water to Lubbock, and is of
critical importance to be redesigned and rebuilt to continue serving the City for years to come.

The City issued a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) to provide engineering services for the design of
Pump Station 11B at the North Water Treatment Plant.

In response to RFQ 24-17634-TF, four engineering firms submitted proposals, which were evaluated and
ranked based on the following criteria:
  

•30 Points for Project Team Organization and Qualifications;
•30 Points for Experience on Similar Projects;
•35 Points for Project Approach; and
•5 Points for Overall Responsiveness to the RFQ.

The maximum point value is 100 points per evaluator, and their scores are as follows:
  

Engineering Firm Points
Freese and Nichols, Inc., Lubbock, Texas 94.75
Bath Group, LLC, El Paso, Texas 87.75
Alan Plummer and Associates, Fort Worth, Texas 86.50
Stiver Engineering, Houston, Texas 70.00

 
Staff recommends award of this contract to the highest ranked proposer, Freese and Nichols, Inc., of
Lubbock, Texas. The contract is based upon fair and reasonable hourly rates agreed on, for a total
amount not to exceed $1,682,955.

Fiscal Impact
Contract No. 17634 for $1,682,955, is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92835 Pump Station 11B.



Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Interim Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 
Location Exhibit 
CIP Budget Detail 
CIP Project Detail 



RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK:

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute fo
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Professional Services Agreement Contract No. 17634 fo
Pump Station 11B rebuild, by and between the City of Lubbock and Freese and Nichols, Inc., an
related documents. Said Contract is attached hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if full
set forth herein and shall be included in the minutes of the City Council.

Passed by the City Council on

_____

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

m&m
K ili Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

1•

r
I
I

ATTEST:

MARK W. MCBRAYER, MAYOR

ccdocs/RES.PSA-No. 17634 -- FNI pump station 11 B rebuild
9.16.24



Page 1 of 11 

 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK § 

This Professional Service Agreement (“Agreement”) Contract No. 17634 is entered into this ___ 

day of _______________, 2024, is by and between the City of Lubbock (the "City"), a Texas home rule 

municipal corporation, and Freese and Nichols, Inc., (the” Engineer”), a Texas corporation. 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, The City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide professional services for 

Pump Station 11B Rebuild, (the “Activities”); and 

WHEREAS, the Engineer has a professional staff experienced and is qualified to provide 

professional engineering services related to Activities, and will provide the services, as defined below, for 

the price provided herein, said price stipulated by the City and the Engineer to be a fair and reasonable 

price; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide professional services 

related to the Activities, and Engineer desires to provide the Services related to same. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the terms, covenants and conditions set forth in 

this Agreement, the City and the Engineer hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I. TERM 

The term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date and continues without interruption 

for a term of 548 days. If the Engineer determines that additional time is required to complete the Services, 

the City Engineer, may, but is not obligated to, in his or her discretion, execute an agreement to grant up to 

an additional six (6) months of time so long as the amount of the consideration does not increase. An 

amendment to this Agreement resulting in an increase in the amount of the consideration must be approved 

by the City acting through its governing body. 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 11

ARTICLE II. SERVICES AND COMPENSATION

A. The Engineer shall conduct all activities, and within such timeframes, as set forth on Exhibit 

“A”, attached hereto (the “Services”).

B. The Engineer shall receive as consideration to be paid for the performance of the Services, in 

an amount not to exceed $1,682,955, as set forth in Exhibit “B”.

ARTICLE III. TERMINATION

A. General. The City may terminate this Agreement, for any reason or convenience, upon thirty 

(30) days written notice to the Engineer. In the event this Agreement is so terminated, the City shall only 

pay the Engineer for services actually performed by the Engineer up to the date the Engineer is deemed to 

have received notice of termination, as provided herein.

B. Termination and Remedies. In the event the Engineer breaches any term and/or provision of this 

Agreement, the City shall be entitled to exercise any right or remedy available to it by this Agreement, at 

law, equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, termination of this Agreement and assertion of an 

action for damages and/or injunctive relief. The exercise of any right or remedy shall not preclude the 

concurrent or subsequent exercise of any right or remedy and all rights and remedies shall be cumulative.

ARTICLE IV. NON - ARBITRATION

The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy available to it by law, contract, equity, 

or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of 

competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising 

its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, 

and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another 

provision in, or related to, this Agreement, this provision shall control.

ARTICLE V. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

A. Existence. The Engineer is a corporation duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing 

under the laws of the State of Texas and is qualified to carry on its business in the State of Texas.

B. Corporate Power. The Engineer has the corporate power to enter into and perform this 

Agreement and all other activities contemplated hereby. 

C. Authorization. Execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement and the activities 

contemplated hereby have been duly and validly authorized by all the requisite corporate action on the part 



Page 3 of 11 

 

of the Engineer. This Agreement constitutes legal, valid, and binding obligations of the Engineer and is 

enforceable in accordance with the terms thereof. 

D. Engineer. The Engineer maintains a professional staff and employs, as needed, other qualified 

specialists experienced in providing the Services, and is familiar with all laws, rules, and regulations, both 

state and federal, including, without limitation the applicable laws, regarding the Activities contemplated 

hereby.  

E. Performance. The Engineer will and shall conduct all activities contemplated by this Agreement 

in accordance with the standard of care, skill and diligence normally provided by a professional person in 

performance of similar professional services, and comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations, 

both state and federal, relating to professional services, as contemplated hereby. 

F. Use of Copyrighted Material. The Engineer warrants that any materials provided by the Engineer 

for use by City pursuant to this Agreement shall not contain any proprietary material owned by any other 

party that is protected under the Copyright Act or any other law, statute, rule, order, regulation, ordinance 

or contractual obligation relating to the use or reproduction of materials. The Engineer shall be solely 

responsible for ensuring that any materials provided by the Engineer pursuant to this Agreement satisfy this 

requirement and the Engineer agrees to indemnify and hold City harmless from all liability or loss caused 

to City or to which City is exposed on account of the Engineer’s failure to perform this duty. 

ARTICLE VI. SCOPE OF WORK 

The Engineer shall accomplish the following: Professional Services related to the Services, as 

provided in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

ARTICLE VII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS 

The Engineer and the City agree that the Engineer shall perform the duties under this Agreement 

as an independent contractor and shall be considered as independent contractor under this Agreement and/or 

in its activities hereunder for all purposes. The Engineer has the sole discretion to determine the manner in 

which the Services are to be performed. During the performance of the Services under this Agreement, the 

Engineer and the Engineer’s employees and/or sub-consultants, will not be considered, for any purpose, 

employees or agents of the City within the meaning or the application of any federal, state or local law or 

regulation, including without limitation, laws, rules or regulations regarding or related to unemployment 

insurance, old age benefits, workers compensation, labor, personal injury or taxes of any kind. 

 

 



Page 4 of 11 

 

ARTICLE VIII. INSURANCE 

The Engineer shall procure and carry, at its sole cost and expense through the life of this Agreement, 

except as otherwise provided herein, insurance protection as hereinafter specified, in form and substance 

satisfactory to the City, carried with an insurance company authorized to transact business in the state of 

Texas, covering all aspects and risks of loss of all operations in connection with this Agreement, including 

without limitation, the indemnity obligations set forth herein. The Engineer shall obtain and maintain in 

full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, and shall cause each approved subcontractor or sub-

consultant of the Engineer to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, 

commercial general liability, professional liability and automobile liability coverage for non-owned and 

hired vehicles with insurance carriers admitted to do business in the state of Texas. The insurance 

companies must carry a Best’s Rating of A-VII or better. Except for Professional Liability, the policies will 

be written on an occurrence basis, subject to the following minimum limits of liability: 

Commercial General Liability: 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $1,000,000 

General Aggregate Limit: $2,000,000 

Professional Liability: 

Combined Single Limit: $2,000,000 

Automobile Liability: 

Combined Single Limit for any auto: $1,000,000 Per Occurrence 

Employer’s Liability: 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $1,000,000 

Worker’s Compensation 

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $500,000 

The Engineer shall further cause any approved subcontractor or sub-consultant to procure and 

carry, during the term of this Agreement, the insurance coverage required of Engineer herein, including 

without limitation, Professional Liability coverage, protecting the City against losses caused by the 

professional negligence of the approved subcontractor or sub-consultant. The City shall be listed as a 

primary and noncontributory additional insured with respect to the Automobile Liability and Commercial 

General Liability and shall be granted a waiver of subrogation under those policies. The Engineer shall 

provide a Certificate of Insurance to the City as evidence of coverage.  

The Certificate shall provide 30 days’ notice of cancellation. A copy of the additional insured 

endorsement and waiver of subrogation attached to the policy shall be included in the Certificate. The 

Engineer shall elect to obtain worker’s compensation coverage pursuant to Section 406.002 of the Texas 

Labor Code. Further, the Engineer shall maintain said coverage throughout the term of this Agreement and 



Page 5 of 11 

 

shall comply with all provisions of Title 5 of the Texas Labor Code to ensure that the Engineer maintains 

said coverage. The Engineer may maintain Occupational Accident and Disability Insurance in lieu of 

Worker’s Compensation. In either event, the policy must be endorsed to include a waiver of subrogation in 

favor of the City. If at any time during the life of the Agreement or any extension hereof, the Engineer fails 

to maintain the required insurance in full force and effect, the Engineer shall be in breach hereof and all 

work under the Agreement shall be discontinued immediately. 

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the professional liability policy shall be 

maintained at the Engineer’s sole cost and expense. The retroactive date shall be no later than the 

commencement of the performance of this Agreement and the discovery period (possibly through tail 

coverage) shall be no less than 10 years after the completion of the Services provided for in this Agreement. 

The provisions of this Article VIII shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IX. EMPLOYMENT OF AGENTS/RETAINING OF CONSULTANTS 

The Engineer may employ or retain consultants, contractors, or third parties (any of which are 

referred to herein as “Sub-consultant”), to perform certain duties of Engineer, as set forth on Exhibit A 

attached hereto, under this Agreement, provided that the City approves the retaining of Sub-consultants. 

The Engineer is at all times responsible to the City to perform the Services as provided in this Agreement 

and the Engineer is in no event relieved of any obligation under this Agreement upon retainage of any 

approved Sub-consultant. Any agent and/or Sub-consultant retained and/or employed by the Engineer shall 

be required by the Engineer to carry, for the protection and benefit of the City and the Engineer and naming 

said third parties as additional insureds, insurance as described above required to be carried by the Engineer 

in this Agreement.   

The Engineer represents that such services are either under applicable value thresholds or are 

otherwise exempt from notice and/or bid requirements under Texas Law. 

ARTICLE X. CONFIDENTIALITY 

The Engineer shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the City's 

business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without prior written 

consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 

ARTICLE XI. INDEMNITY 

THE ENGINEER SHALL INDEMNIFY AND SAVE HARMLESS THE CITY OF LUBBOCK 

AND ITS ELECTED OFFICIALS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES FROM ALL SUITS, 

ACTIONS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, OR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND, CHARACTER, TYPE, 

OR DESCRIPTION, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING, 



Page 6 of 11 

 

ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT COSTS, AND ATTORNEY'S FEES, FOR INJURY OR 

DEATH TO ANY PERSON, OR INJURY TO ANY PROPERTY, RECEIVED OR SUSTAINED BY 

ANY PERSON OR PERSONS OR PROPERTY, TO THE EXTENT ARISING OUT OF, RELATED TO 

OR OCCASIONED BY, THE NEGLIGENT ACTS OF THE ENGINEER, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, 

AND/OR SUBCONSULTANTS, RELATED TO THE PERFORMANCE, OPERATIONS OR 

OMISSIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR THE USE OR OCCUPATION OF CITY OWNED 

PROPERTY. THE INDEMNITY OBLIGATION PROVIDED HEREIN SHALL SURVIVE THE 

EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT. 

ARTICLE XII. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS 

The Engineer shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances, 

rules and regulations relating, in any way, manner or form, to the activities under this Agreement, and any 

amendments thereto. 

ARTICLE XIII. NOTICE 

 A. General. Whenever notice from the Engineer to the City or the City to the Engineer is required 

or permitted by this Agreement and no other method of notice is provided, such notice shall be given by 

(1) actual delivery of the written notice to the other party by hand (in which case such notice shall be 

effective upon delivery); (2) facsimile (in which case such notice shall be effective upon delivery); or (3) 

by depositing the written notice in the United States mail, properly addressed to the other party at the 

address provided in this article, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, in which case such 

notice shall be effective on the third business day after such notice is so deposited. 

B.  Engineer’s Address.  The Engineer’s address and numbers for the purposes of notice are: 

Nicholas Lester, P.E. 
Freese and Nichols, Inc. 
801 Cherry St. Suite 2800 
Fort Worth Texas, 76102 
Telephone: 817-735-7300 
 Email: ncl@freese.com 
 C. City's Address. The City's address and numbers for the purposes of notice are: 

James Dean, P.E. 
City of Lubbock 
P.0. Box 2000 
1314 Avenue K  
Lubbock, Texas 79457 
Telephone: 806-775-3254 
Email: jdean@mylubbock.us 
 
 
 



Page 7 of 11 

 

D. Change of Address. Either party may change its address or numbers for purposes of notice by 

giving written notice to the other party as provided herein, referring specifically to this Agreement, and 

setting forth such new address or numbers. The address or numbers shall become effective on the 15th day 

after such notice is effective. 

ARTICLE XIV. CITY-PROVIDED DATA AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

 Provision of Data.  The City shall furnish the Engineer non-confidential studies, reports and other 

available data in the possession of the City pertinent to the Engineer’s Services, so long as the City is 

entitled to rely on such studies, reports and other data for the performance of the Engineer’s Services under 

this Agreement (the “Provided Data”). The Engineer shall be entitled to use and rely, so long as such 

reliance is reasonable, upon all such Provided Data. 

ARTICLE XV. MISCELLANEOUS 

A. Captions. The captions for the articles and sections in this Agreement are inserted in this 

Agreement strictly for the parties' convenience in identifying the provisions to this Agreement and shall not 

be given any effect in construing this Agreement. 

B. Audit. The Engineer shall provide access to its corporate books and records to the City. The City 

may audit, at its expense and during normal business hours, the Engineer’s books and records with respect 

to this Agreement between the Engineer and the City. 

C. Records. The Engineer shall maintain records that are necessary to substantiate the services 

provided by the Engineer. 

D. Assignability. The Engineer may not assign this Agreement without the prior written approval 

of the City. 

E. Successor and Assigns. This Agreement binds and inures to the benefit of the City and the 

Engineer, and in the case of the City, its respective successors, legal representatives, and assigns, and in the 

case of the Engineer, its permitted successors and assigns. 

F. Construction and Venue.  

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 

LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS. THIS AGREEMENT IS PERFORMABLE IN LUBBOCK 

COUNTY, TEXAS. THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY CONSENT TO THE SOLE 

AND EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF THE COURTS OF COMPETENT 

JURISDICTION OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, COUNTY OF LUBBOCK, FOR THE PURPOSES OF 



Page 8 of 11 

 

ALL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE 

ACTIONS THAT ARE CONTEMPLATED HEREBY. 

G. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is ever held to be invalid or ineffective by any 

court of competent jurisdiction with respect to any person or circumstance, the remainder of this Agreement 

and the application of such provision to persons and/or circumstances other than those with respect to which 

it is held invalid or ineffective shall not be affected thereby. 

H. Amendment. No amendment, modification, or alteration of the terms of this Agreement shall be 

binding unless such amendment, modification, or alteration is in writing, dated subsequent to this 

Agreement, and duly authorized and executed by the Engineer and the City. 

I. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including Exhibits “A” through “B” attached hereto, contains 

the entire agreement between the City and the Engineer, and there are no other written or oral promises, 

conditions, warranties, or representations relating to or affecting the matters contemplated herein.  

J. No Joint Enterprise. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to imply a joint venture, joint 

enterprise, partnership or principal – agent relationship between the Engineer and the City. 

K. Documents Owned by City. Any and all documents, drawings and specifications prepared by 

Engineer as part of the Services hereunder, shall become the property of the City when the Engineer has 

been compensated as set forth in Article II, above. The Engineer shall make copies of any and all work 

products for its files.  

L. Notice of Waiver. A waiver by either the City or the Engineer of a breach of this Agreement 

must be in writing and duly authorized to be effective. In the event either party shall execute and deliver 

such waiver, such waiver shall not affect the waiving party’s rights with respect to any other or subsequent 

breach. 

M. Third Party Activities. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to provide any rights or 

benefits whatsoever to any party other than the City and the Engineer. 

N. Non-Appropriation. All funds for payment by the City under this Agreement are subject to the 

availability of an annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of non-appropriation of 

funds by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the services provided under the Agreement, the City 

will terminate the Agreement, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-

current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the services covered by this 

Agreement is spent, whichever event occurs first (the “Non-Appropriation Date”).  If at any time funds are 

not appropriated for the continuance of this Agreement, cancellation shall be accepted by the Engineer on 



Page 9 of 11 

 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall 

not be obligated under this Agreement beyond the Non-Appropriation Date. 

O. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist 

Organization Prohibited.  Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City 

from entering into a contract with a vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to 

have contracts with or provide supplies or service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

P. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This 

section applies only to a contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more 

full-time employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from public 

funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract with a company 

for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the company that it: (1) does 

not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. 

Q. Texas Government Code 2274. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) it 

does not, and will not for the duration  of  the  contract,  have  a  practice,  policy,  guidance,  or  directive  

that  discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by 

Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract.  If Contractor is a company 

with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or more, 

Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, 

policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and 

will not discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 

R. Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the 

contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the Texas 

Government Code does not apply to the contract.  If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time 

employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant 

to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott 

energy companies during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement 

where a governmental entity determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental 

entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of debt 

obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 

S. Texas Public Information Act.  The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government 

Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if 

the contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor agrees 

to:  (1) preserve all contracting information related to the contract as provided by the records retention 



requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the contract; (2) promptly provide to

the governmental body any contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or

possession of the entity on request of the governmental body; and (3) on completion of the contract, either:

(A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all contracting information related to the contract that is in

the custody or possession of the entity; or (B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract

as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body.

T. Professional Responsibility. All architectural or engineering services to be performed shall be

done with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by competent architects or engineers practicing

under the same or similar circumstances and professional license.

EXECUTED as of the Effective Date hereof.

CITY OF LUBBOCK

MARK W. MCBRAYER, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

BiI’ey Ratcliff.E., Int i-4irector of Engineering/City Engineer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

K lii Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney
Firm

Freese and Nichols, Inc.

By:___________
Nicholas Lester, P.E., Vice President

Email: ncl(freese.com

Page 10 oflI



 

FNI Professional Agreement                                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 20 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR: 

PUMP STATION 11B PUMP STATION 

PRELIMINARY DESIGN & FINAL DESIGN 

 

GENERAL: 

 

A.   Pump Station 11B Pump Station (The “Project”) includes the following facilities: 

1.    Pump Station 11B Pump Station (PS11B) with a capacity of approximately 15 MGD expandable to 30 

MGD in the future, sharing the site of the City’s existing North Water Treatment Plant facility and an 

existing 8-million-gallon ground storage tank. The PS11B pump station will feature vertical turbine 

pumps in cans operated with variable frequency drives, venturi flow meters on the discharge side of 

each pump, and a bridge crane.  

2.    PS11B Suction piping tie-in to existing site yard piping. The proposed discharge piping will include 

two discharges with one tie-in to the existing site yard piping and the other discharge being a stub-

out to the NWTP property line for a future proposed Pipeline to be routed to the proposed west 

pressure zone. 

3.    Evaluation of two site layout options, with one option being placing the proposed pump station 

building in an existing sludge/decantation bed, and the other option being placing the proposed 

pump station at the existing 6 MG Clearwell site. 

4.    PS11B Site grading, fence repair/replacement, and concrete paving. 

5.    Pump Station 11B pump station special services.  

6.    Demolition of existing 6 MG Clearwell and Wash Water Storage tank. 

7.    Evaluation of existing generator capacity and design of replacement generator if needed. 

 

B.   The Project will be split into the following bid packages: 

1.    Bid Package A – PS11B Pump Station Early procurement package.   To include pre-purchase of VFDs, 

Switchgear, Generators (if needed), and Vertical Turbine Pumps. 

2.    Bid Package B - PS11B Pump Station.  

Bid phase services will be provided for Bid Package A. It is assumed that the bid packages will be 

formatted for Competitive Sealed Proposal procurement. 

 



 

FNI Professional Agreement                                                                                                                                                                            Page 2 of 20 

C.   The following facilities are not part of the Project.  

1.    Electrical substations or power transmission lines to the sites, which will be designed and 

constructed by the electric utility company.  The Project will tie onto the secondary side of the 

substations and/or power service facilities. 

2.    Chemical room/facilities/equipment.   

3.    Restroom in PS11B pump station building. 

4.    Offsite facility upgrades 

5.    Ground storage tank. 

6.    Pipeline design from the NWTP site to the West Pressure Zone. 

 

BASIC SERVICES:  The Basic Services include the project administration, preliminary investigations and 

reports, preparation of detailed design as set forth herein, construction documents, and construction bid 

and award services.  ENGINEER shall render the following professional services in connection with the 

development of the Project: 

 

A. GENERAL SCOPE OF SERVICES TASKS:  ENGINEER will provide the following as part of the preliminary 

and final design phase of The Project: 

1. Attend a kick-off meeting to clarify the City’s requirements for the Project, review pertinent 

data, review Project staffing and organization, and present the initial work plan and schedule.  

2. Provide administration and management of The Project.  Review ongoing activities.  Monitor 

schedule and budget.  Review progress with OWNER on a regular basis.  Discuss issues with the 

OWNER as they are noted.  Attend monthly coordination meetings with the OWNER.  Prepare 

and distribute minutes of the meetings.  All meetings provided for in this AGREEMENT shall 

occur at the offices of the OWNER, or other location determined by the OWNER. 

3. Provide monthly update reports which include the following: 

• Status of the work 

• Major tasks to be completed in the next month 

• Discussion of major issues 

• Scope changes to project scope or Engineer’s scope 

• Project budget update (if major changes since the last update) 

• Project schedule update (if major changes since the last update) 

• Status of deliverables 



 

FNI Professional Agreement                                                                                                                                                                            Page 3 of 20 

B. PUMP STATION PRELIMINARY DESIGN PHASE:   ENGINEER will provide the following as part of the 

preliminary design phase: 

1. Conduct a study of the system to verify system pumping capacity, phasing of the system, 

preliminary pump selection, and general operating requirements of the pump station. 

2. Evaluation of existing generator capacity and design of replacement generator if needed. 

3. Prepare load studies to support preliminary design of utility power systems by others.  Meet 

with the electric utility company and OWNER to coordinate electric utility system design.   

4. Conduct a workshop with OWNER’S staff to discuss layout, major equipment selection, 

construction materials, operation and maintenance criteria, OWNER’S preferences, and 

alternatives to be studied.  ENGINEER will bring lead designers from the major disciplines to the 

workshop. 

5. Evaluate alternatives and recommend designs for the project facilities, including conceptual 

pump station floor plan layouts, major equipment selections, piping and valves, flowmeters, 

surge control systems, building materials, bridge crane, HVAC systems, site road and grading 

plans, preliminary electrical layout and one-line diagrams, P&ID’s, and equipment tagging 

schedules, generator sizing analysis, and pump station siting. Generator sizing analysis will 

include two (2) options to tie the proposed Pump Station 11B pump station to a generator.  

6. Reconnaissance-level opinions of probable construction cost for the recommended facilities. 

7. Prepare and submit a draft preliminary design report for review by the OWNER.  The 

preliminary design report will include design criteria, codes and standards, evaluation of 

alternatives, layouts, equipment selections, and cost estimates as described above.  The report 

will also include the project phasing, schedule, permitting requirements, and zoning 

requirements (if any).   

8. Attend a meeting to present the draft preliminary design report.  Attend another meeting to 

receive comments from the OWNER.  Make modifications to the report to address the 

OWNER’s comments and submit the final draft of the preliminary design report. 

 

C. PUMP STATION FINAL DESIGN PHASE:  FNI shall provide professional services in this phase as follows: 

1. Obtain and review OWNER-furnished front-end documents, general conditions, and special 

conditions for the construction contracts.  Meet with OWNER to review comments, and revise 

OWNER’s standard documents accordingly. 

2. Prepare plans, specifications, contract documents, designs, and layouts of improvements to be 



 

FNI Professional Agreement                                                                                                                                                                            Page 4 of 20 

constructed for Pump Station 11B.  

3. Advise OWNER of need for and recommend scope of additional subsurface investigations, 

special analysis, and the retention of special consultants.  The cost of any additional special 

services shall be paid by OWNER and are not included in the services performed by ENGINEER 

unless they are included pursuant to Exhibit A –Special Services. 

4. Prepare Pump Station 11B applications for permits including building code permitting (if any).  

ENGINEER will provide supporting documents to the construction contractor(s) for their 

application of NPDES/TPDES Permitting.  Any permitting effort required because of new 

regulations that become effective after the signing of this AGREEMENT will be considered 

additional services.   

5. Submit plans, specifications, and contract documents for Pump Station 11B to the TCEQ and 

TDLR. 

6. Furnish necessary information to utility companies whose facilities may be affected, or services 

may be required for the Project (Pump Station 11B pump station).  Provide site civil design of 

the pump station site to support the electric utilities site requirements, including site grading, 

roads, and fencing.  The pump station power connection to the electric utility will be on the 

secondary side of the utility transformer. 

7. Level 2 Review (Pump Station):  Furnish OWNER preliminary (60%) plans and specifications 

marked “Preliminary” for approval by OWNER.  ENGINEER will meet with the OWNER to 

present the preliminary plans and specifications.  After OWNER’S review, ENGINEER will meet 

with OWNER to receive comments.  Level 2 review documents will include dimensional layout 

drawings, plans, sections and elevations of the facilities for all the trades, typical details, and 

most special details.  The drawings will be in sufficient development to show the overall layouts 

and design intent but will lack many notes and minor details.  The specifications will include the 

front-end documents and draft specifications for major equipment items. 

8. Level 3 Review (Pump Station):  Furnish OWNER preliminary (90%) plans, specifications, and bid 

proposals marked “Preliminary” for approval by OWNER.  ENGINEER will meet with the OWNER 

to present the preliminary plans and specifications.  After OWNER’S review, ENGINEER will 

meet with OWNER to receive comments.  Upon final approval by OWNER, ENGINEER will 

complete the plans and specifications and provide OWNER “Final” plans and specifications.  

Level 3 Review documents will include all drawing sheets and specifications with some minor 

corrections and notes remaining. 



 

FNI Professional Agreement                                                                                                                                                                            Page 5 of 20 

9. Prepare bidder’s proposal forms (project quantities) of the improvements to be constructed for 

the Pump Station 11B pump station. 

 

D. BID AND AWARD PHASE (Early Procurement.  Upon completion of the design services and approval of 

“Final” drawings and specifications by Owner, FNI will proceed with the performance of services in this 

phase as follows: 

1. Bid Phase services will be performed for the following bid packages: 

a) Bid Package A – PS11B Early Procurement. 

2. Assist OWNER in securing bids, issuing notice to bidders and notifying selected plan rooms.  The 

notice to bidders will be furnished to OWNER for publication in the local news media.  The cost 

for publications shall be paid by OWNER. 

3. Distribute plans to bidders using the web-based CivCast utilized by Freese and Nichols for 

bidding projects.  Cost for any bidder’s requests for hard copies of bid documents will be paid 

for by bidder. Keep a record of prospective bidders and plan rooms and other parties to whom 

the bidding documents have been distributed.  Advertise for bids on FNI’s website, and keep 

the website updated with addenda information, plan holder lists, and bidding information. 

4. Attend one (1) pre-bid conference for each construction contract. 

5. Issue Addenda as appropriate to clarify, correct, or change the bidding documents. 

6. Assist OWNER in the opening, tabulation, and analysis of the bids received and furnish 

recommendations on the award of contract as appropriate. 

7. Assist OWNER in the preparation of documents for execution of the construction contract.  FNI 

will conform the contract documents, make four (4) original copies for execution.  FNI will also 

make ten (10) conformed copies of the plans and specifications for use by the Contractor and 

OWNER and Engineer.  The ten (10) copies will include five (5) full size copies, five (5) half size 

copies, and electronic PDF copy. 

8. The Bid and Award phase will be considered complete upon execution of the construction 

contracts and distribution of the conformed copies of the plans and specifications.   

 



 

FNI Professional Agreement                                                                                                                                                                            Page 6 of 20 

SPECIAL SERVICES: FNI shall render the following special services in connection with The Project: 

 

A.   GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING: FNI will provide geotechnical engineering services as follows: 

The proposed geotechnical scope of work will consist of field exploration, laboratory testing, 

engineering analysis and reporting, and design as presented below.  

 

Task 1 –Field Exploration 

1. Select appropriate locations for up to nine (9) exploratory borings for the pump station 

building, pads and vaults. The Engineer will coordinate with the City and Texas 811 regarding 

underground utilities within the vicinity of the planned boring locations prior to 

commencement of the field exploration activities.  

2. The Engineer will subcontract with a drilling contractor (Terra Testing, LLC) to drill five (5) 

borings to a depth of 40 feet for the pump station; and three (3) borings to a depth of 25 feet 

for the proposed transformer and generator pads and isolation valve manholes. An estimated 1 

day of traffic control will be needed for drilling the boring at the pipeline tie-in. 

a. Subsurface samples will be collected intermittently using 3-inch diameter Shelby tubes for 

cohesive soils and a 2-inch diameter split-spoon sampler in conjunction with the Standard 

Penetration Test (SPT) for intermediate and non-cohesive soils. Rock and rock-like materials 

will be tested in-situ using the TxDOT Texas Cone Penetration (TCP) Test. 

b. Groundwater observations within the borings will be recorded at the time of drilling and at 

the completion of drilling and sampling. 

c. The borings will be backfilled with auger cuttings upon completion of drilling and sampling. 

3. Provide an Engineer or Geologist experienced in logging borings to direct the drilling, log the 

borings, and handle and transport the samples. Visual classification of the subsurface 

stratigraphy shall be provided according to the Unified Soil Classification System (USCS). 

 

Task 2 – Laboratory Testing 

1. Testing shall be performed on samples obtained from the borings to determine soil 

classification and pertinent engineering properties of the subsurface materials.  

2. The Engineer will subcontract with a testing laboratory (Terra Testing, LLC) to perform the 

required testing. The Engineer will select samples for laboratory testing, assign tests, and 

review the test results.  



 

FNI Professional Agreement                                                                                                                                                                            Page 7 of 20 

3. Laboratory tests will be appropriately assigned for the specific subsurface materials 

encountered during exploration, but are expected to include: 

a. Classification tests (liquid and plastic limits and percent passing the no. 200 sieve or 

gradation) 

b. Gradation Tests 

c. Moisture content  

d. Unit dry weight  

e. Unconfined compressive strength 

f. One-dimensional swell (with swell pressures) 

 

Task 3 – Engineering Analysis and Reporting 

1.  A geotechnical investigation technical memorandum summarizing the investigation, findings, 

analysis, and design recommendations will be developed. The analysis and report will include 

the following: 

a. Appendix with the boring locations, boring logs, laboratory test results, and a key to the 

symbols used.   

b. Discussion of subsurface conditions and soil properties indicated by the field and laboratory 

work, and the implications for design.   

c. Foundation recommendations including net allowable bearing capacity for the pump station, 

transformer pad and vaults. 

d. Lateral earth pressures for various backfill materials, including materials specifications and 

compaction requirements. 

e. General discussion of expected construction related issues.   

f. Earthwork and site preparation related recommendations for use during development of the 

plans and specifications.   

 

B.    HYDRAULIC MODELING: FNI will provide hydraulic modeling services as follows: 

1.    Kickoff Meeting:  Attend kickoff meeting with City.  FNI and the City will review assumptions for 

existing average day and maximum day demands.  Discuss projected demands to use for 20-year 

system curves and overall assumptions (additional improvements constructed, etc.). 

2.    Utilize the Hydraulic Model to determine Future Pump Station Sizing and Maximum Flow Rates:  

FNI will utilize the demands, water system improvements and supply assumptions from the Water 



 

FNI Professional Agreement                                                                                                                                                                            Page 8 of 20 

Master Plan to develop maximum projected flow rates to assist in pump sizing and selection. 

3.    Develop System Curves for Existing and 20-year Average Day & Maximum Day Demand 

Conditions:  FNI will utilize the existing system and 20-year scenarios for average day and 

maximum day demand conditions to prepare system curves for Pump Station 11B. 

4.    Prepare Technical Memorandum on System Curve Development:  FNI will prepare a brief technical 

memorandum summarizing the assumptions used in calculating the maximum flow rate and 

system curves. 

5.    Utilize the Hydraulic Model to generate HGL exhibits for the proposed Pump Station 11B pipeline. 

6.    Perform a Life Cycle Cost Assessment for the Pump Station 11B pipeline evaluating up to three 

pipeline diameters. Prepare a Technical Memorandum on Pipeline Diameter Life Cycle Cost 

Assessment. 

 

C. SURVEYING: FNI will retain and monitor and direct, through a subcontract, the efforts of a survey firm 

to provide the following services: 

1.    Topographic Survey of the entire PS11B/NWTP site. Utility surveying to accompany SUE. 

2.    Establish 6 control points for use during construction. 

3.    Establish and mark boundary lines of property.  Provide Survey and Flood Certificate as needed for 

building permit from the City. 

 

D.  SUBSURFACE UTILITY ENGINEERING: FNI will retain and monitor and direct, through a subcontract the 

efforts of a Subsurface Utility Engineering Firm to provide the following services: 

1.    Subsurface Utility Engineering: Designate utilities (x, y) for the Pump Station 11B/NWTP Site for the 

area shown in the attached map exhibit.  Designation shall be level B. 

2.    Level A SUE for up to 5 utilities (x, y, z) to be determined by the Engineer.  Excavations shall be by 

vacuum excavator. 

 

E. ENVIRONMENTAL EVALUATION: ENGINEER will provide the following professional services, with the 

development of the Project, as follows:  

1. Conduct Pedestrian Survey – ENGINEER’S environmental scientist will conduct a site visit at the 

Pump Station 11B to document existing environmental conditions and assess potential 

environmental impacts. Prior to the site visit, environmental scientist will assemble and review data 

such as aerial photographs, topographic maps, National Wetlands Inventory (NWI) maps, and soils 



 

FNI Professional Agreement                                                                                                                                                                            Page 9 of 20 

data.  The presence and locations of waterbodies, including wetlands, potential federally-listed 

threatened and endangered species habitat, and vegetation cover types will be identified within 

the proposed project areas.  

2. Prepare Environmental Permitting Memorandum – Information gathered during the pedestrian 

survey and coordination with the Project Engineers will be used to prepare one technical 

memorandum for the Pump Station 11B site. The memo will document what, if any, environmental 

permits/authorizations are required. The memorandum will include the hydrologic characterization 

of waterbodies and an opinion on their potential jurisdictional status related to Section 404 of the 

Clean Water Act. 

 

F.  CATHODIC PROTECTION SERVICES: ENGINEER will provide the following professional services, with the 

development of the Project, as follows:  

1.  Field Evaluation for the Pump Station 11B yard piping. 

a. Review site plans, geotechnical reports, proposed pipeline alignment and materials, foreign 

pipeline crossing, parallel systems and existing cathodic protection systems, Electrical High 

Voltage (EHV) transmission lines, railroad crossings, sources of stray DC current, topography, 

soil types and conditions. 

b. Conduct in-situ soil resistivity & pH testing (every 1,000 feet). Conduct stray current (DC) 

investigation in proposed alignment.  The purpose of performing this investigation is to 

identify potential sources of stray current and nearby metallic pipelines that may be affected 

by the proposed cathodic protection system. 

i.    If geotechnical report indicates soil resistivities along proposed alignment are less than 

1,000 ohm-cm, soil samples (maximum 10 samples) from those locations will be sent to 

HDR Laboratories to be tested for AS-received and saturated electrical resistivity per 

ASTM G-187 and pH as per ASTM G-51, and Chemical analysis for major anions and 

cations as per ASTM 4327, ASTM 6919, and AWWA 41108 

ii.    Analyze collected data and prepare a technical memorandum.  The memorandum will 

provide conclusions and recommendations for cathodic protection based on the field 

soil conditions, collected data and laboratory data with respect to the proposed 

pipeline materials. 

2.  Cathodic Protection Design for the Pump Station 11B Yard Piping 



 

FNI Professional Agreement                                                                                                                                                                            Page 10 of 20 

a. Provide 60%, 90% and 100% cathodic protection design (steel/PCCP) details and specifications 

to be included in Bid Package B. 

 

G. SURGE ANALYSIS: Perform a surge analysis of the Pump Station 11B discharge pipelines from the 

proposed Pump Station 11B pump station to the proposed West Pressure Zone and to the existing PS4 

GST. 

1.  ENGINEER will prepare a surge model of the Pump Station 11B Pump Station and Pipeline. The 

model will be based upon existing and proposed pipelines and proposed pumping equipment.  

The model will evaluate the following scenarios: 

(a) Normal Pump Station Stop - 30 MGD (ultimate flow); 

(b)Normal Pump Station Start - 30 MGD (ultimate flow); 

(c)Pump Trip - two pumps running with one pump trip; and 

(d)Power Fail - two pumps running with power failure; 

2.  Based on surge model, ENGINEER will prepare recommendation to reduce surge pressures, if 

needed.  This may include operational changes, control valves, air valves, valve timing, or other 

approaches; 

3.  ENGINEER will evaluate existing pump operation to verify existing pumps are operating within 

reasonable efficiencies and flow conditions.  ENGINEER will prepare a preliminary selection for 

proposed engine driven pumps, and verify pumps operate within allowable flows and pressures.  

The OWNER will provide desired flow rates for proposed pumps; and 

4.  ENGINEER will prepare a cost comparison of emergency generators and engine drive pumps 

based upon flow requirements provided by OWNER. 

H.   Pump Station Hydraulic Physical Model 

Contract with a research hydraulic laboratory to develop a physical model of the pump station in 

accordance with the Hydraulic Institute (HI) Standards. Proposed improvements from the PDR shall be 

modeled to evaluate the pumps' hydraulic conditions and develop design modifications that may be 

necessary to correct adverse flow phenomena. The professional services in this Task are outlined below: 

a)   Physical Model Design: Develop the physical model based on the 60 percent design submittal. 

Verify pump station elevations and dimensions for areas that are accessible with survey from 

the preliminary design and incorporate into the model.  Assess the suitability of the geometric 

scale of 1:4.125 to meet HI Standards design criteria once final design details are available and 

adjustment, if required. 



 

FNI Professional Agreement                                                                                                                                                                            Page 11 of 20 

b)   Physical Model Construction: Simulate the geometric features in the vicinity of the pumps 

capable of influencing station hydraulics in the model.  

c)   Physical Model Testing: The test program shall consist of three phases – Baseline Testing, 

Design Development Testing, and Documentation Testing. Coordinate operating conditions 

with the ENGINEER prior to commencement of model testing; 

i.        Baseline Testing: The scope shall include a baseline test to define the general flow 

characteristics within the facility for an initially proposed design and identify any 

adverse hydraulic phenomena approaching the pump. Document the source and 

strength of vortices and make measurements to characterize swirl. Up to four test 

scenarios have been assumed for baseline testing. The model testing shall start with 

the shorter can geometry; 

ii.        Design Development Testing: The scope shall include three design modification 

iterations to the physical model using two to three test conditions. Conduct testing 

with the fully modeled Pump No. 1 location. Once a final design is selected, the fully 

modified can and pump shall be moved to locations of Pump Nos. 3 and 5 for final 

documentation testing.  Analysis of additional variations, if required, may be 

authorized as a SPECIAL SERVICE 

iii.        Documentation Testing: The scope shall include the final selected modified design 

approved by the ENGINEER for 12 test scenarios.  

d)   Witness Testing: Conduct a formal one-day witness test at the completion of the model study. 

Witness test shall be held at the testing laboratory to demonstrate the models with and 

without the proposed modifications.  Formal witness testing may also be conducted virtually 

via a live video feed.  Accompany OWNER to witness the physical hydraulic model testing to 

assist in understanding of the hydraulic conditions, limitations, and recommended intake 

modifications;  

e) Prepare a draft and final report to include a summary of model scaling theory, a description of 

the model(s), color photographs and graphics presenting key aspects of the modeling 

program, test procedures, test results and drawings detailing any recommended design 

modifications. Lightly edited video clips collected during the study, which offer a good future 

reference on the model, shall also be provided; and 

f)    Present the results of the physical modeling. The meeting deliverables shall include: 

i.      PowerPoint summary of modeling results, conclusions and recommendations; 



 

FNI Professional Agreement                                                                                                                                                                            Page 12 of 20 

ii.      Video footage of testing in digital format; and 

iii.      Meeting minute summary. 

TIME OF PERFORMANCE:  FNI is authorized to commence work on The Project upon execution of this 

AGREEMENT and agrees to complete the services in accordance with the following schedule: 

 

• Notice to Proceed from Owner – Set by Owner after Council approval 

• Submit Draft Preliminary Design Report – 120 days 

• Submit Final Preliminary Design Report – 30 days after receipt of PDR comments 

• Submit 60% Level Plans – 120 days 

• Submit Early Procurement Package – 14 days after 60% review meeting with City 

• Submit 95% Level Plans and Specifications – 90 days 

• Submit 100% Plans and Specifications – 60 days 

• Close out Design and Bid & Award Phase Services - 548 days (18 months) from the Notice to Proceed 

 

The above schedule is based upon OWNER review of the preliminary design report and other submittals 

within two weeks of submittal. 

       

If FNI’s services are delayed through no fault of FNI, FNI shall be entitled to adjust contract schedule 

consistent with the number of days of delay.  In the event FNI asserts that it is entitled to additional time, it 

shall provide notice to the OWNER as soon as reasonably practicable after the event allegedly causing such 

delay shall occur (“Delay Event”), but in no event to exceed five (5) business days after the occurrence of 

the Delay Event.  FNI shall use and exercise all diligence to promptly remove or remediate such Delay Event.  

In the event notice of the Delay Event shall not be provided as prescribed herein, FNI shall not be entitled 

to relief from schedule as provided in this AGREEMENT.  These delays may include but are not limited to 

delays in OWNER or regulatory reviews, delays on the flow of information to be provided to FNI, except any 

delays occasioned by subcontracts or sub consultants of FNI, and governmental approvals.  These delays 

may result in an adjustment to compensation. 

 



 

FNI Professional Agreement                                                                                                                                                                            Page 13 of 20 

EXHBIT A, PART 2, ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

PUMP STATION 11B 

PRELIMINARY DESIGN & FINAL DESIGN 

 

ADDITIONAL SERVICES:  Additional Services to be performed by FNI, if authorized by Owner, which are not 

included in the above described General Service, Basic Services, and Special Services, are, except as may 

otherwise provided to be performed by FNI, described as follows: 

 

A. Factory witness testing for pumps. 

B. Construction plans and specifications for the Pump Station 11B to West Pressure Zone Pipeline 

other than services detailed in Basic Services. 

C. Right-of-Way acquisition services for the Pump Station 11B to West Pressure Zone pipeline. 

D. Survey and SUE along the Pump Station 11B to West Pressure Zone Pipeline. 

E. Field layouts or the furnishing of construction line and grade surveys. 

F. Providing services to investigate existing conditions or facilities, or to make measured drawings 

thereof, or to verify the accuracy of drawings or other information furnished by Owner. 

G. Making revisions to drawings, specifications or other documents when such revisions are 1) not 

consistent with approvals or instructions previously given by Owner or 2) due to other causes not 

solely within the control of FNI. 

H. Providing consultation concerning the replacement of any Work damaged by fire or other cause 

during the construction and providing services as may be required in connection with the 

replacement of such Work. 

I. Investigations involving consideration of operation, maintenance and overhead expenses, and the 

preparation of rate schedules, earnings and expense statements, feasibility studies, appraisals, 

evaluations, assessment schedules, and material audits or inventories required for certification of 

force account construction performed by Owner. 

J. Providing shop, mill, field or laboratory inspection of materials and equipment.  Observe factory 

tests of equipment at any site remote to the Project or observing tests required as a result of 

equipment failing the initial test. 

K. Preparing Operation and Maintenance Manuals or conducting operator training. 

 

L. Preparing data and reports for assistance to Owner in preparation for hearings before regulatory 



 

FNI Professional Agreement                                                                                                                                                                            Page 14 of 20 

agencies, courts, arbitration panels or any mediator, giving testimony, personally or by deposition, 

and preparations therefore before any regulatory agency, court, arbitration panel or mediator. 

M. Assisting Owner in preparing for, or appearing at litigation, mediation, arbitration, dispute review 

boards, or other legal and/or administrative proceedings in the defense or prosecution of claims 

disputes with Contractor(s). 

N. Performing investigations, studies and analyses of substitutions of equipment and/or materials or 

deviations from the drawings and specifications. 

O. Assisting Owner in the defense or prosecution of litigation in connection with or in addition to 

those services contemplated by this AGREEMENT.  Such services, if any, shall be furnished by FNI on 

a fee basis negotiated by the respective parties outside of and in addition to this AGREEMENT.  This 

provision shall not apply to any expense related to a legal action to which FNI is a party.   

P. Providing environmental support services including the design and implementation of ecological 

baseline studies, environmental monitoring, impact assessment and analyses, permitting 

assistance, and other assistance required to address environmental issues. 

Q. Performing investigations, studies, and analysis of work proposed by construction contractors to 

correct defective work. 

R. Design, contract modifications, studies or analysis required to comply with local, State, Federal or 

other regulatory agencies that become effective after the date of this agreement. 

S. Services required to resolve bid protests or to rebid the projects for any reason other than fault of 

any type or degree of FNI. 

T. Visits to the site in excess of the number of trips included in the General Services, Basic Services, or 

Special Services for periodic site visits, coordination meetings, or contract completion activities. 

U. Providing basic or additional services on an accelerated time schedule.  The scope of this service 

include cost for overtime wages of employees and consultants, inefficiencies in work sequence and 

plotting or reproduction costs directly attributable to an accelerated time schedule directed by the 

Owner. 

V. Providing services made necessary because of unforeseen, concealed, or differing site conditions or 

due to the presence of hazardous substances in any form, except as noted in the scope of services. 

W. Providing value engineering studies or reviews of cost savings proposed by others. 

X. Pre-purchase or preselection or any alternate contract structure or number of contracts other than 

stipulated in Exhibit A – Basic Services. 

Y. Provide any services after the satisfactory conclusion and completion of the General Services, Basic 



 

FNI Professional Agreement                                                                                                                                                                            Page 15 of 20 

Services, and Special Services of the Project. 

Z. Preparation of a Pre-Construction Notification or an Individual Section 404 permit application for 

submittal to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). 

AA. Preparation of a Jurisdictional Determination (JD) Report or a request for a USACE JD. 

BB. Presence/absence surveys for federally listed threatened/endangered species. 

CC. Conducting cultural resources studies or surveys. 

DD. Phase I Environmental Site Assessment. 

EE. Preparation of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP). 

FF. Other environmental permitting assistance or services not specifically described under BASIC 

SERVICES of this scope. 

GG. General and/or Resident Representation during construction. 

HH. Power system’s study. 

II. Environmental assessment & THC coordination for the Pump Station 11B to West Pressure Zone 

pipeline. 

JJ. Bid phase services for Bid Package B. 

KK. Funding assistance. 

 

 



 

FNI Professional Agreement                                                                                                                                                                            Page 16 of 20 

EXHBIT A, PART 3, RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE OWNER 

PUMP STATION 11B 

PRELIMINARY DESIGN & FINAL DESIGN 

 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF OWNER:  Owner shall perform the following in a timely manner so as not to delay the 

services of FNI: 

 

A. Owner recognizes and expects that certain Change Orders, herein so called, may be required.   

 

Any responsibility of Engineer for the costs of Covered Changed Orders will be determined on the 

basis of applicable contractual obligations and professional liability standards.  For purposes of this 

paragraph, the responsibility of Engineer for the costs of Change Orders will not include: 

• any costs that Owner would have incurred if the Change Order work had been included 

originally in the Contract Documents and its lack of inclusion was not due, in whole or in 

part, to any fault, error, or omission of Engineer related thereto, 

• Any costs that are due to unforeseen site conditions, or 

• Any costs that are due to changes made by the Owner. 

• Any costs that are incurred due to the negligence of the construction contractor 

Wherever used in this document, the term Engineer includes Engineer’s officers, directors, 

partners, employees, agents, and Engineers Consultants. 

B. Designate in writing a person to act as Owner’s representative with respect to the services to be 

rendered under this AGREEMENT.  Such person shall have contract authority to transmit 

instructions, receive information, interpret and define Owner’s policies and decisions with respect 

to FNI’s services for the Project. 

C. Provide all criteria and full information as to Owner’s requirements for the Project, including design 

objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance requirements, flexibility and 

expandability, and any budgetary limitations; and furnish copies of all design and construction 

standards which Owner will require to be included in the drawings and specifications. 

D. Assist FNI by placing at FNI’s disposal all available information pertinent to the Project including 

previous reports and any other data relative to design or construction of the Project as provided in 

this AGREEMENT. 

 



 

FNI Professional Agreement                                                                                                                                                                            Page 17 of 20 

E. Arrange for access to and make all provisions for FNI to enter upon public and private property as 

required for FNI to perform services under this AGREEMENT. 

F. Examine all studies, reports, sketches, drawings, specifications, proposals and other documents 

presented by FNI, obtain advice of an attorney, insurance counselor and other consultants as 

Owner deems appropriate for such examination and render in writing decisions pertaining thereto 

within a reasonable time so as not to delay the services of FNI. 

G. Furnish approvals and permits from all governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the 

Project and such approvals and consents from others as may be necessary for completion of the 

Project, except as otherwise the responsibility of FNI as provided in this AGREEEMENT. 

H. Give prompt written notice to FNI whenever Owner observes or otherwise becomes aware of any 

development that affects the scope or timing of FNI’s services. 

I. Furnish, or direct FNI to provide, Additional Services as stipulated in Exhibit “A,” Part 2, if deemed 

necessary by Owner. 

J. Bear all costs incident to compliance with the requirements of this Exhibit “A”, Part 3. 

K. Provide the following services, unless provided specifically otherwise in this AGREEMENT: 

 

a. Provide land acquisition services. 

b. Pay all permits fees and mitigation cost. 

c. Provide land title research and title policy. 

d. Provide advertisement for bids in local publications as required.   

 



 

FNI Professional Agreement                                                                                                                                                                            Page 18 of 20 

EXHIBIT B, PART 1 – BUDGET 

PUMP STATION 11B 

PRELIMINARY DESIGN & FINAL DESIGN 

 

CITY and ENGINEER have established a not-to-exceed budget of $1,682,955 to complete all services under 

this AGREEMENT. This amount will not be exceeded without a contract amendment. CITY will pay the 

ENGINEER hourly, for services identified in Exhibit A, based on ENGINEER’S Fee Schedule presented as 

EXHIBIT C.  Subconsultant services will be billed at cost to ENGINEER with a 10 percent handling fee.  The 

Budget is presented for the services of ENGINEER under this AGREEMENT are provided in this Exhibit B.  

CITY and ENGINEER agree to allow redistribution of funds between Tasks as appropriate to allow flexibility 

in providing the needed services within the not-to-exceed budget.    

 

ENGINEER agrees to complete these services as delineated above.  Should there be a Change in Scope of 

Work or Time of Performance, then this can result in an amendment to this AGREEMENT which shall be 

negotiated at that time.   

 

The budget assumes that all work will be completed within 548 calendar days from the Notice to Proceed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



 

FNI Professional Agreement                                                                                                                                                                            Page 19 of 20 

EXHIBIT B, PART 2 HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE COMPENSATION 

PUMP STATION 11B 

PRELIMINARY DESIGN & FINAL DESIGN 

 



Freese and Nichols, Inc. City of Lubbock Project Fee Summary

PS 11B

9/26/2024

Detailed Cost Breakdown

Tasks Labor

Sam Meisner Nick Lester Michael McBee Jillian Nava Natalya Restrepo Aaron Litteken Alberto Lara Jr. Jeff Hensley Rebecca Sandoval Kristin Vaught
Electrical Engineer 

II
Peter Bartels Amy Raines Engineer II Julia Whitcraft Parris Jones Homer Saenz

BIM/CAD 

Technician II
Scott Vaughan Adam Young Ai Sexton Engineer II Andrew Franko Stephen Johnson Marissa  Bradley

Senior Advisor Client Rep PM APM WTU - EIT CAD/Revit CAD/Revit Elec QA/QC Sr Elec PE Elec PE Elec EIT Str QA/QC Str PE Str EIT Str Revit Arc QA/QC Arc Arc Revit Plbg QC HVAC QC MP Sr MP Jr HYDR QA/QC HYDR HYDR EIT

Project Management

Client Meetings (18) 12 138 72 72 6 18 18 18

Meetings with other Entities (2) 8 8 8

Budgeting and Scheduling 18

Updates to COL Staff / Council 9 9 18

Billing and Monthly BST Reports (18 Months) 18 18

Contract/Subcontract Management 4 8

Permits 2 4 8 4 8 4 8 8 8

PS Preliminary Design 

Develop primary operating scenarios 2 2 4

System and Site Hydraulics 2 1 4

Develop System Curves 2 1 4 4 8 24

Research and Develop Pump Curves 1 4 4

Flow Control valve evaluation 2 4

Life Cycle Comparisions 1 4

Prepare Exhibits 12 12 24

Pump Selection Studies 

   a) Develop memo and curves for vendors 2 12 12 4 12

   b) Correspond with Vendors 1 8

   c) Review vendor selections 2 8 8

Pump Control Valve Selection 1 4

Miscellaneous Equipment Selections (Valves, etc. ) 1 4

Site Work 

   a) Site Layout Plans 4 12 8 12

   b) Yard Piping Layout 2 8 8 12

   c) Roads, Electrical and Drainage 2 8 8

   d) Pump Station Siting Options (2) 8 16 8 12

   e) Site Details 2 8 16 8

   f) Coordinate with Geotech 2 8

Pump Station Layout 

   a) Size Piping and Valves 2 12 16 12

   b) Floor Plan Layout 4 16 16 24

   c) Section Layouts 4 16 16 24

   d) Preliminary Surge Control Layout 2 8 8 8

Prepare P&ID's 2 12 12 8 16 8 8

Prepare Control Narratives 8 12 12 8 16

Cost Estimates 4 8 24 10 2 6

Construction Sequencing 4 12 16 8 2

Prepare Preliminary Design Report 4 16 48 16 36 24 4

Generator Analysis 4 10 20

Develop 2 Options for connecting to Existing Genset 

& Provisions for Future Genset 
24 16

Elec Room and Site Layout (includes for Genset 

options above) 
40 20

Coord with Lead group on Pump Sizes and Layout 4

Coord with Mfrs (Starters, Gear dimensions) 16

Coord with Electric Utility Company 8

Structural Preliminary Design 40 24 60

Architectural Preliminary Design 8 10 40

Mechanical/HVAC Preliminary Design 12 24

Quality Control QA/QC Review 8 8 8 4 4 4 8

PS Final Design 

Internal Meetings/Coordination 3 6 8 8 2 6 4 12

General Sheets 1 4 4 8 8 30

Site Plans 1 4 4 8 8 15

Grading and Drainage 1 4 4 8 8 30

Site Vaults 1 2 4 4 8 15

Site Piping 1 4 8 24 24 60

Floor Plans 1 4 8 12 12 30

Section View 1 2 4 4 4 15

Hydraulic System Plan and Details 1 2 4 4 4 15

Site Details 1 4 16 20 32 90

Pump Station Details 1 4 16 24 32 45

Fire Protection Standards and Coordination 1 2 8 12

Coordinate Pump Control Logic 1 8 16 16 8 4

Coordinate Instrumentation and Operation 1 8 20 20 12 4

Specification Preparation 2 4 24 40 80 44 80 2 4 16

Review of other LUB projects for consistency  across 

sites for SCADA, I&C, Security/Access 
10 20

Place Major Gear in Revit Model for Elec Rm 20

Coord with Electric Utility Company 8 8

Coord with Structural/HVAC 6 6

Coord with Mfrs (Starters, Gear dimensions) 4 4

Coordination on Genset 4 4

Calculations - Cable/Conduit 3 3

Lighting Calcs. Design and Controls 5 30

ELEC Drawings - Legend I/II and Set-up 1 8

Overall Site Plan 8 12

Demo Plan/Demo One-Line Diagram 5 5

Power Plan 11 16

HVAC Plan 5 8

I&C Plan 8 15

Lighting/Receptacle Plan 2 12

Grounding Plan & CT Plan 4 5

One-Line Diagram 3 5

Pump Control Schematic 6 6

Control Schematics I thru II 4 8

Interconnections & Network Diagram 5 6

Panelboard & Lighting Schedules 3 4

Details I thru IV 2 6

Valve Vault Site 12 16

Valve Vault Plan and One-line Diagram 26 26

P&I Drawings - Legend I/II and Set-up 2

Basic Services 1,682,955$                             

Special Services -$                                        

Task

Start Date 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

End Date 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

Total Project 1,682,955$                             

Effort Curve 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

Activity
Basic or 

Special
Task Description

1 of 8 C:\Users\02287\OneDrive - Freese and Nichols, Inc\Documents\Book1 9/26/2024

172139
Text Box
Exhibit B



Freese and Nichols, Inc. City of Lubbock Project Fee Summary

PS 11B

9/26/2024

Detailed Cost Breakdown

Tasks Labor

Sam Meisner Nick Lester Michael McBee Jillian Nava Natalya Restrepo Aaron Litteken Alberto Lara Jr. Jeff Hensley Rebecca Sandoval Kristin Vaught
Electrical Engineer 

II
Peter Bartels Amy Raines Engineer II Julia Whitcraft Parris Jones Homer Saenz

BIM/CAD 

Technician II
Scott Vaughan Adam Young Ai Sexton Engineer II Andrew Franko Stephen Johnson Marissa  Bradley

Senior Advisor Client Rep PM APM WTU - EIT CAD/Revit CAD/Revit Elec QA/QC Sr Elec PE Elec PE Elec EIT Str QA/QC Str PE Str EIT Str Revit Arc QA/QC Arc Arc Revit Plbg QC HVAC QC MP Sr MP Jr HYDR QA/QC HYDR HYDR EIT

Basic Services 1,682,955$                             

Special Services -$                                        

Task

Start Date 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

End Date 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

Total Project 1,682,955$                             

Effort Curve 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

Activity
Basic or 

Special
Task Description

Overall Process Diagram 2 3

Loop Diagram I 5 10

Loop Diagram II thru IV 6 6

At each Deliverable - Print Specs/Dwgs 12 12

Electrical Power System Prelim Studies 16 50

Structural Final Design 272 272 240

Architectural Final Design 24 60 350

Mechanical/HVAC Final Design 60 172

Quality Control QA/QC Review 24 24 6 16 12 12 12

Quality Control Constructability Reviews 

Cost Estimates 1 6 4 8 16 4 9 2 8 2 8 2 2 8

Demo of Clearwell and Wash Water Tank

Demo of Clearwell and Wash Water Tank Plans 8 12 16 40 8 16

Demo of Wash Water Tank Plans 4 6 8 20 8 16

Demo Specifications 8 12 16 8 16

Quality Control QA/QC Review 4 8

Quality Control Constructability Reviews 

Cost Estimates 2 4 8 8

Bid and Award - PS Early Procurement

Bidding Assistance, Evaluation, & Meetings 10 10 5 25 25 5

Special Services

Survey and SUE

Geotechnical

Physical Hydraulic Modeling

Environmental

Surge

Hydraulic Modeling 18 34 112

Cathodic Protection

                  58                 101                 448                 627                 658                 163                 488                   29                 444                 527                     5              32             342              368               300               48              78             412                      20                16                90          240                   44                  64                  148 

Total Effort

Total Hours / Quantity

2 of 8 C:\Users\02287\OneDrive - Freese and Nichols, Inc\Documents\Book1 9/26/2024



Freese and Nichols, Inc. City of Lubbock

PS 11B

9/26/2024

Detailed Cost Breakdown

Tasks

Project Management

Client Meetings (18)

Meetings with other Entities (2)

Budgeting and Scheduling 

Updates to COL Staff / Council 

Billing and Monthly BST Reports (18 Months) 

Contract/Subcontract Management

Permits 

PS Preliminary Design 

Develop primary operating scenarios 

System and Site Hydraulics 

Develop System Curves

Research and Develop Pump Curves 

Flow Control valve evaluation 

Life Cycle Comparisions 

Prepare Exhibits

Pump Selection Studies 

   a) Develop memo and curves for vendors 

   b) Correspond with Vendors 

   c) Review vendor selections 

Pump Control Valve Selection 

Miscellaneous Equipment Selections (Valves, etc. ) 

Site Work 

   a) Site Layout Plans 

   b) Yard Piping Layout 

   c) Roads, Electrical and Drainage 

   d) Pump Station Siting Options (2)

   e) Site Details 

   f) Coordinate with Geotech 

Pump Station Layout 

   a) Size Piping and Valves 

   b) Floor Plan Layout 

   c) Section Layouts 

   d) Preliminary Surge Control Layout 

Prepare P&ID's 

Prepare Control Narratives 

Cost Estimates 

Construction Sequencing 

Prepare Preliminary Design Report 

Generator Analysis 

Develop 2 Options for connecting to Existing Genset 

& Provisions for Future Genset 

Elec Room and Site Layout (includes for Genset 

options above) 

Coord with Lead group on Pump Sizes and Layout 

Coord with Mfrs (Starters, Gear dimensions) 

Coord with Electric Utility Company 

Structural Preliminary Design 

Architectural Preliminary Design 

Mechanical/HVAC Preliminary Design 

Quality Control QA/QC Review 

PS Final Design 

Internal Meetings/Coordination 

General Sheets 

Site Plans 

Grading and Drainage 

Site Vaults 

Site Piping 

Floor Plans 

Section View 

Hydraulic System Plan and Details 

Site Details 

Pump Station Details 

Fire Protection Standards and Coordination 

Coordinate Pump Control Logic 

Coordinate Instrumentation and Operation 

Specification Preparation 

Review of other LUB projects for consistency  across 

sites for SCADA, I&C, Security/Access 

Place Major Gear in Revit Model for Elec Rm 

Coord with Electric Utility Company 

Coord with Structural/HVAC

Coord with Mfrs (Starters, Gear dimensions) 

Coordination on Genset 

Calculations - Cable/Conduit 

Lighting Calcs. Design and Controls 

ELEC Drawings - Legend I/II and Set-up 

Overall Site Plan 

Demo Plan/Demo One-Line Diagram 

Power Plan 

HVAC Plan 

I&C Plan 

Lighting/Receptacle Plan 

Grounding Plan & CT Plan 

One-Line Diagram 

Pump Control Schematic 

Control Schematics I thru II 

Interconnections & Network Diagram 

Panelboard & Lighting Schedules 

Details I thru IV 

Valve Vault Site 

Valve Vault Plan and One-line Diagram 

P&I Drawings - Legend I/II and Set-up 

Task

Start Date 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

End Date 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

Effort Curve 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

Activity
Basic or 

Special
Task Description

Mike Shiflett Russ Springer Aaron Brewer Margo Knapp
BIM/CAD 

Designer II
Engineer III Kimberly Buckley Ben Hagood Heath Myers Brian King Ron Deal Tom Hill

Rebecca 

Peters
James Naylor Chris Jones Matthew Weaver Jane Jenks

GEO QA/QC GEO GEO GEO SUPPORT GEO CAD GEO EIT ENV QA/QC ENV ENV ENV CP SR SURGE SURGE TREATMENT SR CONST CONST SUPPORT

-$                 

24 378 85,116$           

24 4,768$             

18 4,176$             

36 6,894$             

36 7,668$             

12 2,480$             

54 9,776$             

-$                 

-$                 

8 1,910$             

7 1,678$             

43 8,294$             

9 1,688$             

6 1,240$             

5 1,008$             

48 7,056$             

-$                 

42 7,800$             

9 1,784$             

18 3,376$             

5 1,008$             

5 1,008$             

-$                 

8 44 8,640$             

30 4,720$             

18 2,912$             

44 7,664$             

34 5,632$             

10 2,016$             

-$                 

42 7,768$             

60 11,264$           

60 11,264$           

26 4,880$             

66 12,144$           

56 12,048$           

54 10,730$           

4 8 54 10,960$           

148 26,640$           

34 8,680$             

40 10,192$           

60 15,440$           

4 1,080$             

16 4,320$             

8 2,160$             

124 26,160$           

58 9,536$             

36 6,408$             

4 2 50 15,868$           

-$                 

49 10,061$           

55 8,875$             

40 7,195$             

55 8,875$             

34 5,749$             

121 18,987$           

67 11,259$           

30 5,069$             

30 5,069$             

163 24,787$           

122 23,943$           

23 5,189$             

53 12,271$           

65 14,655$           

296 63,414$           

30 7,340$             

20 4,640$             

16 4,016$             

12 3,012$             

8 2,008$             

8 2,008$             

6 1,506$             

35 8,310$             

9 2,126$             

20 4,944$             

10 2,510$             

27 6,682$             

13 3,206$             

23 5,640$             

14 3,324$             

9 2,240$             

8 1,970$             

12 3,012$             

12 2,936$             

11 2,742$             

7 1,738$             

8 1,932$             

28 6,952$             

52 13,052$           

2 464$                

Total Hours
Total Labor 

Effort

3 of 8 C:\Users\02287\OneDrive - Freese and Nichols, Inc\Documents\Book1 9/26/2024



Freese and Nichols, Inc. City of Lubbock

PS 11B

9/26/2024

Detailed Cost Breakdown

Tasks

Project Management

Task

Start Date 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

End Date 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

Effort Curve 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

Activity
Basic or 

Special
Task Description

Overall Process Diagram 

Loop Diagram I 

Loop Diagram II thru IV

At each Deliverable - Print Specs/Dwgs

Electrical Power System Prelim Studies 

Structural Final Design 

Architectural Final Design 

Mechanical/HVAC Final Design 

Quality Control QA/QC Review 

Quality Control Constructability Reviews 

Cost Estimates 

Demo of Clearwell and Wash Water Tank

Demo of Clearwell and Wash Water Tank Plans

Demo of Wash Water Tank Plans

Demo Specifications

Quality Control QA/QC Review 

Quality Control Constructability Reviews 

Cost Estimates 

Bid and Award - PS Early Procurement

Bidding Assistance, Evaluation, & Meetings

Special Services

Survey and SUE

Geotechnical

Physical Hydraulic Modeling

Environmental

Surge

Hydraulic Modeling

Cathodic Protection

Total Effort

Total Hours / Quantity

Mike Shiflett Russ Springer Aaron Brewer Margo Knapp
BIM/CAD 

Designer II
Engineer III Kimberly Buckley Ben Hagood Heath Myers Brian King Ron Deal Tom Hill

Rebecca 

Peters
James Naylor Chris Jones Matthew Weaver Jane Jenks

GEO QA/QC GEO GEO GEO SUPPORT GEO CAD GEO EIT ENV QA/QC ENV ENV ENV CP SR SURGE SURGE TREATMENT SR CONST CONST SUPPORT

Total Hours
Total Labor 

Effort

5 1,236$             

15 3,670$             

12 3,012$             

24 6,024$             

66 15,920$           

784 164,800$         

434 61,328$           

232 40,880$           

8 114 37,494$           

4 4 16 24 5,908$             

80 16,863$           

-$                 

100 16,264$           

8 70 13,252$           

60 11,784$           

12 4,020$             

4 4 1,340$             

22 3,960$             

-$                 

-$                 

20 100 22,155$           

-$                 

-$                 

-$                 

7 32 76 12 2 19 148 31,027$           

-$                 

1 20 6 1 28 6,306$             

40 200 240 67,400$           

-$                 

164 31,788$           

48 48 12,960$           

-$                 

           11                32               76               12                2                    19                  3            20                6             1             48             40           200              -                      60                      4                    24                    20 6,328             

1,300,953$      

4 of 8 C:\Users\02287\OneDrive - Freese and Nichols, Inc\Documents\Book1 9/26/2024



Freese and Nichols, Inc. City of Lubbock

PS 11B

9/26/2024

Detailed Cost Breakdown

Tasks

Project Management

Client Meetings (18)

Meetings with other Entities (2)

Budgeting and Scheduling 

Updates to COL Staff / Council 

Billing and Monthly BST Reports (18 Months) 

Contract/Subcontract Management

Permits 

PS Preliminary Design 

Develop primary operating scenarios 

System and Site Hydraulics 

Develop System Curves

Research and Develop Pump Curves 

Flow Control valve evaluation 

Life Cycle Comparisions 

Prepare Exhibits

Pump Selection Studies 

   a) Develop memo and curves for vendors 

   b) Correspond with Vendors 

   c) Review vendor selections 

Pump Control Valve Selection 

Miscellaneous Equipment Selections (Valves, etc. ) 

Site Work 

   a) Site Layout Plans 

   b) Yard Piping Layout 

   c) Roads, Electrical and Drainage 

   d) Pump Station Siting Options (2)

   e) Site Details 

   f) Coordinate with Geotech 

Pump Station Layout 

   a) Size Piping and Valves 

   b) Floor Plan Layout 

   c) Section Layouts 

   d) Preliminary Surge Control Layout 

Prepare P&ID's 

Prepare Control Narratives 

Cost Estimates 

Construction Sequencing 

Prepare Preliminary Design Report 

Generator Analysis 

Develop 2 Options for connecting to Existing Genset 

& Provisions for Future Genset 

Elec Room and Site Layout (includes for Genset 

options above) 

Coord with Lead group on Pump Sizes and Layout 

Coord with Mfrs (Starters, Gear dimensions) 

Coord with Electric Utility Company 

Structural Preliminary Design 

Architectural Preliminary Design 

Mechanical/HVAC Preliminary Design 

Quality Control QA/QC Review 

PS Final Design 

Internal Meetings/Coordination 

General Sheets 

Site Plans 

Grading and Drainage 

Site Vaults 

Site Piping 

Floor Plans 

Section View 

Hydraulic System Plan and Details 

Site Details 

Pump Station Details 

Fire Protection Standards and Coordination 

Coordinate Pump Control Logic 

Coordinate Instrumentation and Operation 

Specification Preparation 

Review of other LUB projects for consistency  across 

sites for SCADA, I&C, Security/Access 

Place Major Gear in Revit Model for Elec Rm 

Coord with Electric Utility Company 

Coord with Structural/HVAC

Coord with Mfrs (Starters, Gear dimensions) 

Coordination on Genset 

Calculations - Cable/Conduit 

Lighting Calcs. Design and Controls 

ELEC Drawings - Legend I/II and Set-up 

Overall Site Plan 

Demo Plan/Demo One-Line Diagram 

Power Plan 

HVAC Plan 

I&C Plan 

Lighting/Receptacle Plan 

Grounding Plan & CT Plan 

One-Line Diagram 

Pump Control Schematic 

Control Schematics I thru II 

Interconnections & Network Diagram 

Panelboard & Lighting Schedules 

Details I thru IV 

Valve Vault Site 

Valve Vault Plan and One-line Diagram 

P&I Drawings - Legend I/II and Set-up 

Task

Start Date 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

End Date 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

Effort Curve 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

Activity
Basic or 

Special
Task Description

Project Fee Summary

Expenses

-$                 

378 1,800 1,080 3,600 10800 21,447$           

24 204$                

18 153$                

36 306$                

36 306$                

12 102$                

54 459$                

-$                 

-$                 

8 68$                  

7 60$                  

43 366$                

9 77$                  

6 51$                  

5 43$                  

48 408$                

-$                 

42 357$                

9 77$                  

18 153$                

5 43$                  

5 43$                  

-$                 

44 374$                

30 255$                

18 153$                

44 374$                

34 289$                

10 85$                  

-$                 

42 357$                

60 510$                

60 510$                

26 221$                

66 561$                

56 476$                

54 459$                

54 459$                

148 1,258$             

34 289$                

40 340$                

60 510$                

4 34$                  

16 136$                

8 68$                  

124 1,054$             

58 493$                

36 306$                

50 425$                

-$                 

49 417$                

55 468$                

40 340$                

55 468$                

34 289$                

121 1,029$             

67 570$                

30 255$                

30 255$                

163 1,386$             

122 1,037$             

23 196$                

53 451$                

65 553$                

296 2,516$             

30 255$                

20 170$                

16 136$                

12 102$                

8 68$                  

8 68$                  

6 51$                  

35 298$                

9 77$                  

20 170$                

10 85$                  

27 230$                

13 111$                

23 196$                

14 119$                

9 77$                  

8 68$                  

12 102$                

12 102$                

11 94$                  

7 60$                  

8 68$                  

28 238$                

52 442$                

2 17$                  

Basic Services 1,682,955                               

1,682,955                               

Special Services -                                          

Total Project

Tech Charge Miles Meals Hotel Flight
Total Expense 

Effort

5 of 8 C:\Users\02287\OneDrive - Freese and Nichols, Inc\Documents\Book1 9/26/2024



Freese and Nichols, Inc. City of Lubbock

PS 11B

9/26/2024

Detailed Cost Breakdown

Tasks

Project Management

Task

Start Date 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

End Date 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

Effort Curve 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

Activity
Basic or 

Special
Task Description

Overall Process Diagram 

Loop Diagram I 

Loop Diagram II thru IV

At each Deliverable - Print Specs/Dwgs

Electrical Power System Prelim Studies 

Structural Final Design 

Architectural Final Design 

Mechanical/HVAC Final Design 

Quality Control QA/QC Review 

Quality Control Constructability Reviews 

Cost Estimates 

Demo of Clearwell and Wash Water Tank

Demo of Clearwell and Wash Water Tank Plans

Demo of Wash Water Tank Plans

Demo Specifications

Quality Control QA/QC Review 

Quality Control Constructability Reviews 

Cost Estimates 

Bid and Award - PS Early Procurement

Bidding Assistance, Evaluation, & Meetings

Special Services

Survey and SUE

Geotechnical

Physical Hydraulic Modeling

Environmental

Surge

Hydraulic Modeling

Cathodic Protection

Total Effort

Total Hours / Quantity

Project Fee Summary

Expenses

Basic Services 1,682,955                               

1,682,955                               

Special Services -                                          

Total Project

Tech Charge Miles Meals Hotel Flight
Total Expense 

Effort

5 43$                  

15 128$                

12 102$                

24 204$                

66 561$                

784 6,664$             

434 3,689$             

232 1,972$             

114 969$                

24 204$                

80 680$                

-$                 

100 850$                

70 595$                

60 510$                

12 102$                

4 34$                  

22 187$                

-$                 

-$                 

100 850$                

-$                 

-$                 

-$                 

148 1,258$             

-$                 

28 1200 1,558$             

240 2,040$             

-$                 

164 1,394$             

48 600 1,068$             

-$                 

6,328             1,800             1,080             3,600             12,600           

53,788$         1,206$           1,188$           3,960$           13,860$         74,002$           

6 of 8 C:\Users\02287\OneDrive - Freese and Nichols, Inc\Documents\Book1 9/26/2024



Freese and Nichols, Inc. City of Lubbock

PS 11B

9/26/2024

Detailed Cost Breakdown

Tasks

Project Management

Client Meetings (18)

Meetings with other Entities (2)

Budgeting and Scheduling 

Updates to COL Staff / Council 

Billing and Monthly BST Reports (18 Months) 

Contract/Subcontract Management

Permits 

PS Preliminary Design 

Develop primary operating scenarios 

System and Site Hydraulics 

Develop System Curves

Research and Develop Pump Curves 

Flow Control valve evaluation 

Life Cycle Comparisions 

Prepare Exhibits

Pump Selection Studies 

   a) Develop memo and curves for vendors 

   b) Correspond with Vendors 

   c) Review vendor selections 

Pump Control Valve Selection 

Miscellaneous Equipment Selections (Valves, etc. ) 

Site Work 

   a) Site Layout Plans 

   b) Yard Piping Layout 

   c) Roads, Electrical and Drainage 

   d) Pump Station Siting Options (2)

   e) Site Details 

   f) Coordinate with Geotech 

Pump Station Layout 

   a) Size Piping and Valves 

   b) Floor Plan Layout 

   c) Section Layouts 

   d) Preliminary Surge Control Layout 

Prepare P&ID's 

Prepare Control Narratives 

Cost Estimates 

Construction Sequencing 

Prepare Preliminary Design Report 

Generator Analysis 

Develop 2 Options for connecting to Existing Genset 

& Provisions for Future Genset 

Elec Room and Site Layout (includes for Genset 

options above) 

Coord with Lead group on Pump Sizes and Layout 

Coord with Mfrs (Starters, Gear dimensions) 

Coord with Electric Utility Company 

Structural Preliminary Design 

Architectural Preliminary Design 

Mechanical/HVAC Preliminary Design 

Quality Control QA/QC Review 

PS Final Design 

Internal Meetings/Coordination 

General Sheets 

Site Plans 

Grading and Drainage 

Site Vaults 

Site Piping 

Floor Plans 

Section View 

Hydraulic System Plan and Details 

Site Details 

Pump Station Details 

Fire Protection Standards and Coordination 

Coordinate Pump Control Logic 

Coordinate Instrumentation and Operation 

Specification Preparation 

Review of other LUB projects for consistency  across 

sites for SCADA, I&C, Security/Access 

Place Major Gear in Revit Model for Elec Rm 

Coord with Electric Utility Company 

Coord with Structural/HVAC

Coord with Mfrs (Starters, Gear dimensions) 

Coordination on Genset 

Calculations - Cable/Conduit 

Lighting Calcs. Design and Controls 

ELEC Drawings - Legend I/II and Set-up 

Overall Site Plan 

Demo Plan/Demo One-Line Diagram 

Power Plan 

HVAC Plan 

I&C Plan 

Lighting/Receptacle Plan 

Grounding Plan & CT Plan 

One-Line Diagram 

Pump Control Schematic 

Control Schematics I thru II 

Interconnections & Network Diagram 

Panelboard & Lighting Schedules 

Details I thru IV 

Valve Vault Site 

Valve Vault Plan and One-line Diagram 

P&I Drawings - Legend I/II and Set-up 

Task

Start Date 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

End Date 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

Effort Curve 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

Activity
Basic or 

Special
Task Description

Project Fee Summary

Subconsultants Total

-$                 -$                 

-$                 106,563$         

-$                 4,972$             

-$                 4,329$             

-$                 7,200$             

-$                 7,974$             

-$                 2,582$             

-$                 10,235$           

-$                 -$                 

-$                 -$                 

-$                 1,978$             

-$                 1,738$             

-$                 8,660$             

-$                 1,765$             

-$                 1,291$             

-$                 1,051$             

-$                 7,464$             

-$                 -$                 

-$                 8,157$             

-$                 1,861$             

-$                 3,529$             

-$                 1,051$             

-$                 1,051$             

-$                 -$                 

-$                 9,014$             

-$                 4,975$             

-$                 3,065$             

-$                 8,038$             

-$                 5,921$             

-$                 2,101$             

-$                 -$                 

-$                 8,125$             

-$                 11,774$           

-$                 11,774$           

-$                 5,101$             

-$                 12,705$           

-$                 12,524$           

-$                 11,189$           

-$                 11,419$           

-$                 27,898$           

-$                 8,969$             

-$                 10,532$           

-$                 15,950$           

-$                 1,114$             

-$                 4,456$             

-$                 2,228$             

-$                 27,214$           

-$                 10,029$           

-$                 6,714$             

-$                 16,293$           

-$                 -$                 

-$                 10,478$           

-$                 9,343$             

-$                 7,535$             

-$                 9,343$             

-$                 6,038$             

-$                 20,016$           

-$                 11,829$           

-$                 5,324$             

-$                 5,324$             

-$                 26,173$           

-$                 24,980$           

-$                 5,385$             

-$                 12,722$           

-$                 15,208$           

-$                 65,930$           

-$                 7,595$             

-$                 4,810$             

-$                 4,152$             

-$                 3,114$             

-$                 2,076$             

-$                 2,076$             

-$                 1,557$             

-$                 8,608$             

-$                 2,203$             

-$                 5,114$             

-$                 2,595$             

-$                 6,912$             

-$                 3,317$             

-$                 5,836$             

-$                 3,443$             

-$                 2,317$             

-$                 2,038$             

-$                 3,114$             

-$                 3,038$             

-$                 2,836$             

-$                 1,798$             

-$                 2,000$             

-$                 7,190$             

-$                 13,494$           

-$                 481$                

Basic Services

Total Project 1,682,955                                   

1,682,955                                   

Special Services -                                              

Survey/SUE
Total Sub 

Effort
Total EffortAlden Labs

Geotechnical 

Drilling

Geotechnical 

Lab

7 of 8 C:\Users\02287\OneDrive - Freese and Nichols, Inc\Documents\Book1 9/26/2024



Freese and Nichols, Inc. City of Lubbock

PS 11B

9/26/2024

Detailed Cost Breakdown

Tasks

Project Management

Task

Start Date 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

End Date 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

Effort Curve 

(Lookup from 

BST10 Tasks 

tab)

Activity
Basic or 

Special
Task Description

Overall Process Diagram 

Loop Diagram I 

Loop Diagram II thru IV

At each Deliverable - Print Specs/Dwgs

Electrical Power System Prelim Studies 

Structural Final Design 

Architectural Final Design 

Mechanical/HVAC Final Design 

Quality Control QA/QC Review 

Quality Control Constructability Reviews 

Cost Estimates 

Demo of Clearwell and Wash Water Tank

Demo of Clearwell and Wash Water Tank Plans

Demo of Wash Water Tank Plans

Demo Specifications

Quality Control QA/QC Review 

Quality Control Constructability Reviews 

Cost Estimates 

Bid and Award - PS Early Procurement

Bidding Assistance, Evaluation, & Meetings

Special Services

Survey and SUE

Geotechnical

Physical Hydraulic Modeling

Environmental

Surge

Hydraulic Modeling

Cathodic Protection

Total Effort

Total Hours / Quantity

Project Fee Summary

Subconsultants Total

Basic Services

Total Project 1,682,955                                   

1,682,955                                   

Special Services -                                              

Survey/SUE
Total Sub 

Effort
Total EffortAlden Labs

Geotechnical 

Drilling

Geotechnical 

Lab

-$                 1,279$             

-$                 3,798$             

-$                 3,114$             

-$                 6,228$             

-$                 16,481$           

-$                 171,464$         

-$                 65,017$           

-$                 42,852$           

-$                 38,463$           

-$                 6,112$             

-$                 17,543$           

-$                 -$                 

-$                 17,114$           

-$                 13,847$           

-$                 12,294$           

-$                 4,122$             

-$                 1,374$             

-$                 4,147$             

-$                 -$                 

-$                 -$                 

-$                 23,005$           

-$                 -$                 

-$                 -$                 

60,000 66,000$           66,000$           

20,000 10,000 33,000$           65,285$           

190,000 209,000$         209,000$         

-$                 7,864$             

-$                 69,440$           

-$                 -$                 

-$                 33,182$           

-$                 14,028$           

-$                 -$                 

60,000$           190,000$         20,000$           10,000$           -$                 

66,000$           209,000$         22,000$           11,000$           -$                 308,000$         1,682,955$      

8 of 8 C:\Users\02287\OneDrive - Freese and Nichols, Inc\Documents\Book1 9/26/2024



E FOOTHILL ST

E DUBUQUE ST

N
G

U
A

V
A

A
V

N
B

E
E

C
H

A
V

N
D

A
V

ID
A

V

I2
7

N
 I

2
7

E KENT ST

E REGIS ST

N
 G

U
A

V
A

 A
V

N
 C

E
D

A
R

 A
V

N
 M

LK
 J

R
 B

D

M
E

S
A

 R
D

E BLUEFIELD ST

E STONEHILL ST

E HUNTER ST

E PURDUE ST

REGIS ST

E DUBUQUE ST

E FOOTHILL ST

N
 W

A
LN

U
T

 A
V

YUCCA LN

OWEN ST

E LOYOLA ST

N
 O

LI
V

E
 A

V

N
 H

O
LL

Y
 A

VN
 M

A
G

N
O

LI
A

 A
V

BLUEFIELD ST

N
 I

2
7

I2
7

N
 O

LI
V

E
 A

V

CIP 92835 - Pump Station 11B Ü

Existing PS 11

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is
for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal,
engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and represents
only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Pump
Station 11B

Lubbock City Limits

ParcelsExisting Water Mains

Proposed Water Mains

0 250 500 750 1,000
Feet



City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
October 8, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92835
Capital Project Name: Pump Station 11B Design
Encumbered/Expended Budget

City of Lubbock Staff Time  $                                   2,424

Agenda Items, October 8th, 2024
Contract 17634 with FNI for Pump Station 11 Design 1,682,955

Encumbered/Expended To Date                                1,685,379

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Pump Station Improvements                                4,564,621

Remaining Appropriation                                4,564,621

Total Appropriation  $                            6,250,000



Project Scope

This project will demolish Pump Stat ion No.11 and build a new Pump Stat ion 11B to handle  future  anticipated flows for the
City  of Lubbock.

Project Justi�cation

Existing Pump Station 11 serves as the primary pump station for the North Water Treatment Plant. This
pump station is the pump station hub for all distribution of Roberts County Wellfield and Lake Meredith
Water to the City of Lubbock. This pump station was built with the North Water Treatment Plant and
has surpassed its useful service life. In addition, with the continued expansion of the Lubbock Business
Park and the Industrial Rail Port areas by LEDA, sizing of the future pump station will need to be taken
into consideration when this is under rehabilitation.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

FY 2023-24 $1,250,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2023-O0108
FY 2024-25 $5,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2024-O0129

Project Dates Project Location

Bid Date for Design: 01/2024
Award date for Design: 05/2024
Design Completion: 05/2025
Bid Date for Construction: 06/2025
Award date for Construction: 09/2025
Begin Construction : 10/2025
Construction Completion: 10/2027

North Water Treatment Plant

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Bid $1,250,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Construction $0 $5,000,000 $15,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $1,250,000 $5,000,000 $15,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Water/Wastewater Fund Cash $1,250,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Water/Wastewater Fund Revenue Bonds $0 $5,000,000 $15,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $1,250,000 $5,000,000 $15,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92835CIP 92835 Pump Station 11B Pump Station 11B
Replacement FacilityReplacement Facility

Project Manager: Bailey Ratcliffe - EngineeringProject Manager: Bailey Ratcliffe - Engineering



Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 12860 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 5. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 18335, with
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., for an Impact Fee Report Update, including land use assumptions and
capital project plans. 

Item Summary
On June 23, 2020, the City Council, through Resolution No. 2020-R0211, adopted the land use
assumptions and capital improvements plans (capacity plans) associated with the possible future
adoption of impact fees. In accordance with Texas Local Government Code Chapter 395, the Impact Fee
study must be restudied every five (5) years.

On October 27, 2020, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 2020-O0136, amending Title II
Buildings; Development; Property Maintenance, of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, by adding
Chapter 41, Impact Fees. 

On September 24, 2024, the City Council received the semi-annual report from the Capital
Improvements Advisory Committee (CIAC) through Resolution No. 2024-R0432, which included a
recommendation to the City Council to perform an Impact Fee Report Update, including land use
assumptions and capital project plans.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18335 for $289,100, is funded in Capital Improvement Project 8685 Impact Fee Report Update
and 8702 Master Thoroughfare Plan Update.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E., Interim Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 18335 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 



RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK:

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Professional Services Agreement Contract No. 18335 for
an impact fee land use assumptions and capital improvements plan restudy, by and between the
City of Lubbock and Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., and related documents. Said Contract is
attached hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if fully set forth herein and shall be included
in the minutes of the City Council.

Passed by the City Council on

________________________________

MARK W. MCBRAYER, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

7>

Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Cbt’t
Kelli Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

ccdocs/RES.PSA-No. 18335 K1-I impact fee restudy
10.2.24



PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF LUBBOCK §

This Professional Service Agreement (“Agreement”) Contract No. 18335 is entered into this

day of ,2024, is by and between the City of Lubbock (the “City”), a Texas home

rule municipal corporation, and Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., (the” Engineer”), a Texas corporation.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, The City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide professional services for

an Impact Fee Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements Plan Restudy, (the “Activities”); and

WHEREAS, the Engineer has a professional staff experienced and is qualified to provide

professional engineering services related to Activities, and will provide the services, as defined below, for

the price provided herein, said price stipulated by the City and the Engineer to be a fair and reasonable

price; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to contract with the Engineer to provide professional services

related to the Activities, and Engineer desires to provide the Services related to same.

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the terms, covenants and conditions set forth in

this Agreement, the City and the Engineer hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I. TERM

The term of this Agreement commences on the Effective Date and continues without interruption

for a term of 12 months. If the Engineer determines that additional time is required to complete the

Services, the City Engineer, may, but is not obligated to, in his or her discretion, execute an agreement to

grant up to an additional six (6) months of time so long as the amount of the consideration does not increase.

An amendment to this Agreement resulting in an increase in the amount of the consideration must be

approved by the City acting through its governing body.

Page 1 of 11



ARTICLE II. SERVICES AND COMPENSATION

A. The Engineer shall conduct all activities, and within such timeframes, as set forth on Exhibit

“A”, attached hereto (the “Services”).

B. The Engineer shall receive as consideration to be paid for the performance of the Services, in

an amount not to exceed $289,100, as set forth in Exhibit “B”.

ARTICLE III. TERMiNATION

A. General. The City may terminate this Agreement, for any reason or convenience, upon thirty

(30) days written notice to the Engineer. In the event this Agreement is so terminated, the City shall only

pay the Engineer for services actually performed by the Engineer up to the date the Engineer is deemed to

have received notice of termination, as provided herein.

B. Termination and Remedies. In the event the Engineer breaches any term andlor provision of this

Agreement, the City shall be entitled to exercise any right or remedy available to it by this Agreement, at

law, equity, or otherwise, including without limitation, termination of this Agreement and assertion of an

action for damages and/or injunctive relief. The exercise of any right or remedy shall not preclude the

concurrent or subsequent exercise of any right or remedy and all rights and remedies shall be cumulative.

ARTICLE IV. NON - ARBITRATION

The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy available to it by law, contract, equity,

or otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of

competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising

its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive,

and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another

provision in, or related to, this Agreement, this provision shall control.

ARTICLE V. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

A. Existence. The Engineer is a corporation duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing

under the laws of the State of Texas and is qualified to carry on its business in the State of Texas.

B. Corporate Power. The Engineer has the corporate power to enter into and perform this

Agreement and all other activities contemplated hereby.

C. Authorization. Execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement and the activities

contemplated hereby have been duly and validly authorized by all the requisite corporate action on the part

Page 2 of 11



of the Engineer. This Agreement constitutes legal, valid, and binding obligations of the Engineer and is

enforceable in accordance with the terms thereof.

D. Engineer. The Engineer maintains a professional staff and employs, as needed, other qualified

specialists experienced in providing the Services, and is familiar with all laws, rules, and regulations, both

state and federal, including, without limitation the applicable laws, regarding the Activities contemplated

hereby.

E. Performance. The Engineer will and shall conduct all activities contemplated by this Agreement

in accordance with the standard of care, skill and diligence normally provided by a professional person in

performance of similar professional services, and comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations,

both state and federal, relating to professional services, as contemplated hereby.

F. Use of Copyrighted Material. The Engineer warrants that any materials provided by the Engineer

for use by City pursuant to this Agreement shall not contain any proprietary material owned by any other

party that is protected under the Copyright Act or any other law, statute, rule, order, regulation, ordinance

or contractual obligation relating to the use or reproduction of materials. The Engineer shall be solely

responsible for ensuring that any materials provided by the Engineer pursuant to this Agreement satisfy this

requirement and the Engineer agrees to indemnify and hold City harmless from all liability or loss caused

to City or to which City is exposed on account of the Engineer’s failure to perform this duty.

ARTICLE VI. SCOPE OF WORK

The Engineer shall accomplish the following: Professional Services related to the Services, as

provided in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

ARTICLE VII. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS

The Engineer and the City agree that the Engineer shall perform the duties under this Agreement

as an independent contractor and shall be considered as independent contractor under this Agreement and/or

in its activities hereunder for all purposes. The Engineer has the sole discretion to determine the manner in

which the Services are to be performed. During the performance of the Services under this Agreement, the

Engineer and the Engineer’s employees and/or sub-consultants, will not be considered, for any purpose,

employees or agents of the City within the meaning or the application of any federal, state or local law or

regulation, including without limitation, laws, rules or regulations regarding or related to unemployment

insurance, old age benefits, workers compensation, labor, personal injury or taxes of any kind.

Page 3 of 11



ARTICLE VIII. INSURANCE

The Engineer shall procure and carry, at its sole cost and expense through the life of this Agreement,

except as otherwise provided herein, insurance protection as hereinafter specified, in form and substance

satisfactory to the City, carried with an insurance company authorized to transact business in the state of

Texas, covering all aspects and risks of loss of all operations in connection with this Agreement, including

without limitation, the indemnity obligations set forth herein. The Engineer shall obtain and maintain in

full force and effect during the term of this Agreement, and shall cause each approved subcontractor or sub-

consultant of the Engineer to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the term of this Agreement,

commercial general liability, professional liability and automobile liability coverage for non-owned and

hired vehicles with insurance carriers admitted to do business in the state of Texas. The insurance

companies must carry a Best’s Rating of A-Vu or better. Except for Professional Liability, the policies will

be written on an occurrence basis, subject to the following minimum limits of liability:

Commercial General Liability:

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $1,000,000

General Aggregate Limit: $2,000,000

Professional Liability:

Combined Single Limit: $2,000,000

Automobile Liability:

Combined Single Limit for any auto: $1,000,000 Per Occurrence

Employer’s Liability:

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $1,000,000

Worker’s Compensation

Per Occurrence Single Limit: $500,000

The Engineer shall further cause any approved subcontractor or sub-consultant to procure and

carry, during the term of this Agreement, the insurance coverage required of Engineer herein, including

without limitation, Professional Liability coverage, protecting the City against losses caused by the

professional negligence of the approved subcontractor or sub-consultant. The City shall be listed as a

primary and noncontributory additional insured with respect to the Automobile Liability and Commercial

General Liability and shall be granted a waiver of subrogation under those policies. The Engineer shall

provide a Certificate of Insurance to the City as evidence of coverage.

The Certificate shall provide 30 days’ notice of cancellation. A copy of the additional insured

endorsement and waiver of subrogation attached to the policy shall be included in the Certificate. The

Engineer shall elect to obtain worker’s compensation coverage pursuant to Section 406.002 of the Texas

Labor Code. Further, the Engineer shall maintain said coverage throughout the term of this Agreement and

Page 4 of 11



shall comply with all provisions of Title 5 of the Texas Labor Code to ensure that the Engineer maintains

said coverage. The Engineer may maintain Occupational Accident and Disability Insurance in lieu of

Worker’s Compensation. In either event, the policy must be endorsed to include a waiver of subrogation in

favor of the City. If at any time during the life of the Agreement or any extension hereof, the Engineer fails

to maintain the required insurance in full force and effect, the Engineer shall be in breach hereof and all

work under the Agreement shall be discontinued immediately.

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the professional liability policy shall be

maintained at the Engineer’s sole cost and expense. The retroactive date shall be no later than the

commencement of the performance of this Agreement and the discovery period (possibly through tail

coverage) shall be no less than 10 years after the completion of the Services provided for in this Agreement.

The provisions of this Article VIII shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

ARTICLE IX. EMPLOYMENT OF AGENTS/RETAINING OF CONSULTANTS

The Engineer may employ or retain consultants, contractors, or third parties (any of which are

referred to herein as “Sub-consultant”), to perform certain duties of Engineer, as set forth on Exhibit A,

attached hereto, under this Agreement, provided that the City approves the retaining of Sub-consultants.

The Engineer is at all times responsible to the City to perform the Services as provided in this Agreement

and the Engineer is in no event relieved of any obligation under this Agreement upon retainage of any

approved Sub-consultant. Any agent and/or Sub-consultant retained and/or employed by the Engineer shall

be required by the Engineer to carry, for the protection and benefit of the City and the Engineer and naming

said third parties as additional insureds, insurance as described above required to be carried by the Engineer

in this Agreement.

The Engineer represents that such services are either under applicable value thresholds or are

otherwise exempt from notice and/or bid requirements under Texas Law.

ARTICLE X. CONFIDENTIALITY

The Engineer shall retain all inforniation received from or concerning the City and the City’s

business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without prior written

consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law.

ARTICLE XI. INDEMNITY

THE ENG1NEER SHALL INDEMNIFY AND SAVE HARMLESS THE CITY OF LUBBOCK

AND ITS ELECTED OFFICIALS, OFFICERS, AGENTS, AND EMPLOYEES FROM ALL SUITS,

ACTIONS, LOSSES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, OR LIABILITY OF ANY KIND, CHARACTER, TYPE,

OR DESCRIPTION, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING,
Page 5 of 11



ALL EXPENSES OF LITIGATION, COURT COSTS, AND ATTORNEY’S FEES, FOR INJURY OR

DEATH TO ANY PERSON, OR INJURY TO ANY PROPERTY, RECEIVED OR SUSTAINED BY

ANY PERSON OR PERSONS OR PROPERTY, TO THE EXTENT CAUSED BY OR RESULTS FROM,

THE NEGLIGENT ACTS OF THE ENGINEER, ITS AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, AND/OR

SUBCONSULTANTS, RELATED TO THE PERFORMANCE, OPERATIONS OR OMISSIONS

UNDER THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR THE USE OR OCCUPATION OF CITY OWNED PROPERTY.

THE INDEMNITY OBLIGATION PROVIDED HEREIN SHALL SURVIVE THE EXPIRATION OR

TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT. SUBJECT TO THE LIMITATIONS IN TEXAS LOCAL

GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 27 1.904.

ARTICLE XII. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS

The Engineer shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances,

rules and regulations relating, in any way, manner or form, to the activities under this Agreement, and any

amendments thereto.

ARTICLE XIII. NOTICE

A. General. Whenever notice from the Engineer to the City or the City to the Engineer is required

or permitted by this Agreement and no other method of notice is provided, such notice shall be given by

(1) actual delivery of the written notice to the other party by hand (in which case such notice shall be

effective upon delivery); (2) facsimile (in which case such notice shall be effective upon delivery); or (3)

by depositing the written notice in the United States mail, properly addressed to the other party at the

address provided in this article, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, in which case such

notice shall be effective on the third business day after such notice is so deposited.

B. Engineer’s Address. The Engineer’s address and numbers for the purposes of notice are:

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.
Brandon Forsyth, P.E.
801 Cherry Street Suite 1300, Unit 11
Fort Worth, Texas 76102
Telephone: 817-339-2289
Email: brandon.forsyth@kimley-horn.com

C. City’s Address. The City’s address and numbers for the purposes of notice are:

Bailey Ratcliffe, P.E.
City of Lubbock
P.O. Box 2000
1314 Avenue K
Lubbock, Texas 79457
Telephone: 806-775-2329
Email: bratcliffe@mylubbock.us

Page 6 of 11



D. Change of Address. Either party may change its address or numbers for purposes of notice by

giving written notice to the other party as provided herein, referring specifically to this Agreement, and

setting forth such new address or numbers. The address or numbers shall become effective on the 15th day

after such notice is effective.

ARTICLE XIV. CITY-PROVIDED DATA AND RESPONSIBILIT1ES

Provision of Data. The City shall furnish the Engineer non-confidential studies, reports and other

available data in the possession of the City pertinent to the Engineer’s Services, so long as the City is

entitled to rely on such studies, reports and other data for the performance of the Engineer’s Services under

this Agreement (the “Provided Data”). The Engineer shall be entitled to use and rely, so long as such

reliance is reasonable, upon all such Provided Data.

ARTICLE XV. MISCELLANEOUS

A. Captions. The captions for the articles and sections in this Agreement are inserted in this

Agreement strictly for the parties’ convenience in identifying the provisions to this Agreement and shall not

be given any effect in construing this Agreement.

B. Audit. The Engineer shall provide access to its corporate books and records to the City. The City

may audit, at its expense and during normal business hours, the Engineer’s books and records with respect

to this Agreement between the Engineer and the City.

C. Records. The Engineer shall maintain records that are necessary to substantiate the services

provided by the Engineer.

D. Assignability. The Engineer may not assign this Agreement without the prior written approval

of the City.

E. Successor and Assigns. This Agreement binds and inures to the benefit of the City and the

Engineer, and in the case of the City, its respective successors, legal representatives, and assigns, and in the

case of the Engineer, its permitted successors and assigns.

F. Construction and Venue.

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED TN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS. THIS AGREEMENT IS PERFORMABLE TN LUBBOCK

COUNTY, TEXAS. THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY IRREVOCABLY CONSENT TO THE SOLE

AND EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION AND VENUE OF THE COURTS OF COMPETENT

JURISDICTION OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, COUNTY OF LUBBOCK, FOR THE PURPOSES OF

Page 7 of Ii



ALL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT OR THE

ACTIONS THAT ARE CONTEMPLATED HEREBY.

G. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is ever held to be invalid or ineffective by any

court of competent jurisdiction with respect to any person or circumstance, the remainder of this Agreement

and the application of such provision to persons and/or circumstances other than those with respect to which

it is held invalid or ineffective shall not be affected thereby.

H. Amendment. No amendment, modification, or alteration of the terms of this Agreement shall be

binding unless such amendment, modification, or alteration is in writing, dated subsequent to this

Agreement, and duly authorized and executed by the Engineer and the City.

I. Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including Exhibits “A” through “B” attached hereto, contains

the entire agreement between the City and the Engineer, and there are no other written or oral promises,

conditions, warranties, or representations relating to or affecting the matters contemplated herein.

J. No Joint Enterprise. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to imply a joint venture, joint

enterprise, partnership or principal — agent relationship between the Engineer and the City.

K. Documents Owned by City. Any and all documents, drawings and specifications prepared by

Engineer as part of the Services hereunder, shall become the property of the City when the Engineer has

been compensated as set forth in Article II, above. The Engineer shall make copies of any and all work

products for its files.

L. Notice of Waiver. A waiver by either the City or the Engineer of a breach of this Agreement

must be in writing and duly authorized to be effective. In the event either party shall execute and deliver

such waiver, such waiver shall not affect the waiving party’s rights with respect to any other or subsequent

breach.

M. Third Party Activities. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to provide any rights or

benefits whatsoever to any party other than the City and the Engineer.

N. Non-Appropriation. All funds for payment by the City under this Agreement are subject to the

availability of an annual appropriation for this purpose by the City. In the event of non-appropriation of

funds by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the services provided under the Agreement, the City

will terminate the Agreement, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then

current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the services covered by this

Agreement is spent, whichever event occurs first (the “Non-Appropriation Date”). If at any time funds are

not appropriated for the continuance of this Agreement, cancellation shall be accepted by the Engineer on

Page 8 of 11



thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall

not be obligated under this Agreement beyond the Non-Appropriation Date.

0. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist

Organization Prohibited. Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City

from entering into a contract with a vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to

have contracts with or provide supplies or service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization

P. No Boycott of Israel. Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This

section applies only to a contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more

full-time employees; and (2) has a value of$100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from public

funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract with a company

for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the company that it: (1) does

not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Q. Texas Government Code 2274. By entering into this Agreement, Engineer verifies that: (1) it

does not, and will not for the duration of the contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive

that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by

Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. If Engineer is a company

with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or more,

Engineer verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice,

policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and

will not discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association.

R. Engineer represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the contract,

boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government

Code does not apply to the contract. If Engineer is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if

this Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or more, Engineer verifies that, pursuant to Texas

Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott energy

companies during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement where a

governmental entity determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental entity’s

constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of debt obligations or

the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds.

S. Texas Public Information Act. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government

Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if

the contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter.

To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Engineer agrees to:

(1) preserve all contracting information related to the contract as provided by the records retention

Page 9 of 11



requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the contract; (2) promptly provide to

the governmental body any contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or

possession of the entity on request of the governmental body; and (3) on completion of the contract, either:

(A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all contracting information related to the contract that is in

the custody or possession of the entity; or (B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract

as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body.

T. Professional Responsibility. All architectural or engineering services to be performed shall be

done with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by competent architects or engineers practicing

under the same or similar circumstances and professional license.

Page 10 ofIl



EXECUTED as of the Effective Date hereof.

CITY OF LUBBOCK

MARK MCBRAYER, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:

of Engineering/City Engineer

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Lc,141JtC
Kelli Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

Firm

Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc.

By:P%t
Kevin Hoppers, .E., PTOE

Email: kevin .hoppers@kimley-horn. corn

Page 11 of!!



EXHIBIT A

SERViCES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER

FOR AN IMPACT FEE UPDATE FOR ENGINEERING
CITY OF LUBBOCK

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The ENGINEER understands the goal of this project is to update the Roadway, Water and

Wastewater Impact Fee program for the City based on annexations. This scope of services will
provide the City with the technical analysis required by Chapter 395 of the Texas Local Government

Code to determine the maximum assessable Roadway, Water and Wastewater impact fee that may

be assessed. To update the land use assumptions analysis, the ENGINEER will utilize the
demographics predominantly developed from previous planning efforts from Planning Lubbock

2040, Infrastructure Master Plans, and planned development information since the original Impact

Fee program. To update the Roadway, Water, and Wastewater impact Fee Capital Improvements

Plan (CIP), the ENGINEER will evaluate the previous CIPs and update accordingly for the
annexations. The ENGINEER will assist the City in updating the Impact Fee Ordinance and assist

with public hearings.

This project is anticipated to include the following components:

1. Project Initiation, Education and Management
2. Land Use Assumptions
3. Roadway Impact Fee
4. Water Impact Fee
5. Wastewater Impact Fee
6. Adoption Process

1. Project Initiation and Management
1.1 Project Kick-Off Meeting. The ENGINEER will meet with the City for a formal kick-off

meeting for the Impact Fee Update. During this meeting, the scope and City contacts will
be determined for each task.

1.2 Project Status Reports and Invoicing. The ENGINEER will prepare and submit monthly
status reports regarding project schedule and critical tasks. The ENGINEER will prepare
monthly invoices.

1.3 Service Areas. The ENGINEER will meet with the City to establish updates to the impact

fee service area boundaries based on annexations.

2. Land Use Assumptions
2.1. Data Collection. Data for the LUA will be developed based on information provided in the

Comprehensive Plan, parcel data, building permit information, and historical growth and

supplemented with data provided by the City for new development activity. Data to be

Impact Fee Update Page 1 of 10

Engineering Scope of Services August 30, 2024



provided by the City include residential (added single and multi-family dwelling units) and
square footage (or acreage) of developed non-residential uses within the city and
water/wastewater planning areas. Data will be provided by City of Lubbock planning
areas to facilitate both the roadway and water/wastewater service area analyses. The
provision of electronic data (GIS Shapefile) is envisioned. The ENGINEER will coordinate
with the city on specific data needs.

2.2. Existing Land Use. The ENGINEER will utilize data collected from Task 2.1 to document
existing growth rates, trends and socio-demographics as well as provide the development
of base projections. The ENGINEER will provide supporting documentation for land use,
population and employment data by planning areas and service areas for the base year.

2.3. 10-Year Land Use. Chapter 395 states that impact fees may only be used to pay for items
included in the Impact Fee Capital Improvements Plan and attributable to new service
units projected over a period not to exceed ten (10) years. Based on guidance from the
City regarding projected development patterns and growth rates and Plan Lubbock 2040,
the ENGINEER will develop the Ten-Year Land Use Assumptions for the 2025 — 2035
planning window. The ENGINEER will complete the demographic table for each service
area.

2.4. Documentation. The ENGINEER will prepare a Chapter entitle Land Use Assumptions for
Impact Fees for final Impact Fee Report. This will be incorporated into the final report.

2.5. Meetings. The ENGINEER will discuss the land use assumptions one (1) progress meeting
with the City

2.6. Deliverables. The Land Use Assumptions will be standalone report that will ultimately be
incorporated into the final Impact Fee Study report. Key elements of the LUA report
include:
• Coordination and correlation of LUA with service areas for roads, water and

wastewater
• Documentation of existing growth rates, trends and socio-demographics
• Development of base and 10-year projections
• Land use, population and employment assumptions for the projection periods
• Supporting documentation population and employment data by planning areas and

service areas for the base year and 10-year growth

3. Roadway Impact Fee Study
3.1. Data Collection. The ENGINEER will coordinate with the City to obtain the following data:

3.1.1 City contacts — City shall provide the organization structure and contact
information for the applicable City staff involved with the completion of the
roadway capacity analysis and Roadway Impact Fee Capital Improvement Plans
(CIP).

Impact Fee Update Page 2 of 10
Engineering Scope of Services August 30, 2024



3.1.2 Thoroughfare Plan — The ENGINEER will utilize the thoroughfare plan as is

currently adopted. Any analysis related to updating the City’s currently adopted

Thoroughfare Plan will be considered additional services.
3.1.3 Traffic Counts — The City shall provide any available data (current and historical)

for all roadway segments on the current Thoroughfare Plan. The ENGINEER will

obtain recently completed traffic counts for state highway facilities from TxDOT.

If additional counts are necessary the ENGINEER with request the count data from
City staff or available data from the MPO.

3.1.4 Historical Project Costing Information — The City shall provide the ENGINEER with
available data on the actual City costs for previously completed arterial roadway
improvement projects to assist in the development of planning level project costs

for future projects and to include any project costs for previously completed
projects with excess capacity available to serve future growth.

3.2. Ten-Year Growth Projections and Capacity Analysis.
3.2.1 The ENGINEER will identify the service units for new development and the

average trip length. Using the 11th Edition of the Institute of Transportation
Engineer’s (ITE) Trip Generation Manual, the ENGINEER will incorporate trip

generation and pass-by trip rates.
3.2.2 The ENGINEER will perform an analysis of existing conditions. This will include a

determination of roadway capacities, volumes, vehicle-miles of supply, vehicle-
miles of demand, existing excess capacity, and existing deficiencies.

3.2.3 The ENGINEER will project traffic conditions for the ten-year planning period, the
target year for the impact fee growth projections. This will include growth and

new demand for each service area established in Task 2. The ENGINEER will

determine the capacity available for new growth.

3.3. Roadway Impact Fee Capital Improvements Plan. The ENGINEER will assist the City

updating the Roadway Impact Fee Capital Improvements Plan which will include cost

projections for anticipated projects to be included in the study. The Roadway Impact Fee
Capital Improvements Plan will include existing oversized facilities and proposed facilities

designed to serve future development. The Roadway Impact Fee Capital Improvements

Plan shall include a general description of the project and a project cost projection.
Planning level cost projections for future projects will be prepared based on discussion

with local roadway construction contractors, City staff, and previous experience with

roadway construction costs. The City shall provide actual City cost information for

previously completed projects with excess capacity and any cost contribution to County,

State, Federal, or developer constructed projects. Due to the variety of unknowns

associated with roadway project costs projections (ROW acquisition, utility relocations,

etc.), the planning level project cost projections utilized in the roadway impact fee
analysis should not be used for any future capital improvement planning within the City.

The ENGINEER will identify the portion of projected improvements required to serve
existing demand and the portion of project improvements required to serve new

development within the 10-year planning period.

Impact Fee Update Page 3 of 10

Engineering Scope of Services August 30, 2024



3.4. Maximum Assessable Roadway Impact Fee Calculation. Using the newly developed ten-
year growth projections, roadway impact fee capital improvements plan, and capacity
available for new growth, the ENGINEER will determine the cost of roadway
improvements by service area, the maximum costs per service unit, and the resulting pre
credit maximum assessable roadway impact fees by service area. A financial analysis for
the credit calculation will not be performed. 50% of the pre-credit maximum assessable
roadway impact fee calculated will be utilized to determine the maximum assessable
roadway impact fee.

3.5. Documentation. The ENGINEER will provide both a draft and final Roadway Impact Fee
Report. The report will include:

o Land Use Assumptions;
o Roadway service areas;
o Roadway CIP;
o Narrative of the impact fee methodology;
o Impact fee calculations;
o Land Use Vehicle-Mile Equivalency Table; and
o Supporting Exhibits.

3.6. Meetings. The ENGINEER will attend one (1) meeting with the City to go over the draft
report.

3.7. Deliverables.
3.7.1 Electronic (.pdf) copy of the Draft Roadway Impact Fee Report;
3.7.2 Five (5) 8.5” x 11” hard copies of the Draft Roadway Impact Fee Report; and
3.7.3 Upon final approval of the Roadway Impact Fee Analysis and updated ordinance

by the City Council, the ENGINEER will provide five (5) 8” x 11” originals and one
(1) electronic (.pdf) copy of the Final Roadway Impact Fee Report

4. Water Impact Fee Study
4.1. Data Collection for City and Wholesale Customers. The ENGINEER will coordinate with the

City on obtaining data required for the impact fee study update, including cost data for
recently constructed projects, information on water meters, recent water usage, etc. The
ENGINEER will prepare and present a data request memorandum for City staff.
Information for wholesale customers served by Lubbock will also be required. The
ENGINEER will prepare a survey to be sent to each wholesale customer regarding future
usage and needs from Lubbock.

4.2. Master Plan Review. The ENGINEER will review the currently adopted Water Distribution
System Master Plan to verify if modifications are needed prior to formulating the Water
Impact Fee Capital Improvement Plan. Modification will be provided with the
recommendations from City staff. City staff will perform the necessary tasks to have the
revised Water Distribution System Master Plan adopted by City Council (if necessary). As

Impact Fee Update Page 4 of 10
Engineering Scope of Services August 30, 2024



part of this task the ENGINEER will verify the existing inventory of the City’s water system

network.

4.3. Ten-Year Growth Projections and Capacity Analysis. The ENGINEER will develop projected
water demands over the 10-year planning period which will be based on socio
demographic data developed in the LUAs report. The determination of 10-year water

demands and will be based on LUAs and recent historical water usage for average,

maximum day and peak operating conditions for both retail and potential wholesale

customers. The ENGINEER will utilize data from the recent Master Plan in addition to the

newly requested data. The ENGINEER will determine the model results needed for the
impact fee analysis to evaluate 10-year conditions using the demands developed. Water
system modeling will consist of average day, maximum day, and peak hour demand
conditions. The ENGINEER will utilize equivalent capacity of water meters to establish the

service unit equivalents (SUEs) required in Chapter 395 of the Local Government Code for
both existing and 10-year growth conditions.

4.4. Water Impact Fee Capital Improvements Plan. The ENGINEER will review recently

completed (over the last 5 years) water improvements and determine which projects are

eligible for future cost recovery from growth. The ENGINEER will utilize the results of the

water system modeling and capacity analysis to determine impact fee eligible proposed
projects. The ENGINEER will update the cost of proposed water system improvements to
be included in the impact fee calculation. Maps will be prepared showing the existing and

proposed water capital improvements plan projects to be included in the impact fee

calculation.

4.5. Maximum Assessable Water Impact Fee Calculation. The ENGINEER will utilize the water

model to analyze existing completed and proposed projects for remaining capacity for

impact fee cost recovery for 10-year projected growth. The ENGINEER will utilize the
capacity analysis and capital project costs to calculate percentage of project cost eligible
for impact fee cost recovery. The ENGINEER will develop maximum allowable water

impact fees in accordance with Chapter 395 of the Texas Local Government Code using

existing and proposed capital improvement costs to support 10-year growth based on
projected increase in service units.

4.6. Documentation. The ENGINEER will provide both a draft and final Water Impact Fee

Report. The report will include:
o Land Use Assumptions;
o Water service area;
o Water Impact Fee Eligible CIP;
o Narrative of the impact fee methodology;
o Impact fee calculations;
o Service Unit Equivalency Table; and
o Supporting Exhibits.

Impact Fee Update Page 5 of 10

Engineering Scope of Services August 30, 2024



4.7. Meetings. The ENGINEER will attend three (3) meetings with the City. These meetings
will include:

o Impact Fee Eligible CIP
o Maximum Assessable Calculations
o Review Draft Report.

4.8. Deliverables.
4.8.1 Electronic (.pdf) copy of the Draft Water Impact Fee Report;

4.8.2 Five (5) 8.5” x 11” hard copies of the Draft Water Impact Fee Report; and
4.8.3 Upon final approval of the Water Impact Fee Analysis and new ordinance by the

City Council, the ENGINEER will provide five (5) 8” x 11” originals and one (1)
electronic (.pdf) copy of the Final Water Impact Fee Report

5. Wastewater Impact Fee Study
5.1. Data Collection for City and Wholesale Customers. The ENGINEER will coordinate with the

City on obtaining data required for the impact fee study, including cost data for recently
constructed projects, recent wastewater loads, etc. The ENGINEER will prepare and
present a data request memorandum for City staff. Information for wholesale customers

served by Lubbock will also be required. The ENGINEER will prepare a survey to be sent to
each wholesale customer regarding future usage and needs from Lubbock.

5.2. Master Plan Review. The ENGINEER will review the currently adopted Wastewater System

Master Plan to verify if modifications are needed prior to formulating the Wastewater
Impact Fee Capital Improvement Plan. Modification will be provided with the
recommendations from City staff. City staff will perform the necessary tasks to have the

revised Wastewater System Master Plan adopted by City Council (if necessary). As part of
this task the ENGINEER will verify the existing inventory of the City’s wastewater system
network.

5.3. Ten-Year Growth Projections and Capacity Analysis. The ENGINEER will develop projected
wastewater flows over the 10-year planning period which will be based on socio
demographic data developed in the LUAs report. The determination of 10-year
wastewater flows and will be based on LUAs and recent historical wastewater usage for

average, and peak day operating conditions for both retail and potential wholesale
customers. The ENGINEER will utilize data from the recent Master Plan in addition to the

newly requested data. The ENGINEER will determine the model results needed for the

impact fee analysis to evaluate 10-year conditions using the flow developed. Wastewater
system modeling will consist of average and peak day demand conditions. The ENGINEER

will utilize equivalent capacity of water meters to establish the service unit equivalents
(SUEs) required in Chapter 395 of the Local Government Code for both existing and 10-
year growth conditions.

5.4. Wastewater Impact Fee Capital Improvements Plan. The ENGINEER will review recently
completed (over the last 5 years) wastewater system improvements and determine which

Impact Fee Update Page 6 of 10

Engineering Scope of Services August 30, 2024



projects are eligible for future cost recovery from growth. The ENGINEER will utilize the

results of the wastewater system modeling and capacity analysis to determine impact fee

eligible proposed projects. The ENGINEER will update the cost of proposed wastewater
system improvements to be included in the impact fee calculation. Maps will be prepared
showing the existing and proposed wastewater capital improvements plan projects to be

included in the impact fee calculation.

5.5. Maximum Assessable Wastewater Impact Fee Calculation. The ENGINEER will utilize the

wastewater model to analyze existing completed and proposed projects for remaining

capacity for impact fee cost recovery for 10-year projected growth. The ENGINEER will
utilize the capacity analysis and capital project costs to calculate percentage of project

cost eligible for impact fee cost recovery. The ENGINEER will develop maximum allowable

wastewater impact fees in accordance with Chapter 395 of the Texas Local Government

Code using existing and proposed capital improvement costs to support 10-year growth

based on projected increase in service units.

5.6. Documentation. The ENGINEER will provide both a draft and final Wastewater Impact Fee

Report. The report will include:
o Land Use Assumptions;
o Wastewater service area;
o Wastewater Impact Fee Eligible CIP;
o Narrative of the impact fee methodology;
o Impact fee calculations;
o Service Unit Equivalency Table; and
o Supporting Exhibits.

5.7. Meetings. The ENGINEER will attend three (3) meetings with the City. These meetings
will be held in conjunction with the Water Impact Fee meetings from Item 4.7. These

meetings will include:
o Impact Fee Eligible CIP
o Maximum Assessable Calculations
o Review Draft Report.

5.8. Deliverables.
5.8.1 Electronic (.pdf) copy of the Draft Wastewater Impact Fee Report;

5.8.2 Five (5) 8.5” x 11” hard copies of the Draft Wastewater Impact Fee Report; and

5.8.3 Upon final approval of the Wastewater Impact Fee Analysis and new ordinance by

the City Council, the ENGINEER will provide five (5) 8” x 11” originals and one (1)

electronic (.pdf) copy of the Final Wastewater Impact Fee Report

6. Adoption Process
6.1. Comparison Data. THE ENGINEER will collect information on actual Impact Fees collected

for up to six (6) benchmark cities for up to three (3) different land uses (likely residential,

Impact Fee Update Page 7 of 10

Engineering Scope of Services August 30, 2024



commercial, and industrial land uses). This information will be provided to the City in

electronic (.xls) tabular format for use in the development of comparison tables.

6.2. Ordinance Support. The ENGINEER will review the updated Impact Fee Ordinance as

prepared by the City Attorney. It is anticipated the City Attorney will require exhibits from

the Roadway Impact Fee Report to be included in the ordinance.

The ENGINEER will review the impact of the updated Impact Fee program reimbursements

on the City’s existing pro rata cost allocation system for water and wastewater line

extensions. The ENGINEER will determine how the pro rata system will work with the
Impact Fee program and if pro rata costs will continue to be charged to developers once the

Impact Fee program is implemented.

The ENGINEER will review the policies for roadway improvements in the City’s ETJ.

6.3. Revenue Projections. The Engineer will utilize the Land Use Assumptions calculated in Task

2 to calculate various revenue projections based on potential collection rate scenarios.

6.4. Meetings. It is anticipated that the ENGINEER will prepare for and attend each of the

following meetings (total often):

• Up to six (6) meetings with CIAC
o This will include both work sessions and meetings required by Chapter 395

• Up to four (4) meeting with Council
o This will include both work sessions and meetings required by Chapter 395

- End of Scope of Services -

Impact Fee Update Page 8 of 10

Engineering Scope of Services August 30, 2024



EXHIBIT B

AN IMPACT FEE UPDATE FOR ENGINEERING

FEE PROPOSAL

CITY OF LUBBOCK

Kim ley-Horn will perform the scope of services for the total fixed fee below. Fees will be invoiced

monthly based upon the overall percentage of services performed.

Task Task Name KHA FNI Subtotal

1 Project Initiation, Education
and Management $29,000 $19,400 $48,400

2 Land UseAssumptions $26,500 $3,500 $30,000

3 Roadway Impact Fee Study
$63,000 -- $63,000

4 Water Impact Fee Study --

$45,000 $45,000

5 Wastewater Impact Fee
Study -- $45,000 $45,000

6 Adoption Process
$30,000 $27,700 $57,700

Su btotals $148,500 $140,600 $289,100

Impact Fee Update Page 9 of 10

Engineering Scope of Services August 30, 2024



EXHIBIT C
AN IMPACT FEE UPDATE FOR ENGINEERING

SCHEDULE PROPOSAL
CITY OF LUBBOCK

Tasks 1 thru 5 will be completed within six (6) months following receipt of a signed copy of this
agreement, exclusive of CITY review time after receipt of a signed copy of this agreement. Task 6
will proceed in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 395 of the Texas Local Government
Code and as requested by the CITY. Additional services, if desired by the CITY, will be performed in
a timely manner upon authorization by the CITY.

Impact Fee Update Page 10 of 10
Engineering Scope of Services August 30, 2024



City of Lubbock
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
October 8, 2024

Capital Project Number: 8685
Capital Project Name: Impact Fee Report Update

Capital Project Number: 8702
Capital Project Name: Master Thoroughfare Plan Update

Budget
Encumbered/Expended 8685 8702 Total

Agenda Item  October 8, 2024
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. - Contract 18335           200,000             89,100           289,100

Encumbered/Expended To Date           200,000             89,100           289,100

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Design                       -           210,900           210,900

Remaining Appropriation                       -           210,900           210,900

Total Appropriation  $       200,000           300,000  $       500,000



Project Scope

Local Government Code ,  Chapter 395,  mandates that the  land use assumptions and capital improvements plans associated
with impact fees must be  reviewed and updated at  least every  five  years.  This project involves hiring an engineering
consultant to review the current land use assumptions and capital improvements plans in the  impact fee  report .  They  will
need to analyze ,  evaluate ,  and make recommendations for any  necessary  changes that need to be  implemented.  As part  of
this review,  they  will need to confirm that the  land use assumptions corre late  with the  new Unified Development Code and
Zoning Map.  They  will a lso assist  with public hearings,  publicat ions,  and other processes to get any  recommended changes
implemented.

Project Justi�cation

Texas Local Government Code requires periodic updates of the land use assumptions and capital
improvements plans. Lubbock City Council approved and adopted Land Use Assumptions and Capital
Improvements Plans (Capacity Plans) on June 23, 2020. In accordance with Local Government Code
395.052, the initial five-year period for review begins on the day the capital improvement plan is
adopted.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Community Improvement
Growth and Development
Redevelopment

Roadway arterial infrastructure has largely been
funded by ad valorem taxes since 2006. The City
has been unable to support the demand of new
roadway arterial infrastructure based on recent
and projected development trends and has
implemented impact fees as an alternate funding
source to partner with development. Impact fees
became effective on June 1, 2021 for roadways
and on June 1, 2022 for water and sewer. Water
and sewer main line infrastructure has largely
been funded by water and sewer utility fees, and
has functioned sufficiently well to present day.
Water and sewer impact fees are not currently
being collected as per City Council policy.
Collection of Roadway Impact fees began on June
1, 2021, and have been collected based on
development within each of eight service areas.
Any expended funds shall only be used within the
respective service area where the fees were
collected.
 

FY 2023-24 $200,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2023-O0108

CIP 8685CIP 8685 Impact Fee Report Update Impact Fee Report Update
Master Plans/StudiesMaster Plans/Studies

Project Manager: Project Manager: Bailey RatcliffeBailey Ratcliffe - Engineering - Engineering



Project Dates Project Location

Land Use Assumptions and Capital Improvements
Plans (Capacity Plans) were approved on June 23,
2020.

Impact Fees were adopted on October 27, 2020.

Capital Improvements Advisory Committee (CIAC)
to make recommendation in Fall 2024 for new
study.

City-wide

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Design $200,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $200,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Fund Cash $200,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $200,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


Project Scope

Under this project ,  City  staff will update  and refine  the  2018 Thoroughfare  Master Plan.  The project includes reviewing and
evaluating the  exist ing plan and perform modeling based on current and long range land use development to determine if
there  is a need to change planned thoroughfare  and collector widths;  reviewing the  exist ing standard details for
thoroughfares and collector leve l streets to determine if changes are  needed to items such as Right-of Way widths,  lane
widths,  left  and right turn needs,  traffic calming devices and needs for raised medians as well as pedestrian and bicycle
e lements.  Addit ionally,  this project will review the typical procedures for locating and designating collector leve l streets
and identify  locations of continuity  conflicts,  offsets in section lines and playa lakes,  and indicate  the  location of the
alignment needed to provide the  corridor continuity.  As a part  of this plan a new Thoroughfare  Plan map will be  created for
City  Council adoption.

Project Justi�cation

The City of Lubbock continues to strive to meet the transportation needs of its citizens. We must
continue to anticipate the infrastructure needs for a growing populous in order to provide a safe and
efficient transportation system.
This thoroughfare update will ensure we are planning properly for future needs.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Public Safety
Fiscal Discipline
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

Previous plan was adopted in 2018.
FY 2024-25 $300,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2024-O0129

Project Dates Project Location

Bid Date for Design: 12/2024
Award Date for Design: 02/2025
Master Plan Update Complete: 02/2027

City-wide

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Design $0 $300,000 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $300,000 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Fund Cash $0 $300,000 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $300,000 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 8702CIP 8702 - Master Thoroughfare Plan - Master Thoroughfare Plan
UpdateUpdate

Roadway StudyRoadway Study

Project Manager: Project Manager: Bailey RatcliffeBailey Ratcliffe - Engineering - Engineering



Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 12888 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 6. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchasing Order
Contract 10027872, with SHI Government Solutions, Inc. for short-term rental permitting, compliance,
and Hotel Occupancy Tax collection software utilizing Buy Board Contract 661-22.

Item Summary
On July 9, 2019, the City of Lubbock contracted with MUNIRevs, Inc. dba LODGINGRevs, for
short-term rental regulation development, permitting, compliance, and hotel occupancy tax (“HOT”)
collection within the incorporated boundaries of the City. At the time, Short Term Rentals (STR) had
increased in popularity and prevalence, and the City of Lubbock had no formal policy, procedures, or
regulations to monitor and enforce compliance for homes used as STRs. Additionally, STRs were
required to collect and remit hotel occupancy taxes, but without a way of identifying and registering
these properties as STRs, the City had no means to enforce payment compliance. The contract with
MUNIRevs, Inc. allowed staff the ability to regulate and enforce STR compliance within the City of
Lubbock. 

In August of 2021, GovOS purchased MUNIRevs, Inc.,and staff along with customers have encountered
multiple issues since the change to GovOS.  Accordingly, after assessing multiple service providers,
staff is recommending that the City Council approve the contract with SHI Government Solutions,
Inc. which owns Deckard Technologies, to repalce GovOS.  Deckard Technologies provides short-term
rental permitting, compliance, and hotel occupancy tax (“HOT”) collection services. 

Fiscal Impact
The cost of the contract is $69,125 and is funded in the Fiscal Year 2024-25  Planning Operating
Budget.  

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments
Resolution - SHI Government Solutions 
Purchase Order - SHI Government Solutions 





 

TO: SHIP TO: 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK  
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

1Page    -
Date    - 9/25/2024P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 10027872 OP000
Branch/Plant         1115

SHI GOVERNMENT SOLUTIONS INC CITY OF LUBBOCK
1301 SOUTH MOPAC EXPRESSWAY PLANNING & ZONING

1314 AVE KSUITE 375
AUSTIN TX 78746 LUBBOCK TX 79401

Ordered .Freight9/25/2024
Taken ByRequested 10/25/2024

PUR 18368/BuyBoard 661-22Delivery PER K SAGER

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Software Rentalscape Identification           1.000 69,125.0000 EA 69,125.00 10/25/2024

Total Order

NET DUE ON RECEIPTTerms 69,125.00

If you have any questions contact Kristen Sager:  KSager@mylubbock.us  Phone 806-775-2109

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $69,125.00 awarded to SHI Government Solutions, Inc. of

Austin, TX, on _________________, 2024. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by

reference: Quote dated September 13, 2024, from SHI Government Solutions, Inc. of Austin, TX, and BuyBoard Contract 661-22.

Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

______________________________________

Mark McBrayer, Mayor

ATTEST: 

______________________________________

Courtney Paz, City Secretary



REV. 3/2022  

    Rev. 3/2022

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER     

TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PURCHASE ORDER:  

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material contained herein 

and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by 

the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict between the City’s terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall 

prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any prior 

conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice. 

Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address, (b) 

Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number if 

applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number of the 

container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods shall be 

suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common carriers and any 

applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments not accompanied by 

packing lists. 

2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED. Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under 

reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 

3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer actually 

receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 

4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply with all 

provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does not fully conform, 

this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming tender, provided, where the 

time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer of his intention to cure and may 

then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase order or 

purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release number and 

the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, if any, shall be 

listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should be attached to the 

invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457.  Payment shall not 

be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to Seller if 

it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the 

Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of Lubbock with a view to 

securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending, or the making of any 

determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event this contract is canceled by Buyer 

pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold 

the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities. 

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any special

tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, such special

tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer and to the extent

feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid which 

Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind and 

specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods of purchase. 

In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the  Seller’s  current  prices 

on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without liability to Seller for breach 

or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to 

solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 

fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for 

the purpose of securing business.  For breach of viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to 

any other right of rights to cancel this contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise 

recover without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, 

percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do so shall 

render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will conform to the 

specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished by the Seller, if any. 

In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the specifications shall govern. 

Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller represents and warrants fault-free 

performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data (including, but not limited to calculating, 

comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware products delivered and services provided under 

this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may be from the effective date of this Contract. The 

obligations contained herein apply to products and services provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party 

involved in the creation or development of the products and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this 

Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock 

availing itself of any of its rights under the law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining 

to termination or default. The warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties 

specified in this Contract, and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the 

Seller’s liability which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document 

incorporated in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards 

promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the event the 

product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or replacement at the 

Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a reasonable time, correction 

made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller agrees

to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement will give

rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no warranty that the 

production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no event shall Buyer be 

liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of infringement of the like.  If Seller 

is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the Buyer to this effect in writing within two

weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive  notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for 

the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the 

goods in accordance with the specifications will result in infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 

12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an 

annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds by the City Council of the 

City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will terminate the contract, without 

termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for 

the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any 

time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be 

obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting them.

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered portion of 

this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller becomes insolvent or 

commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies which 

Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the Buyer

in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery of the Seller of 

a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the order is terminated and the 

date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is in addition to and not in lieu of the 

rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment of any 

terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the party whose 

performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of any 

obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or delegation by 

Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part by a

waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by consideration and is in

writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and performance

provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by Seller as part of his bid,

is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also as a complete and exclusive

statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the Uniform Commercial Code is used in this

agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Wherever the term 

“Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in 

the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other

party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to perform.  In the

event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this

failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 

employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs and 

expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract or which 

may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was caused through 

negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its employees, if any, and the 

Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys and all costs and other expenses 

arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment shall be rendered against the Buyer in any 

such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and discharge the same Seller expressly understands and 

agrees that any bond required by this contract, or otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the 

responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of this

contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to be in default

of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into pursuant to

this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to submit bids in response

to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, sex or natural origin in

consideration for an award. 

25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of competent

jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted

right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised

concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document,

this provision shall control. 

26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized

audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves the right to

audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under this Contract. In the event such

an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount

of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to

deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

27. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without written consent from 

the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. 

28. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited. 

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service

with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

29. Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering into certain contracts with a 

governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state agency a disclosure of interested parties 

at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity or state agency.  Instructions for

completing Form 1295 are available at: http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-

websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 

30. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that 

either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2271.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott

Israel during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that make it 

exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

31. No Boycott of Energy Companies.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent 

certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Energy 

Companies and will not boycott Energy Companies during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation.

Respondent shall state any facts that make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

32. No Boycott of a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas 

Government Code, Respondent certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it

does not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association and will not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm 

Trade Association during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that

make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

33.  Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited. 

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or 

service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

34. TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, 

may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the contractor or 

vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

35. Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) of the Texas Government Code, the City of Lubbock has designated the following 

email address for which public information requests may be made by an emailed request: orr@mylubbock.us. Please 

send this request to this email address for it to be processed

http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
mailto:orr@mylubbock.us


 
Pricing Proposal
Quotation #:  25303986
Created On:  9/13/2024
Valid Until:   10/31/2024

 
TX-City of Lubbock   IAM

 
Kristen Sager
P.O. BOX 2000
ATTN: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
LUBBOCK, TX 79457
United States
Phone: 8067752366
Fax:  
Email: ksager@mylubbock.us

 

Gregory Gonedes
SHI Government Solutions
3828 Pecana Trail
Austin, TX 78749
Send PO's to: Texas@shi.com
8008706079
5127320232
Phone: 800-870-6079
Fax: 512-732-0232
Email: gregory_gonedes@shi.com

All Prices are in US Dollar (USD) 
  Product Qty Your Price Total

 
1 Rentalscape Identification & Reporting 

   Deckard Technologies - Part#: 
   Contract Name: BuyBoard - Technology Equipment, Products, Services and
Software 
   Contract #: 661-22 
   Note: Monitoring & Reporting

1 $69,125.00 $69,125.00

 
Total $69,125.00

Additional Comments

Hardware items on this quote may be updated to reflect changes due to industry wide constraints and
fluctuations.

The products offered under this proposal are resold in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract referenced under
that applicable line item.



 AI# 12893 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 7. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Traffic Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Amendment No. 1 to Contract 17858, with AtkinsRealis, for additional engineering services
related to the City's Americans with Disabilities Act Transition Plan Sidewalk Gap Analysis Project.

Item Summary
In order to stay compliant with federal Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) law, municipalities must
develop an ADA transition plan.  This plan describes how a city will become compliant with all aspects
of ADA law and must include a sidewalk gap analysis.  The sidewalk gap analysis portion of the
transition plan outlines missing and deficient sidewalks and curb ramps throughout the city.  It must be
available to the public, and must include steps a city will take to remedy deficiencies identified.

In January 2024, the City entered into an agreement with AtkinsRealis to begin work on Phase 1 of the
sidewalk gap analysis, which included areas identified by the United States Department of
Transportation Justice40 Initiative, as those among the most disadvantaged in the City.

The Phase 1 study and the associated technical memo were recently completed by AtkinsRealis. 
Amendment No. 1 of the contract will allow AtkinsRealis to begin work on Phase 2 of the sidewalk gap
analysis, which will address access issues related to bus stops and sidewalks at Citibus stops throughout
the City.

After access issues have been identified in Phase 2, AtkinsRealis will develop a technical memo to
document findings and outline a methodology for compliance.

Fiscal Impact
Amendment No. 1 of Contract Number 17858 with AtkinsRealis, for $204,855, is funded in Capital
Improvement Project 92750, American Disability Act Ramp and Sidewalk Project.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution 
AtkinsRealis Contract 17858 Amendment 1 
AtkinsRealis Contract 17858 Amendment 1 Attachments A and B 
AtkinsRealis Extension Contract 17858 
AtkinsRealis Professional Services Agmt. 



CIP Budget Detail 
CIP Project Detail 





















































Capital Project Number:
Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended
  Design 101,733        
  AtkinsRealis Sidewalke Gap Analysis Phase 1 49,159          
  Ramp and Sidewalk Construction 1,111,557     

Agenda Item  October 8, 2024
AtkinsRealis 204,855      

Encumbered/Expended To Date 1,467,304     

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
157,696        

Remaining Appropriation 157,696        

Total Appropriation 1,625,000   

Construction

City of Lubbock

American Disability Act Ramp and Sidewalk Project
92570

October 8, 2024
Project Cost Detail

Capital Project 

Budget



Project Scope

This project will a llow the  City  of Lubbock to update  roadway facilit ies as needed which are  not currently  Americans with
Disabilit ies Act (ADA) accessible .  This funding will a llow for approximate ly  20 to 25 ADA ramps annually  and sidewalk
modificat ions as needed to comply  with the  act.  Annual service  contract for ADA Ramp Installat ions -  Construction: On
going as funds allow.

Project Justi�cation

The American with Disabilities Act requires public entities to have an accessibility program.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed: Community
Improvement, Public Safety

FY 2018-19 $250,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2018-O0109
FY 2019-20 $125,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2019-O0129
FY 2020-21 $150,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2020-O0123
FY 2021-22 $250,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2021-O0126
FY 2022-23 $300,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2022-O0136
FY 2023-24 $250,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2023-O0108

Project Dates Project Location

Ongoing City-wide

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Design $115,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Construction $1,210,000 $300,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $375,000 $375,000

TOTAL $1,325,000 $300,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $375,000 $375,000

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Fund Cash $1,075,000 $0 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $375,000 $375,000

Gateway Fund Cash $250,000 $300,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $1,325,000 $300,000 $350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $375,000 $375,000

CIP 92570CIP 92570 American Disability Act Ramp American Disability Act Ramp
and Sidewalk Projectand Sidewalk Project

New FacilityNew Facility

Project Manager: Project Manager: Bailey RatcliffeBailey Ratcliffe  - Engineering- Engineering



Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 12871 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 8. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 12871, a Community Development Block Grant Funding Agreement, and all related
documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development, for the funding of public service activities, non-public service activities, housing, direct
delivery of services, and administration.

Item Summary
This is a contract for a Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The funds will be used for public service activities,
non-public service activities, housing, direct delivery of services, and administration.
  

• 2024-2028 Consolidated Plan and 2024-2025 Annual Action Plan drafts
• Community Development & Services Board (CDSB)
• Public Hearing held March 13, 2024
• 30-day public comment period
• Public Meeting held April 10, 2024

  
These plan documents were submitted to HUD and serve as the City’s application for, and proposed use
of CDBG Grant. HUD has reviewed and approved the Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan.
 
On April 23, 2024, the City Council approved the resolution for the 2024-28 Consolidated Plan and
2024-25 Annual Action Plan.

Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact on the General Fund involved with this contract. The funds used originate from
HUD. The maximum allocation of this grant is $2,197,708.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Director of Community Development

Attachments
CDBG Resolution 
Agreement 12871 pdf 





24 CFR 570                        form HUD-7082 (5/15) 

Funding Approval/Agreement 
Title I of the Housing and Community 
Development Act (Public Law 930383) 
HI-00515R of 20515R 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development  
Office of Community Planning and Development  
Community Development Block Grant Program 

1. Name of Grantee (as shown in item 5 of Standard Form 424) 
City of Lubbock 

3a. Grantee’s 9-digit Tax ID Number 
756000590 

3b. Grantee’s 9-digit DUNS Number 
LXDNEKWRVKJ6 (UEI) 

2. Grantee’s Complete Address (as shown in item 5 of Standard Form 424) 
Po Box 2000 
Lubbock, TX 79457-0001 

4. Date use of funds may begin 
10/01/2024 

 

5a. Project/Grant No. 1 
B-24-MC-48-0022 

6a. Amount Approved 
$2,197,708.00 (by this action) 

5b. Project/Grant No. 2 
      

6b. Amount Approved 
      

Grant Agreement:  This Grant Agreement between the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the above named Grantee is made pursuant to the 
authority of Title I of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, as amended, (42 USC 5301 et seq.). The Grantee’s submissions for Title I assistance, the 
HUD regulations at 24 CFR Part 570 (as now in effect and as may be amended from time to time), and this Funding Approval, including any additional and/or special 
conditions, constitute part of the Agreement.  Subject to the provisions of this Grant Agreement, HUD will make the funding assistance specified here available to the 
Grantee upon execution of the Agreement by the parties.  The funding assistance specified in the Funding Approval may be used to pay costs incurred after the date 
specified in item 4 above provided the activities to which such costs are related are carried out in compliance with all applicable requirements.  Pre-agreement costs may 
not be paid with funding assistance specified here unless they are authorized in HUD regulations or approved by waiver and listed in the additional and/or special 
conditions to the Funding Approval.  The Grantee agrees to assume all of the responsibilities for environmental review, decision making, and actions, as specified and 
required in regulations issued by the Secretary pursuant to Section 104(g) of Title I and published in 24 CFR Part 58.  The Grantee further acknowledges its responsibility 
for adherence to the Agreement by sub-recipient entities to which it makes funding assistance hereunder available.  
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (By Name) 

Shirley J. Henley 
Grantee Name (Contractual Organization) 

CITY OF LUBBOCK 
Title  

CPD Director 
Title 

 
Signature 

X

 

Date (mm/dd/yyyy) 
      

Signature 

X

 

Date (mm/dd/yyyy) 
      

7. Category of Title I Assistance for this Funding Action: 
 

Entitlement, Sec 106(b) 

8. Additional/Special Conditions 
(check one) 

  
 Attached 

 

9a. Date HUD Received Submission 
  8/6/2024 

10. check one 
 a. Orig. Funding 

Approval 
 b. Amendment 

Amendment Number 

9b. Date Grantee Notified 
(mm/dd/yyyy)        

9c. Date of Start of Program Year 
10/01/2024 

11. Amount of Community Development 
 Block Grant FY 2024 FY 2023  
 a. Funds Reserved for this Grantee    
 b. Funds now being Approved $2,197,663.00 $  45.00  
 c. Reservation to be Cancelled 

(11a minus 11b) 
             

12a. Amount of Loan Guarantee Commitment now being Approved 
N/A 

12b. Name and complete Address of Public Agency 
 

Loan Guarantee Acceptance Provisions for Designated Agencies: 
The public agency hereby accepts the Grant Agreement executed by the 
Department of Housing and Urban Development on the above date with 
respect to the above grant number(s) as Grantee designated to receive loan 
guarantee assistance, and agrees to comply with the terms and conditions 
of the Agreement, applicable regulations, and other requirements of HUD 
now or hereafter in effect, pertaining to the assistance provided it. 

12c. Name of Authorized Official for Designated Public Agency 
 

Title 
 

Signature 

X

 
HUD Accounting use Only 
           Effective Date 
Batch TAC Program Y A Reg Area Document No. Project Number Category Amount (mm/dd/yyyy) F 
 

 Y Project Number Amount 
 

 Y Project Number Amount 
 

Date Entered PAS (mm/dd/yyyy) 
      

Date Entered LOCCS (mm/dd/yyyy) 
      

Batch Number 
      

Transaction Code 
      

Entered By Verified By 

OMB Approval No. 2506-0193  
exp 1/31/2025 

1 

1 7 6 

5 3 

9/6/2024



8.         Additional Conditions. 
 

(a) The period of performance and single budget period for the funding assistance 
specified in the Funding Approval (“Funding Assistance”) shall each begin on the 
date specified in item 4 and shall each end on September 1, 2031.  The Grantee 
shall not incur any obligations to be paid with such assistance after September 1, 
2031. 

 
(b) The Grantee must complete Addendum #1 to Agreement “Grantee Indirect Cost 

Rate(s)” and return it to HUD with this Agreement. The addendum HUD receives 
from the Grantee will be incorporated into and made part of this Agreement, 
provided that the rate information is consistent with the applicable requirements 
under 2 CFR part 200. The Grantee must immediately notify HUD upon any 
change in the Grantee’s indirect cost rate, so that HUD can amend the Agreement 
to reflect the change if necessary. 

 
(c) In addition to the conditions contained on form HUD 7082, the grantee shall 

comply with requirements established by the Office of Management and Budget 
(OMB) concerning the Dun and Bradstreet Data Universal Numbering System 
(DUNS); the System for Award Management (SAM.gov.); the Federal Funding 
Accountability and Transparency Act as provided in 2 CFR part 25, Universal 
Identifier and General Contractor Registration; and 2 CFR part 170, Reporting 
Subaward and Executive Compensation Information. 
 

(d) The grantee shall ensure that no CDBG funds are used to support any Federal, 
State, or local projects that seek to use the power of eminent domain, unless 
eminent domain is employed only for a public use.  For the purposes of this 
requirement, public use shall not be construed to include economic development 
that primarily benefits private entities.   Any use of funds for mass transit, 
railroad, airport, seaport or highway projects as well as utility projects which 
benefit or serve the general public (including energy-related, communication-
related, water- related and wastewater-related infrastructure), other structures 
designated for use by the general public or which have other common-carrier or 
public-utility functions that serve the general public and are subject to regulation 
and oversight by the government, and projects for the removal of an immediate 
threat to public health and safety or brownfield as defined in the Small Business 
Liability Relief and Brownfields Revitalization Act (Public Law 107–118) shall 
be considered a public use for purposes of eminent domain.  
 

(e) The Grantee or unit of general local government that directly or indirectly 
receives CDBG funds may not sell, trade, or otherwise transfer all or any such 
portion of such funds to another such entity in exchange for any other funds, 
credits or non-Federal considerations, but must use such funds for activities 
eligible under title I of the Act.  
 

(f) E.O. 12372-Special Contract Condition - Notwithstanding any other provision of 
this agreement, no funds provided under this agreement may be obligated or 
expended for the planning or construction of water or sewer facilities until receipt 



of written notification from HUD of the release of funds on completion of the 
review procedures required under Executive Order (E.O.) 12372, 
Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs, and HUD's implementing 
regulations at 24 CFR Part 52.  The recipient shall also complete the review 
procedures required under E.O. 12372 and 24 CFR Part 52 and receive written 
notification from HUD of the release of funds before obligating or expending any 
funds provided under this agreement for any new or revised activity for the 
planning or construction of water or sewer facilities not previously reviewed 
under E.O. 12372 and implementing regulations. 
 

(g) CDBG funds may not be provided to a for-profit entity pursuant to section 
105(a)(17) of the Act unless such activity or project has been evaluated and 
selected in accordance with Appendix A to 24 CFR 570 - “Guidelines and 
Objectives for Evaluating Project Costs and Financial Requirements.”  (Source - 
P.L. 113-235, Consolidated and Further Continuing Appropriations Act, 2015, 
Division K, Title II, Community Development Fund). 

 
(h) The Grantee must comply with the requirements of the Build America, Buy 

America (BABA) Act, 41 USC 8301 note, and all applicable rules and notices, as 
may be amended, if applicable to the Grantee’s infrastructure project. Pursuant to 
HUD’s Notice, “Public Interest Phased Implementation Waiver for FY 2022 and 
2023 of Build America, Buy America Provisions as Applied to Recipients of 
HUD Federal Financial Assistance” (88 FR 17001), any funds obligated by HUD 
on or after the applicable listed effective dates, are subject to BABA 
requirements, unless excepted by a waiver. 

 
(h)  Waste, Fraud, Abuse, and Whistleblower Protections. Any person who becomes 

aware of the existence or apparent existence of fraud, waste or abuse of any HUD 
award must report such incidents to both the HUD official responsible for the 
award and to HUD’s Office of Inspector General (OIG). HUD OIG is available to 
receive allegations of fraud, waste, and abuse related to HUD programs via its 
hotline number (1-800-347-3735) and its online hotline form. You must comply 
with 41 U.S.C. § 4712, which includes informing your employees in writing of 
their rights and remedies, in the predominant native language of the workforce. 
Under 41 U.S.C. § 4712, employees of a government contractor, subcontractor, 
grantee, and subgrantee—as well as a personal services contractor—who make a 
protected disclosure about a Federal grant or contract cannot be discharged, 
demoted, or otherwise discriminated against as long as they reasonably believe 
the information they disclose is evidence of: 1. Gross mismanagement of a 
Federal contract or grant; 2. Waste of Federal funds; 3. Abuse of authority 
relating to a Federal contract or grant; 4. Substantial and specific danger to public 
health and safety; or 5. Violations of law, rule, or regulation related to a Federal 
contract or grant. 

 
(i)  The Grantee will comply with the right to report crime and emergencies 

protections at 34 U.S.C. 12495 of the Violence Against Women Act. 
 

  



Addendum # 1 to Agreement B-24-MC-48-0022 
Grantee Indirect Cost Rate(s)  

 
As the duly authorized representative of the Grantee, I certify that the Grantee:  

 Will not use an indirect cost rate to calculate and charge indirect costs under the grant.  

 Will calculate and charge indirect costs under the grant by applying a de minimis rate as 
provided by 2 CFR 200.414(f), as may be amended from time to time. 

 Will calculate and charge indirect costs under the grant using the indirect cost rate(s) listed 
below, and each rate listed is included in an indirect cost rate proposal developed in accordance 
with the applicable appendix to 2 CFR part 200 and, if required, was approved by the cognizant 
agency for indirect costs. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Instructions for the Grantee’s Authorized Representative:  

You must mark the one (and only one) checkbox above that best reflects how the 
Grantee’s indirect costs will be calculated and charged under the grant.  Do not 
include indirect cost rate information for subrecipients. 

The table following the third box must be completed only if that box is checked.  
When listing a rate in the table, enter both the percentage amount (e.g., 10%) and the 
type of direct cost base to be used. For example, if the direct cost base used for 
calculating indirect costs is Modified Total Direct Costs, then enter “MTDC” in the 
“Type of Direct Cost Base” column.  

If using the Simplified Allocation Method for indirect costs, enter the applicable 
indirect cost rate and type of direct cost base in the first row of the table.   

If using the Multiple Allocation Base Method, enter each major function of the 
organization for which a rate was developed and will be used under the grant, the 
indirect cost rate applicable to that major function, and the type of direct cost base to 
which the rate will be applied.  

If the Grantee is a government and more than one agency or department will carry 
out activities under the grant, enter each agency or department that will carry out 
activities under the grant, the indirect cost rate(s) for that agency or department, and 
the type of direct cost base to which each rate will be applied.   

To learn more about the indirect cost requirements, see 2 CFR part 200, subpart E and 
Appendix VII to Part 200 (for state and local governments).

 

Agency/department/major function Indirect cost rate  Type of Direct Cost Base 
 %  
 %  
 %  

Name of Authorized Official:  
 

 
Title:  

 
 

Signature: 

X

Date 
(mm/dd/yyyy):  
 
 
  /  /     

X



 AI# 12872 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 9. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 12872, an Emergency Solutions Grant Funding Agreement, and all related documents, by and
between the City of Lubbock and the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, for the
funding of Emergency Shelter, Rapid Re-Housing, Homeless Management Information Systems, and
administration.

Item Summary
This is a contract for an Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) Funding Agreement from the U. S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The funds will be used for Emergency Shelter,
Rapid Re-Housing, Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) and administration.
  

• 2024-2028 Consolidated Plan and 2024-2025 Annual Action Plan drafts
• Community Development & Services Board (CDSB)
• Public Hearing held March 13, 2024
• 30-day public comment period
• Public Meeting held April 10, 2024

  
These plan documents were submitted to HUD and serve as the City’s application for, and proposed use
of ESG Funding. HUD has reviewed and approved the Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan.
 
On April 23, 2024, the City Council approved the resolution for the 2024-28 Consolidated Plan and
2024-25 Annual Action Plan.

Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact on the General Fund involved with this contract. The funds used originate from
HUD. The maximum allocation of this grant is $197,378.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Director of Community Development

Attachments
ESG Resolution 
Agreement - 12872 pdf 





 Page 1 form HUD-40093 

                                                                                     
Funding Approval and HOME 
Investment Partnerships Agreement 
Title II of the National Affordable Housing Act 
Assistance Listings #14.239 – HOME Investment Partnerships Program 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Office of Community Planning and Development 

1.  Grantee Name (must match the name associated with 3b.) and 
Address 

City of Lubbock 
Po Box 2000 
Lubbock, TX  79457-0001 

2. Grant Number (Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN)) 
M24-MC480205 

3a Tax Identification Number 
 756000590 

3b. Unique Entity Identifier (formerly DUNS) 
LXDNEKWRVKJ6 

4. Appropriation Number 
86 4/7 0205 

5. Budget Period Start and End Date 
FY 2024 through FY 2032 

6. Previous Obligation (Enter “0” for initial FY allocation) $0.00 

 a. Formula Funds $       
7. Budget Approved by the Federal Awarding Agency/Current Transaction (+ or -) $954,695.58  

 a. Formula Funds $954,695.58   
  1. CHDO (For deobligations only) $       
  2. Non- CHDO (For deobligations only) $       
8. Revised Obligation $      
 a. Formula Funds $       
9. Special Conditions (check applicable box)    

         Not applicable          Attached  

10. Federal Award Date (HUD Official’s Signature Date) 

  (mm/dd/yyyy)      /    /      
11. Indirect Cost Rate* 

See Addendum 
12. Period of Performance Start and End Date 
   Date in Box #10 - 09/30/2033 

This Agreement between the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the Grantee is made pursuant to the authority of the HOME Investment Partnerships 
Act (42 U.S.C. 12701 et seq.). The Grantee’s approved Consolidated Plan submission/Application, the HUD regulations at 24 CFR Part 92 (as is now in effect and as may be 
amended from time to time) and this HOME Investment Partnership Agreement, form HUD-40093, including any special conditions, constitute part of this Agreement. Subject to 
the provisions of this Agreement, HUD will make the funds for the Fiscal Year specified, available to the Grantee upon execution of this Agreement by the parties. All funds for the 
specified Fiscal Year provided by HUD by formula reallocation are covered by this Agreement upon execution of an amendment by HUD, without the Grantee’s execution of the 
amendment or other consent. HUD’s payment of funds under this Agreement is subject to the Grantee’s compliance with HUD’s electronic funds transfer and information reporting 
procedures issued pursuant to 24 CFR 92.502. To the extent authorized by HUD regulations at 24 CFR Part 92, HUD may, by its execution of an amendment, deobligate funds 
previously awarded to the Grantee without the Grantee’s execution of the amendment or other consent. The Grantee agrees that funds invested in affordable housing under 24 
CFR Part 92 are repayable when the housing no longer qualifies as affordable housing. Repayment shall be made as specified in 24 CFR Part 92. The Grantee agrees to assume 
all of the responsibility for environmental review, decision making, and actions, as specified and required in regulation at 24 CFR 92.352 and 24 CFR Part 58.  

The Grantee must comply with the applicable requirements at 2 CFR part 200 that are incorporated by the program regulations, as may be amended from time to time. Where 
any previous or future amendments to 2 CFR part 200 replace or renumber sections of part 200 that are cited specifically in the program regulations, activities carried out under the 
grant after the effective date of the part 200 amendments will be governed by the 2 CFR part 200 requirements as replaced or renumbered by the part 200 amendments. 

The Grantee must use the Grant Funds only for costs (including indirect costs) that meet the applicable requirements in 2 CFR part 200 (including appendices). The 
Grantee must complete the Addendum to Agreement Grantee Indirect Cost Rate(s) (Addendum) and return it to HUD with this Agreement.  The Addendum will be incorporated 
into and made part of this Agreement, if, and only if, the rate information provided by Grantee in the Addendum is consistent with the applicable requirements under 2 CFR part 
200. The Grantee must immediately notify HUD upon any change in the Grantee’s indirect cost rate, so that HUD can amend the Agreement to reflect the change if necessary.   

The Grantee shall comply with requirements established by the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) concerning the Universal Numbering System and System for Award 
Management (SAM) requirements in Appendix I to 2 CFR part 200, and the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) in Appendix A to 2 CFR part 170. 

The Period of Performance for the funding assistance shall begin on the date specified in item 12 and shall end on September 1st of the 6th fiscal year after the expiration of 
the period of availability for obligation. Funds remaining in the account will be cancelled and thereafter not available for obligation or expenditure for any purpose. Per 31 U.S.C. 
1552. The Grantee shall not incur any obligations to be paid with such assistance after the end of the Period of Performance.  

The Grantee must comply with the requirements of the Build America, Buy America (BABA) Act, 41 U.S.C. 8301 note, and all applicable rules and notices, as may be amended, 
if applicable to the Grantee’s infrastructure project. Pursuant to HUD’s Notice, “Public Interest Phased Implementation Waiver for FY 2022 and 2023 of Build America, Buy America 
Provisions as Applied to Recipients of HUD Federal Financial Assistance” (88 FR 17001) 2023-05698.pdf (govinfo.gov), any funds obligated by HUD on or after the applicable 
listed effective dates, are subject to BABA requirements, unless excepted by a waiver.  

Waste, Fraud, Abuse, and Whistleblower Protections: Any person who becomes aware of the existence or apparent existence of fraud, waste or abuse of any HUD award 
must reports such incidents to both the HUD official responsible for the award and to HUD’s Office of Inspector General (OIG). HUD OIG is available to receive allegations of fraud, 
waste, and abuse related to HUD programs via its hotline number (1-800-347-3735) and its online hotline form. You must comply with 41 U.S.C. § 4712, which includes informing 
your employees in writing of their rights and remedies, in the predominant native language of the workforce. Under 41 U.S.C. § 4712, employees of a government contractor, 
subcontractor, grantee, and subgrantee- as well as personal services contractor- who make a protected disclosure about a Federal grant or contract cannot be discharged, demoted, 
or otherwise discriminated against as long as they reasonably believe the information they disclose is evidence of: 1. Gross mismanagement of a contract or grant; 2. Waste of 
Federal funds; 3. Abuse of authority relating to a Federal contract or grant; 4. Substantial and specific danger to public health and safety; or 5. Violations of law, rule, or regulation 
related to a Federal contract or grant. 

 
13. For the U.S. Department of HUD (Name and Title of Authorized Official) 

 Shirley J. Henley, CPD Director 
14. Signature 15. Date 

   /    /      

16. For the Grantee (Name and Title of Authorized Official) 
       

17. Signature 18. Date 
   /    /      

 
  

9/6/2024

9/6/2024



 Page 2 form HUD-40093 

19. Check one: 
  Initial Agreement  Amendment #                      
20. Funding Information: HOME 

Source of Funds Appropriation Code PAS Code Amount 
2024 
2023 

86 4/7 0205 
86 3/6 0205 

HMF (N) 
HMF (M) 

$953,630.25  
$1,065.33  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 Page 3 form HUD-40093 

Addendum to Agreement M24-MC480205 
Grantee Indirect Cost Rate(s)  

As the duly authorized representative of the Grantee, I certify that the Grantee:  
☐ Will not use an indirect cost rate to calculate and charge indirect costs under the grant.  

 Will calculate and charge indirect costs under the grant by applying a de minimis rate as provided by  
2 CFR 200.414(f), as may be amended from time to time. 

 Will calculate and charge indirect costs under the grant using the indirect cost rate(s) listed below, and 
each rate listed is included in an indirect cost rate proposal developed in accordance with the applicable 
appendix to 2 CFR part 200 and, if required, was approved by the cognizant agency for indirect costs. 

 
Agency/department/major function Indirect cost rate Type of Direct Cost Base 

 %  
 %  
 %  

 
Instructions for the Grantee’s Authorized Representative:  
You must mark the one (and only one) checkbox above that best reflects how the Grantee’s indirect costs will be 
calculated and charged under the grant.  Do not include indirect cost rate information for subrecipients. 

 

 

 

The table following the third box must be completed only if that box is checked.  When listing a rate in the table, enter 
both the percentage amount (e.g., 10%) and the type of direct cost base to be used. For example, if the direct cost base 
used for calculating indirect costs is Modified Total Direct Costs, then enter “MTDC” in the “Type of Direct Cost Base” 
column.  

If using the Simplified Allocation Method for indirect costs, enter the applicable indirect cost rate and type of direct cost 
base in the first row of the table.   

If using the Multiple Allocation Base Method, enter each major function of the organization for which a rate was 
developed and will be used under the grant, the indirect cost rate applicable to that major function, and the type of direct 
cost base to which the rate will be applied.  

If the Grantee is a government and more than one agency or department will carry out activities under the grant, enter 
each agency or department that will carry out activities under the grant, the indirect cost rate(s) for that agency or 
department, and the type of direct cost base to which each rate will be applied.   

To learn more about the indirect cost requirements, see 2 CFR part 200, subpart E; Appendix IV to Part 200 (for nonprofit 
organizations); and Appendix VII to Part 200 (for state and local governments). 
  

Name of Authorized Official:  
 

 
Title:  

 
 

Signature: 

X

Date (mm/dd/yyyy):  
 
 
  /  /     

X



 Page 4 form HUD-40093 

Instructions for Completing the Funding Approval and HOME Investment Partnerships Agreement 

General Instructions: This Agreement is used for 
one of three purposes: 1) the initial Agreement 
between HUD and the Participating Jurisdiction (PJ) 
that obligates HOME formula funds; 2) the initial 
Agreement between HUD and the PJ/entity that 
obligates Community Housing Development 
Organization (CHDO) competitive reallocation 
funds; 3) the amendment to the Agreement that 
deobligates an amount of a PJ/entity’s HOME funds 
previously obligated because of a reduction of funds 
by HUD. 
 
For all initial Agreements - The Agreement (HUD-
40093) must have an original or electronic signature 
by the appropriate HUD official, who is usually the 
Community Planning and Development (CPD) 
Director in the Field Office.  After the HUD official 
signs the Agreement, it must be sent to the 
jurisdiction (or entity) for signature. The jurisdiction 
(or entity) must sign or electronically sign the 
Agreement and should retain a copy for its records.  
The jurisdiction (or entity) must return the signed 
Agreement to the HUD Field Office. The HUD Field 
Office must forward the executed Agreement to the 
CFO National Accounting Center for recording and 
retain a copy for the Field Office files. 
 
For amendments to the Agreement that deobligate 
funds because of a reduction by HUD - after 
notification from the Headquarters’ Office of 
Affordable Housing (OAHP) to proceed, the 
Agreement (HUD-40093) must be signed or 
electronically signed by the appropriate HUD official, 
who is usually the CPD Director in the Field Office. It 
is not necessary to have the jurisdiction sign the form.  
(Also, please See #8 below) The Field Office should 
send one copy to the jurisdiction (or entity) for its 
records. Forward the HUD signed amendment to the 
CFO National Accounting Center to initiate the 
deobligation. Email a copy to Headquarters, OAHP, 
Financial and Information Services Division so that 
Headquarters can track the deobligation. Retain a copy 
for the Field Office files. 
 
1. Participant Name and Address. The 

participating jurisdiction’s (or entity’s) name and 
address as shown in Box 4 of Standard Form 424. 

 
2. Grant Number. The applicable grant number 

assigned by the HUD for the PJ/entity that 
corresponds to the fiscal year source of funds for 
this transaction. 

 
3a. Tax Identification Number. Enter the Tax 

(Employer). Identification Number (TIN) shown 
in Box 8b of Standard Form 424. For jurisdictions 
(or entities) that are already participating in the 
HOME Program, this must be the TIN associated 

with the jurisdiction (or entity) for the HOME 
Program. 

 
3b. Unique Entity Identifier. The identifier required 

for SAM registration to uniquely identify business 
entities shown in Box 8c of Standard Form 424 
(formerly known as DUNS). For jurisdictions (or 
entities) that are already participating in the 
HOME Program, this must be the Unique Entity 
Identifier associated with the jurisdiction (or 
entity) for the HOME Program. 
 

4. Appropriation Number. The Appropriation 
Number from the HUD-185 sub-assigning funds 
for the Fiscal Year source of funds for this 
transaction. 

 
5. Budget Start and End Date. Indicate the fiscal 

years of funds for this transaction.  
 
6. Previous Obligation. Enter the total amount of 

funds that have been previously obligated for this 
participant for this FY source of funds. 
a. Formula Funds. Enter the total amount of 

formula funds previously obligated to the 
participant. If this is the funding approval 
form for the participant’s initial allocation for 
the fiscal year, the amount will be “0”.  If this 
is a funding approval form for reallocating or 
deobligating funds, enter the amount from 
Box 7 of the previously submitted form 
HUD-40093 for the FY identified in Box 5. 

b. Community Housing Development 
Organization (CHDO) Competitive 
Reallocation.  Enter the amount of funds 
previously obligated to the PJ/entity by 
competition for CHDOs. If this is a funding 
approval form for reallocating or 
deobligating funds previously allocated by 
competition for CHDOs, enter the amount 
from Box 7 of the previously submitted form 
HUD-40093 for the FY identified in Box 5. 

 
7. Current Transaction. Enter the total amount of 

funds for this action. Indicate a deobligation either 
by placing parentheses around the amount 
deobligated or a minus sign before the amount 
deobligated. 
a. Formula Funds. Of the amount indicated in 

Box 7, indicate the amount that is for formula 
funds. If this is a formula fund deobligation, 
show the distribution of that amount of funds 
in Box 7a.1 CHDO funds and/or Box 7a.2 
non-CHDO funds. 
1. CHDO. Of the amount indicated in Box 

7a, indicate the amount that is CHDO 
funds. If none, enter “0.” Note: If this is 
a CHDO competitive reallocation, enter 
the amount in 7b. 

 



Instructions for Completing the Funding Approval and HOME Investment Partnerships Agreement 

 

 5 form HUD-40093 
 

2. Non-CHDO. Of the amount indicated in 
Box 7a, indicate the amount that is Non-
CHDO funds. If none, enter “0. 

 
b. CHDO Competitive Reallocation or 

Deobligation.  Of the amount indicated in 
Box 7, indicate the amount that is reallocated 
or deobligated from the CHDO competition 
funds. 

 
8. Revised Obligation. Enter the total amount of 

funds available to the jurisdiction (or entity) after 
this transaction (Box 6 plus/minus Box 7). Most 
grants have several source years of funds, 
therefore, the funding information in #20 must be 
filled out with the applicable source year of funds 
and amounts to be deobligated.  
a. Formula Funds. Enter the total amount of 

formula funds available to the participating 
jurisdiction after this transaction (Box 6a 
plus/minus Box 7a). 

b. CHDO Competitive Reallocation. Enter the 
total amount of funds available to the 
PJ/entity as a competitive reallocation for 
CHDOs after this transaction (Box 6b 
plus/minus Box 7b). 

 
9. Special Conditions. If applicable, check the box 

and attach any special conditions that are part of 
the Agreement. 

 
10. Federal Award Date.  This is the date of 

obligation which is the initial date of the HUD 
Authorized Official’s signature (Box 15) This 
date of the initial obligation does not change 
regardless of the Agreement being amended for a 
deobligation because of a reduction by HUD. 

 
11. Indirect Cost Rate. If funding assistance will be 

used for payment of indirect costs pursuant to 2 
CFR 200, Subpart E-Cost Principles, complete the 
Addendum to Agreement Grantee (Indirect Cost 
Rate(s), including the name of the 
department/agency, its indirect cost rate 
(including if the de minimis rate is charged per 2 
§ CFR 200.414(f)), and the direct cost base to 
which the rate will be applied (for example, 
Modified Total Direct Costs (MTCD)). If the rate 

information provided by Recipient in the 
Addendum is consistent with the applicable 
requirements in 2 CFR Part 200, the Addendum 
will be incorporated into and made part of the 
Agreement. The Recipient also shall provide 
HUD with a revised schedule if changes occur, 
and shall become incorporated herein upon 
HUD’s amendment to the Agreement.  If there are 
more than four agencies/departments carrying out 
activities with the Funding Assistance, attach a 
list with the additional agencies/departments that 
will carry out activities with the Funding 
Assistance. Do not include indirect cost rates for 
subrecipients. 

 
12. Period of Performance. Performance begins on 

the initial date of the HUD Authorized 
Official’s signature (Box 15 and Box 10) and 
ends on September 30tht of the 6th fiscal year after 
the expiration of the period of availability for 
obligation. 

 
13. For the U.S. Department of HUD (Name and 

Title of Authorized Official). Enter the name and 
title of the HUD official who is authorized to sign 
the Agreement on behalf of HUD. This is usually 
the Field Office CPD Director. 

 
14. Signature. The authorized HUD official signs the 

Agreement here. 
 
15. Date. Enter the date the authorized HUD official 

signed the form. In the case of initial agreements.  
This is also the same date as the Federal Award 
Date, date of obligation (Box 10). 

 
16. For the Participating Jurisdiction/Entity 

(Name and Title of Authorized Office). Enter 
the name and title of the official authorized to sign 
on behalf of the participating jurisdiction/entity. 
This is not required if the Agreement is being 
amended for a deobligation because of a reduction 
by HUD. 

 
17. Signature of PJ/Entity Official. The PJ/entity 

official signs the Agreement here. This is not 
required if the Agreement is being amended for a 
deobligation because of a reduction by HUD. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
18. Date. Enter the date the PJ/Entity official signs 

the Agreement. This is not required if the 
Agreement is being amended for a deobligation 
because of a reduction by HUD.  

 
 



Instructions for Completing the Funding Approval and HOME Investment Partnerships Agreement 

 

 6 form HUD-40093 
 

 
19. Type of Agreement. Check either Initial 

Agreement or Amendment #.  If an amendment, 
indicate the amendment number. 

 

20. Funding Information. For each source year of 
funding, the following information is provided: 
Source year of Funds, Appropriation Code, PAS 
Code (with fiscal year indicator code), and 
amount.  

 



 AI# 12873 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 10. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 12873, a HOME Investment Partnership and Funding Agreement, and all related documents, by
and between the City of Lubbock and the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, for the
funding of Community Housing Development Organization operations and projects, affordable housing,
and administration.

Item Summary
This is a contract for a HOME Grant from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD). The funds will be used for Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) operations
and projects, affordable housing, and administration.
  

• 2024-2028 Consolidated Plan and 2024-2025 Annual Action Plan drafts
• Community Development & Services Board (CDSB)
• Public Hearing held March 13, 2024
• 30-day public comment period
• Public Meeting held April 10, 2024

  
These plan documents were submitted to HUD and serve as the City’s application for, and proposed use
of a HOME Grant. HUD has reviewed and approved the Consolidated Plan and Annual Action Plan.
 
On April 23, 2024, the City Council approved the resolution for the 2024-28 Consolidated Plan and
2024-25 Annual Action Plan.

Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact on the General Fund involved with this contract. The funds used originate from
HUD. The maximum allocation of this grant is $954,695.58.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Director of Community Development

Attachments
HOME Resolution 
Agreement - 12873 pdf 





 Page 1 form HUD-40093 

                                                                                     
Funding Approval and HOME 
Investment Partnerships Agreement 
Title II of the National Affordable Housing Act 
Assistance Listings #14.239 – HOME Investment Partnerships Program 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Office of Community Planning and Development 

1.  Grantee Name (must match the name associated with 3b.) and 
Address 

City of Lubbock 
Po Box 2000 
Lubbock, TX  79457-0001 

2. Grant Number (Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN)) 
M24-MC480205 

3a Tax Identification Number 
 756000590 

3b. Unique Entity Identifier (formerly DUNS) 
LXDNEKWRVKJ6 

4. Appropriation Number 
86 4/7 0205 

5. Budget Period Start and End Date 
FY 2024 through FY 2032 

6. Previous Obligation (Enter “0” for initial FY allocation) $0.00 

 a. Formula Funds $       
7. Budget Approved by the Federal Awarding Agency/Current Transaction (+ or -) $954,695.58  

 a. Formula Funds $954,695.58   
  1. CHDO (For deobligations only) $       
  2. Non- CHDO (For deobligations only) $       
8. Revised Obligation $      
 a. Formula Funds $       
9. Special Conditions (check applicable box)    

         Not applicable          Attached  

10. Federal Award Date (HUD Official’s Signature Date) 

  (mm/dd/yyyy)      /    /      
11. Indirect Cost Rate* 

See Addendum 
12. Period of Performance Start and End Date 
   Date in Box #10 - 09/30/2033 

This Agreement between the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and the Grantee is made pursuant to the authority of the HOME Investment Partnerships 
Act (42 U.S.C. 12701 et seq.). The Grantee’s approved Consolidated Plan submission/Application, the HUD regulations at 24 CFR Part 92 (as is now in effect and as may be 
amended from time to time) and this HOME Investment Partnership Agreement, form HUD-40093, including any special conditions, constitute part of this Agreement. Subject to 
the provisions of this Agreement, HUD will make the funds for the Fiscal Year specified, available to the Grantee upon execution of this Agreement by the parties. All funds for the 
specified Fiscal Year provided by HUD by formula reallocation are covered by this Agreement upon execution of an amendment by HUD, without the Grantee’s execution of the 
amendment or other consent. HUD’s payment of funds under this Agreement is subject to the Grantee’s compliance with HUD’s electronic funds transfer and information reporting 
procedures issued pursuant to 24 CFR 92.502. To the extent authorized by HUD regulations at 24 CFR Part 92, HUD may, by its execution of an amendment, deobligate funds 
previously awarded to the Grantee without the Grantee’s execution of the amendment or other consent. The Grantee agrees that funds invested in affordable housing under 24 
CFR Part 92 are repayable when the housing no longer qualifies as affordable housing. Repayment shall be made as specified in 24 CFR Part 92. The Grantee agrees to assume 
all of the responsibility for environmental review, decision making, and actions, as specified and required in regulation at 24 CFR 92.352 and 24 CFR Part 58.  

The Grantee must comply with the applicable requirements at 2 CFR part 200 that are incorporated by the program regulations, as may be amended from time to time. Where 
any previous or future amendments to 2 CFR part 200 replace or renumber sections of part 200 that are cited specifically in the program regulations, activities carried out under the 
grant after the effective date of the part 200 amendments will be governed by the 2 CFR part 200 requirements as replaced or renumbered by the part 200 amendments. 

The Grantee must use the Grant Funds only for costs (including indirect costs) that meet the applicable requirements in 2 CFR part 200 (including appendices). The 
Grantee must complete the Addendum to Agreement Grantee Indirect Cost Rate(s) (Addendum) and return it to HUD with this Agreement.  The Addendum will be incorporated 
into and made part of this Agreement, if, and only if, the rate information provided by Grantee in the Addendum is consistent with the applicable requirements under 2 CFR part 
200. The Grantee must immediately notify HUD upon any change in the Grantee’s indirect cost rate, so that HUD can amend the Agreement to reflect the change if necessary.   

The Grantee shall comply with requirements established by the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) concerning the Universal Numbering System and System for Award 
Management (SAM) requirements in Appendix I to 2 CFR part 200, and the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) in Appendix A to 2 CFR part 170. 

The Period of Performance for the funding assistance shall begin on the date specified in item 12 and shall end on September 1st of the 6th fiscal year after the expiration of 
the period of availability for obligation. Funds remaining in the account will be cancelled and thereafter not available for obligation or expenditure for any purpose. Per 31 U.S.C. 
1552. The Grantee shall not incur any obligations to be paid with such assistance after the end of the Period of Performance.  

The Grantee must comply with the requirements of the Build America, Buy America (BABA) Act, 41 U.S.C. 8301 note, and all applicable rules and notices, as may be amended, 
if applicable to the Grantee’s infrastructure project. Pursuant to HUD’s Notice, “Public Interest Phased Implementation Waiver for FY 2022 and 2023 of Build America, Buy America 
Provisions as Applied to Recipients of HUD Federal Financial Assistance” (88 FR 17001) 2023-05698.pdf (govinfo.gov), any funds obligated by HUD on or after the applicable 
listed effective dates, are subject to BABA requirements, unless excepted by a waiver.  

Waste, Fraud, Abuse, and Whistleblower Protections: Any person who becomes aware of the existence or apparent existence of fraud, waste or abuse of any HUD award 
must reports such incidents to both the HUD official responsible for the award and to HUD’s Office of Inspector General (OIG). HUD OIG is available to receive allegations of fraud, 
waste, and abuse related to HUD programs via its hotline number (1-800-347-3735) and its online hotline form. You must comply with 41 U.S.C. § 4712, which includes informing 
your employees in writing of their rights and remedies, in the predominant native language of the workforce. Under 41 U.S.C. § 4712, employees of a government contractor, 
subcontractor, grantee, and subgrantee- as well as personal services contractor- who make a protected disclosure about a Federal grant or contract cannot be discharged, demoted, 
or otherwise discriminated against as long as they reasonably believe the information they disclose is evidence of: 1. Gross mismanagement of a contract or grant; 2. Waste of 
Federal funds; 3. Abuse of authority relating to a Federal contract or grant; 4. Substantial and specific danger to public health and safety; or 5. Violations of law, rule, or regulation 
related to a Federal contract or grant. 

 
13. For the U.S. Department of HUD (Name and Title of Authorized Official) 

 Shirley J. Henley, CPD Director 
14. Signature 15. Date 

   /    /      

16. For the Grantee (Name and Title of Authorized Official) 
       

17. Signature 18. Date 
   /    /      

 
  

9/6/2024

9/6/2024



 Page 2 form HUD-40093 

19. Check one: 
  Initial Agreement  Amendment #                      
20. Funding Information: HOME 

Source of Funds Appropriation Code PAS Code Amount 
2024 
2023 

86 4/7 0205 
86 3/6 0205 

HMF (N) 
HMF (M) 

$953,630.25  
$1,065.33  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 Page 3 form HUD-40093 

Addendum to Agreement M24-MC480205 
Grantee Indirect Cost Rate(s)  

As the duly authorized representative of the Grantee, I certify that the Grantee:  
☐ Will not use an indirect cost rate to calculate and charge indirect costs under the grant.  

 Will calculate and charge indirect costs under the grant by applying a de minimis rate as provided by  
2 CFR 200.414(f), as may be amended from time to time. 

 Will calculate and charge indirect costs under the grant using the indirect cost rate(s) listed below, and 
each rate listed is included in an indirect cost rate proposal developed in accordance with the applicable 
appendix to 2 CFR part 200 and, if required, was approved by the cognizant agency for indirect costs. 

 
Agency/department/major function Indirect cost rate Type of Direct Cost Base 

 %  
 %  
 %  

 
Instructions for the Grantee’s Authorized Representative:  
You must mark the one (and only one) checkbox above that best reflects how the Grantee’s indirect costs will be 
calculated and charged under the grant.  Do not include indirect cost rate information for subrecipients. 

 

 

 

The table following the third box must be completed only if that box is checked.  When listing a rate in the table, enter 
both the percentage amount (e.g., 10%) and the type of direct cost base to be used. For example, if the direct cost base 
used for calculating indirect costs is Modified Total Direct Costs, then enter “MTDC” in the “Type of Direct Cost Base” 
column.  

If using the Simplified Allocation Method for indirect costs, enter the applicable indirect cost rate and type of direct cost 
base in the first row of the table.   

If using the Multiple Allocation Base Method, enter each major function of the organization for which a rate was 
developed and will be used under the grant, the indirect cost rate applicable to that major function, and the type of direct 
cost base to which the rate will be applied.  

If the Grantee is a government and more than one agency or department will carry out activities under the grant, enter 
each agency or department that will carry out activities under the grant, the indirect cost rate(s) for that agency or 
department, and the type of direct cost base to which each rate will be applied.   

To learn more about the indirect cost requirements, see 2 CFR part 200, subpart E; Appendix IV to Part 200 (for nonprofit 
organizations); and Appendix VII to Part 200 (for state and local governments). 
  

Name of Authorized Official:  
 

 
Title:  

 
 

Signature: 

X

Date (mm/dd/yyyy):  
 
 
  /  /     

X



 Page 4 form HUD-40093 

Instructions for Completing the Funding Approval and HOME Investment Partnerships Agreement 

General Instructions: This Agreement is used for 
one of three purposes: 1) the initial Agreement 
between HUD and the Participating Jurisdiction (PJ) 
that obligates HOME formula funds; 2) the initial 
Agreement between HUD and the PJ/entity that 
obligates Community Housing Development 
Organization (CHDO) competitive reallocation 
funds; 3) the amendment to the Agreement that 
deobligates an amount of a PJ/entity’s HOME funds 
previously obligated because of a reduction of funds 
by HUD. 
 
For all initial Agreements - The Agreement (HUD-
40093) must have an original or electronic signature 
by the appropriate HUD official, who is usually the 
Community Planning and Development (CPD) 
Director in the Field Office.  After the HUD official 
signs the Agreement, it must be sent to the 
jurisdiction (or entity) for signature. The jurisdiction 
(or entity) must sign or electronically sign the 
Agreement and should retain a copy for its records.  
The jurisdiction (or entity) must return the signed 
Agreement to the HUD Field Office. The HUD Field 
Office must forward the executed Agreement to the 
CFO National Accounting Center for recording and 
retain a copy for the Field Office files. 
 
For amendments to the Agreement that deobligate 
funds because of a reduction by HUD - after 
notification from the Headquarters’ Office of 
Affordable Housing (OAHP) to proceed, the 
Agreement (HUD-40093) must be signed or 
electronically signed by the appropriate HUD official, 
who is usually the CPD Director in the Field Office. It 
is not necessary to have the jurisdiction sign the form.  
(Also, please See #8 below) The Field Office should 
send one copy to the jurisdiction (or entity) for its 
records. Forward the HUD signed amendment to the 
CFO National Accounting Center to initiate the 
deobligation. Email a copy to Headquarters, OAHP, 
Financial and Information Services Division so that 
Headquarters can track the deobligation. Retain a copy 
for the Field Office files. 
 
1. Participant Name and Address. The 

participating jurisdiction’s (or entity’s) name and 
address as shown in Box 4 of Standard Form 424. 

 
2. Grant Number. The applicable grant number 

assigned by the HUD for the PJ/entity that 
corresponds to the fiscal year source of funds for 
this transaction. 

 
3a. Tax Identification Number. Enter the Tax 

(Employer). Identification Number (TIN) shown 
in Box 8b of Standard Form 424. For jurisdictions 
(or entities) that are already participating in the 
HOME Program, this must be the TIN associated 

with the jurisdiction (or entity) for the HOME 
Program. 

 
3b. Unique Entity Identifier. The identifier required 

for SAM registration to uniquely identify business 
entities shown in Box 8c of Standard Form 424 
(formerly known as DUNS). For jurisdictions (or 
entities) that are already participating in the 
HOME Program, this must be the Unique Entity 
Identifier associated with the jurisdiction (or 
entity) for the HOME Program. 
 

4. Appropriation Number. The Appropriation 
Number from the HUD-185 sub-assigning funds 
for the Fiscal Year source of funds for this 
transaction. 

 
5. Budget Start and End Date. Indicate the fiscal 

years of funds for this transaction.  
 
6. Previous Obligation. Enter the total amount of 

funds that have been previously obligated for this 
participant for this FY source of funds. 
a. Formula Funds. Enter the total amount of 

formula funds previously obligated to the 
participant. If this is the funding approval 
form for the participant’s initial allocation for 
the fiscal year, the amount will be “0”.  If this 
is a funding approval form for reallocating or 
deobligating funds, enter the amount from 
Box 7 of the previously submitted form 
HUD-40093 for the FY identified in Box 5. 

b. Community Housing Development 
Organization (CHDO) Competitive 
Reallocation.  Enter the amount of funds 
previously obligated to the PJ/entity by 
competition for CHDOs. If this is a funding 
approval form for reallocating or 
deobligating funds previously allocated by 
competition for CHDOs, enter the amount 
from Box 7 of the previously submitted form 
HUD-40093 for the FY identified in Box 5. 

 
7. Current Transaction. Enter the total amount of 

funds for this action. Indicate a deobligation either 
by placing parentheses around the amount 
deobligated or a minus sign before the amount 
deobligated. 
a. Formula Funds. Of the amount indicated in 

Box 7, indicate the amount that is for formula 
funds. If this is a formula fund deobligation, 
show the distribution of that amount of funds 
in Box 7a.1 CHDO funds and/or Box 7a.2 
non-CHDO funds. 
1. CHDO. Of the amount indicated in Box 

7a, indicate the amount that is CHDO 
funds. If none, enter “0.” Note: If this is 
a CHDO competitive reallocation, enter 
the amount in 7b. 

 



Instructions for Completing the Funding Approval and HOME Investment Partnerships Agreement 

 

 5 form HUD-40093 
 

2. Non-CHDO. Of the amount indicated in 
Box 7a, indicate the amount that is Non-
CHDO funds. If none, enter “0. 

 
b. CHDO Competitive Reallocation or 

Deobligation.  Of the amount indicated in 
Box 7, indicate the amount that is reallocated 
or deobligated from the CHDO competition 
funds. 

 
8. Revised Obligation. Enter the total amount of 

funds available to the jurisdiction (or entity) after 
this transaction (Box 6 plus/minus Box 7). Most 
grants have several source years of funds, 
therefore, the funding information in #20 must be 
filled out with the applicable source year of funds 
and amounts to be deobligated.  
a. Formula Funds. Enter the total amount of 

formula funds available to the participating 
jurisdiction after this transaction (Box 6a 
plus/minus Box 7a). 

b. CHDO Competitive Reallocation. Enter the 
total amount of funds available to the 
PJ/entity as a competitive reallocation for 
CHDOs after this transaction (Box 6b 
plus/minus Box 7b). 

 
9. Special Conditions. If applicable, check the box 

and attach any special conditions that are part of 
the Agreement. 

 
10. Federal Award Date.  This is the date of 

obligation which is the initial date of the HUD 
Authorized Official’s signature (Box 15) This 
date of the initial obligation does not change 
regardless of the Agreement being amended for a 
deobligation because of a reduction by HUD. 

 
11. Indirect Cost Rate. If funding assistance will be 

used for payment of indirect costs pursuant to 2 
CFR 200, Subpart E-Cost Principles, complete the 
Addendum to Agreement Grantee (Indirect Cost 
Rate(s), including the name of the 
department/agency, its indirect cost rate 
(including if the de minimis rate is charged per 2 
§ CFR 200.414(f)), and the direct cost base to 
which the rate will be applied (for example, 
Modified Total Direct Costs (MTCD)). If the rate 

information provided by Recipient in the 
Addendum is consistent with the applicable 
requirements in 2 CFR Part 200, the Addendum 
will be incorporated into and made part of the 
Agreement. The Recipient also shall provide 
HUD with a revised schedule if changes occur, 
and shall become incorporated herein upon 
HUD’s amendment to the Agreement.  If there are 
more than four agencies/departments carrying out 
activities with the Funding Assistance, attach a 
list with the additional agencies/departments that 
will carry out activities with the Funding 
Assistance. Do not include indirect cost rates for 
subrecipients. 

 
12. Period of Performance. Performance begins on 

the initial date of the HUD Authorized 
Official’s signature (Box 15 and Box 10) and 
ends on September 30tht of the 6th fiscal year after 
the expiration of the period of availability for 
obligation. 

 
13. For the U.S. Department of HUD (Name and 

Title of Authorized Official). Enter the name and 
title of the HUD official who is authorized to sign 
the Agreement on behalf of HUD. This is usually 
the Field Office CPD Director. 

 
14. Signature. The authorized HUD official signs the 

Agreement here. 
 
15. Date. Enter the date the authorized HUD official 

signed the form. In the case of initial agreements.  
This is also the same date as the Federal Award 
Date, date of obligation (Box 10). 

 
16. For the Participating Jurisdiction/Entity 

(Name and Title of Authorized Office). Enter 
the name and title of the official authorized to sign 
on behalf of the participating jurisdiction/entity. 
This is not required if the Agreement is being 
amended for a deobligation because of a reduction 
by HUD. 

 
17. Signature of PJ/Entity Official. The PJ/entity 

official signs the Agreement here. This is not 
required if the Agreement is being amended for a 
deobligation because of a reduction by HUD. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
18. Date. Enter the date the PJ/Entity official signs 

the Agreement. This is not required if the 
Agreement is being amended for a deobligation 
because of a reduction by HUD.  

 
 



Instructions for Completing the Funding Approval and HOME Investment Partnerships Agreement 

 

 6 form HUD-40093 
 

 
19. Type of Agreement. Check either Initial 

Agreement or Amendment #.  If an amendment, 
indicate the amendment number. 

 

20. Funding Information. For each source year of 
funding, the following information is provided: 
Source year of Funds, Appropriation Code, PAS 
Code (with fiscal year indicator code), and 
amount.  

 



 AI# 12874 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 11. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to grant the
waiver of Payment in Lieu of Taxes for Fiscal Year 2023, requested by the Lubbock Housing Authority.

Item Summary
In April 2003, the City Council amended the cooperation agreement dated August 24, 1995, between the
Lubbock Housing Authority (LHA) and the City of Lubbock, concerning the Payment in Lieu of
Taxes (PILOT). The amendment allows the City Council to reconsider the request to waive the PILOT
on an annual basis. Approval is based on the previous year’s use of the waived taxes to ensure the funds
were used on affordable housing projects. A review of the use of funds is conducted each year.
 
For the period beginning October 1, 2022, and ending September 30, 2023, net rental revenue collected
by LHA was $423,199. The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requires the
City to approve a waiver of PILOT on an annual basis. The PILOT is equivalent to 10% of rent. The
amounts retained by LHA will be used to enhance the properties of LHA. The amount to be waived for
Fiscal Year 2023 is $42,320.

Fiscal Impact
As a result of waiving the PILOT, $42,320 will not be added as revenue to the General Fund of the City
of Lubbock.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Community Development Director

Attachments
LHA PILOT Resolution 
PILOT Computation 









 AI# 12879 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 12. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 19 to
Contract 15200, with RS&H, Inc., for professional architectural and engineering services for Runway
Lights Replacement at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock (Airport) has requested RS&H, Inc., under the on-call professional architectural
and engineering agreement, to provide a scope and fee for design and construction support for Runway
Lights Replacement at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport. The purpose of the project is to
convert existing incandescent runway lights to light-emitting diodes (LED). Proposed Amendment No.
19 services are summarized as follows:
  

Scope/Task Title Total
Task 1 - Existing Conditions Documentation $18,454.54
Task 2 - Design Documents 78,415.60
Task 3 - Bidding Phase Services 22,541.46
Task 4 - Construction Phase Services 31,722.48
Task 5 - Resident Project Representative 22,673.52
Total Fee for all Services $173,807.60

Airport Staff and the Airport Advisory Board recommend Amendment No. 19 to Contract 15200, with
RS&H, Inc. of Jacksonville, Florida, for $173,807.60.

Fiscal Impact
Amendment No. 19 to Contract 15200 with RS&H, Inc. for $173,807.60 is funded in Capital
Improvements Project 92884, Replace Airfield Lighting/LED Conversion.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution Amendment 19 RS&H, Inc. Runway Light Replacement 
Amendment 19 RS&H, Inc. Runway Light Replacement 
CIP 92884 Budget Detail 



CIP 92884 Budget Detail 
CIP Project Detail 

















































City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
October 8, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92884
Capital Project Name: Replace Airfield

Lighting/LED Conversion

Budget
Encumbered/Expended

Agenda Item October 8, 2024
RS&H, Inc. Amendment 19 - Contract 15200  $        173,808

  Encumbered/Expended To Date            173,808

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation              26,192
  Remaining Appropriation              26,192

Total Appropriation  $        200,000



Project Scope

This project involves the  comprehensive  replacement of all exist ing incandescent/quartz/halogen runway lights with L ight
Emitt ing Diode (LED) fixtures across the  airfie ld.  This includes runway edge lights,  threshold lights,  touchdown zone lights,
and any  other necessary  light ing e lements.  Addit ionally,  compatibility  assessments will be  conducted to ensure  seamless
integrat ion with exist ing infrastructure ,  and the  implementation will be  carried out in a phased approach to minimize
operational disruptions.

Project Justi�cation

The transition to LED technology is justified by the increasing obsolescence of traditional lamps, as
evidenced by industry suppliers' cessation of certifications and the challenges associated with
sourcing replacement parts. LED lighting offers superior reliability, longevity, and energy efficiency
compared to traditional lamps, reducing operational costs and environmental impact. Furthermore, the
widespread adoption of LED technology in the aviation industry underscores its effectiveness in
enhancing safety and operational efficiency, making it the preferred choice for airfield lighting systems.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Safety

FY 2024-25 $200,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2024-O0129

Project Dates Project Location

*The airport is seeking supplemental AIP funding.
Should the project get selected for funding, this
project will be expedited and amended
accordingly.

RS&H Selected through 5-year master architecture
and engineering contract.
Award date for Design: Oct 2024
Design Completion: Jan 2025
Bid Date for Construction: TBD
Award date for Construction: TBD
Begin Construction: TBD
Construction Completion: TBD

5401 N. Martin Luther King Boulevard, Lubbock,
TX 79403

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Design $0 $200,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Construction $0 $0 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $200,000 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92884CIP 92884 Replace Air�eld Lighting/LED Replace Air�eld Lighting/LED
Conversion Conversion 

Upgrade/Major MaintenanceUpgrade/Major Maintenance

Project Manager: Kelly Campbell - Aviation Oper - Field MaintProject Manager: Kelly Campbell - Aviation Oper - Field Maint



Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Airport Fund Cash $0 $200,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

AIP Grant $0 $0 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $200,000 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Facilities Maint & Custodial $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100

TOTAL $100 $100 $100 $100 $100 $100

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 12880 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 13. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Fifth Amendment to
Contract 15038, with Webber LLC, to extend the contract term and rental rate for the land lease
agreement at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

Item Summary
Webber LLC entered into a land lease agreement with the City of Lubbock on November 19, 2019, for a
temporary office site during the I-27 road construction project. Webber LLC was granted the right to
utilize 45,150 square feet of land on the east side of Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport,
through June 30, 2021.

Amendment Two to the land lease agreement extended the term to December 31, 2022.
Amendment Three extended the term to December 31, 2023.
Amendment Four extended the term to December 31, 2024.
Amendment Five will extend the land lease agreement until September 30, 2026.

The extension will increase the rental rate to the current rate of $0.2780 per square foot, and it includes a
Consumer Price Index (CPI) adjustment each January. The extension will generate annual revenue of
approximately $12,551.70.

Airport Staff and the Airport Advisory Board recommend approval.

Fiscal Impact
Additional $12,551.70 in airport revenue

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution Amendment 5 Webber LLC 
Amendment 5 Webber LLC 











 AI# 12870 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 14. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Purchase Order 33100052, with Paradigm Traffic Systems, for the purchase of Ruggedcom L3 Switches
for the Traffic Signal Network.

Item Summary
The purchase of 13 Ruggedcom L3 Switches, components, and software will replace existing traffic
systems switches that are, or are approaching, the end of service life.

The purchase is made available through the Buy Board - Technology Equipment, Products, Services and
Software Contract # 695-23. Texas Local Government Code Chapter 271.083 authorizes local
governments to acquire hardware, software and other Information Technology products through the Buy
Board program. Pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 791.025, purchases from DIR contracts
meet competitive bid requirements.

Fiscal Impact
The purchase price of $135,089 for 13 Ruggedcom L3 Switches with software, is funded in Capital
Improvement Project 92754 - Cybersecurity Infrastructure ARPA funds.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
James C. Brown, Chief Information Officer

Attachments
Resolution - Paradigm Traffic Systems 
PO - Paradigm Traffic Systems 
Budget Detail 
CIP ProjectDetail 





 

TO: SHIP TO: 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK  
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

1Page    -
Date    - 9/17/2024P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 33100052 OP000
Branch/Plant        92754

PARADIGM TRAFFIC SYSTEMS INC CITY OF LUBBOCK
2201 E DIVISION ST INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

1314 AVENUE K - BASEMENTARLINGTON TX 76005-5508
LUBBOCK TX 79401

Ordered .Freight9/17/2024
Taken ByRequested 10/25/2024  YBUSBY

       PUR 18347/Quo #Q35061RK/BuyBoard 695-23Delivery Per J Zhine / Req # 62261

Description/Supplier Item Ordered Unit Cost UM Extension Request Date
Level 5 Ethernet Switch 13.000 10,009.0000 EA 130,117.00 10/25/2024

Rugged.com #RST2428P w/L3 SW

Level 3 Misc Traffic Component 2.000 663.0000 EA 1,326.00 10/25/2024

Ruggedcom #RMM2982 4Port Modul

Level 3 Misc Traffic Component 1.000 650.0000 EA 650.00 10/25/2024

#RMM2973-4RJ12 4P Copper Modul

Level 3 Misc Traffic Component 4.000 749.0000 EA 2,996.00 10/25/2024

Ruggedcom SFP+ Optical Dvc SM
Total Order

NET 30Terms 135,089.00

    If you have any questions contact Jay Zhine: JZhine@mylubbock.us  Phone 806-775-2366

This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of $135,089.0 awarded to Paradigm Traffic Systems, Inc. of 

Arlington, TX, on _________________, 2024. The following is incorporated into and made part of this purchase order by 

reference: Quote dated September 04, 2024, from Paradigm Traffic Systems, Inc. of Arlington, TX, and BuyBoard Contract 695-23.

Resolution #____________________ 

CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

______________________________________

Mark McBrayer, Mayor

ATTEST: 

______________________________________

Courtney Paz, City Secretary



 

TO: SHIP TO: 

 INVOICE TO: CITY OF LUBBOCK  
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
P.O. BOX 2000 
LUBBOCK, TX 79457 BY: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 

2Page    -
Date    - 9/17/2024P U R C H A S E   O R D E R
Order Number 33100052 OP000
Branch/Plant        92754

PARADIGM TRAFFIC SYSTEMS INC CITY OF LUBBOCK
2201 E DIVISION ST INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

1314 AVENUE K - BASEMENTARLINGTON TX 76005-5508
LUBBOCK TX 79401

Ordered .Freight9/17/2024
Taken ByRequested 10/25/2024  YBUSBY

       PUR 18347/Quo #Q35061RK/BuyBoard 695-23Delivery Per J Zhine / Req # 62261

INSURANCE REQUIRED:

Technology Errors and Omissions Requirements: 

*The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall be afforded additional insured status on a primary
and non-contributory basis on all liability policies except professional liabilities and workers' comp. *Waivers of Subrogation are
required for CGL, AL, and WC. *To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement. *Carrier will provide a 30-day
written notice of cancellation, 10-day written notice for non-payment. *Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better.
*Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above.

Commercial General Liability:
$1M of coverage is needed.

Cyber Liability Requirements: $1M of coverage is needed 
for Cyber Liability. 

 

$1M occurrence / $2M aggregate (can be combined with an 
Excess Liability to meet requirement). CGL is required in ALL 
contracts. It is perhaps the most important of 
all insurance policies in a contractual relationship. It insures 
the Contractor has broad liability coverage for contractual 
activities and for completed operations.

Commercial General Liability to include Products – 
Completion/OP, Personal and Advertising Injury, Contractual 
Liability, Fire Damage (any one fire), and Medical Expenses 
(any one person). 

177855
Rectangle

177855
Rectangle

177855
Rectangle

177855
Rectangle

177855
Rectangle



  REV. 3/2022     

    Rev. 3/2022 
 

Seller and Buyer agree as 
follows: 

PURCHASE ORDER                                                                                        
TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PURCHASE ORDER:  

CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGES, by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive material contained herein 

and any additional associated documents and Amendments.  The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by 

the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by the parties.  In the event of conflict between the City’s terms and 

conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall 

prevail.  The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any prior 

conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

 

1. SELLER TO PACKAGE GOODS.   Seller will package goods in accordance with good commercial practice.   

Each shipping container shall be clearly and permanently marked as follows  (a)  Seller’s name and address, (b) 

Consignee’s name, address and purchase order or purchase release number and the supply agreement number if 

applicable, (c) Container number and total number of containers, e.g. box 1 of 4 boxes, and (d) the number of the 

container bearing the packing slip. Seller shall bear cost of packaging unless otherwise provided. Goods shall be 

suitably packed to secure lowest transportation costs and to conform with requirements of common carriers and any 

applicable specifications.  Buyer’s count or weight shall be final and conclusive on shipments not accompanied by 

packing lists. 

2. SHIPMENT UNDER RESERVATION PROHIBITED.  Seller is not authorized to ship the goods under 

reservation and no tender of a bill of lading will operate as a tender of goods. 

3. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS.  The title and risk of loss of the goods shall not pass to Buyer until Buyer actually 

receives and takes possession of the goods at the point or points of delivery. 

4. NO REPLACEMENT OF DEFECTIVE TENDER.  Every tender of delivery of goods must fully comply with all 

provisions of this contract as to time of delivery, quality and the like. If a tender is made which does not fully conform, 

this shall constitute a breach and Seller shall not have the right to substitute a conforming tender, provided, where the 

time for performance has not yet expired, the Seller may reasonably notify Buyer of his intention to cure and may 

then make a conforming tender within the contract time but not afterward. 

5. INVOICES & PAYMENTS. a. S e l l e r  shall submit separate invoices, in duplicate, one each purchase order or 

purchase release after each delivery.  Invoices shall indicate the purchase order or purchase release number and 

the supply agreement number if applicable.  Invoices shall be itemized and transportation charges, if any, shall be 

listed separately.  A copy of the bill of lading, and the freight waybill when applicable, should be attached to the 

invoice. Mail To: Accounts Payable, City of Lubbock, P. O. Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457.  Payment shall not 

be due until the above instruments are submitted after delivery. 

6. GRATUITIES.  The Buyer may, by written notice to the Seller, cancel this contract without liability to Seller if 

it is determined by Buyer that gratuities, in the form of entertainment, gifts or otherwise, were offered or given by the 

Seller, or any agent or representative of the Seller, to any officer or employee of the City of Lubbock with a view to 

securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending, or the making of any 

determinations with respect to the performing of such a contract.  In the event this contract is canceled by Buyer 

pursuant to this provision, Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and remedies, to recover or withhold 

the amount of the cost incurred by Seller in providing such gratuities. 

7. SPECIAL TOOLS & TEST EQUIPMENT.  If the price stated on the face hereof includes the cost of any special 

tooling or special test equipment fabricated or required by Seller for the purpose of filling this order, such special 

tooling equipment and any process sheets related thereto shall become the property of the Buyer and to the extent 

feasible shall be identified by the Seller as such. 

8. WARRANTY-PRICE. a. The price to be paid by the Buyer shall be that contained in Seller’s bid which 

Seller warrants to be no higher than Seller’s current process on orders by others for products of the kind and 

specification covered by this agreement for similar quantities under similar of like conditions and methods of purchase.  

In the event Seller breaches this warranty, the prices of the  items  shall  be  reduced  to  the  Seller’s  current  prices  

on  orders  by others, or  in  the alternative.  Buyer may cancel this contract without liability to Seller for breach 

or Seller’s actual expense. b. The Seller warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to 

solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent 

fee excepting bona fide employees of bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Seller for 

the purpose of securing business.  For breach of viciation of this warranty the Buyer shall have the right in addition to 

any other right of rights to cancel this contract without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise 

recover without liability and to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, 

percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 

9. WARRANTY-PRODUCT.  Seller shall not limit or exclude any implied warranties and any attempt to do so shall 

render this contract voidable at the option of the Buyer.  Seller warrants that the goods furnished will conform to the 

specification, drawings, and descriptions listed in the bid invitation, and to the sample(s) furnished by the Seller, if any. 

In the event of a conflict or between the specifications, drawings, and descriptions, the specifications shall govern. 

Notwithstanding any provisions contained in the contractual agreement, the Seller represents and warrants fault-free 

performance and fault-free result in the processing date and date related data (including, but not limited to calculating, 

comparing and sequencing) of all hardware, software and firmware products delivered and services provided under 

this Contract, individually or in combination, as the case may be from the effective date of this Contract. The 

obligations contained herein apply to products and services provided by the Seller, its sub- Seller or any third party 

involved in the creation or development of the products and services to be delivered to the City of Lubbock under this 

Contract.  Failure to comply with any of the obligations contained herein, may result in the City of Lubbock 

availing itself of any of its rights under the law and under this Contract including, but not limited to, its right pertaining 

to termination or default. The warranties contained herein are separate and discrete from any other warranties 

specified in this Contract, and are not subject to any disclaimer of warranty, implied or expressed, or limitation of the 

Seller’s liability which may be specified in this Contract, its appendices, its schedules, its annexes or any document 

incorporated in this Contract by reference. 

10. SAFETY WARRANTY.  Seller warrants that the product sold to the Buyer shall conform to the standards 

promulgated by the U. S. Department of Labor under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970.  In the event the 

product does not conform to OSHA standards, Buyer may return the product for correction or replacement at the 

Seller’s expense.  In the event Seller fails to make the appropriate correction within a reasonable time, correction 

made by Buyer will be at the Seller’s expense. 

11. NO WARRANTY BY BUYER AGAINST INFRINGEMENTS.  As part of this contract for sale Seller agrees 

to ascertain whether goods manufactured in accordance with the specifications attached to this agreement will give 

rise to the rightful claim of any third person by way of infringement of the like.  Buyer makes no warranty that the 

production of goods according to the specification will not give rise to such a claim, and in no event shall Buyer be 

liable to Seller for indemnification in the event that Seller is sued on the grounds of infringement of the like.  If Seller 

is of the opinion that an infringement or the like will result, he will notify the Buyer to this effect in writing within two 

weeks after the signing of this agreement.    If  Buyer  does  not  receive  notice  and  is  subsequently  held  liable  for  

the infringement or the like, Seller will save Buyer harmless.  If Seller in good faith ascertains the production of the 

goods in accordance with the specifications will result in infringement or the like, the contract shall be null and void. 

12. NON APPROPRIATION. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an 

annual appropriation for this purpose by the City.  In the event of nonappropriation of funds by the City Council of the 

City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City will terminate the contract, without 

termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for 

the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first.  If at any 

time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the Seller on 

thirty (30) days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be 

obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 

13. RIGHT OF INSPECTION.  Buyer shall have the right to inspect the goods at delivery before accepting them. 

14. CANCELLATION.  Buyer shall have the right to cancel for default all or any part of the undelivered portion of 

this order if Seller breaches any of the terms hereof including warranties of Seller or if the Seller becomes insolvent or 

commits acts of bankruptcy.  Such right of cancellation is in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedies which 

Buyer may have in law or equity. 

15. TERMINATION. The performance of work under this order may be terminated in whole, or in part by the Buyer 

in accordance with this provision.  Termination of work hereunder shall be effected by the delivery of the Seller of 

a “Notice of Termination” specifying the extent to which performance of work under the order is terminated and the 

date upon which such termination becomes effective. Such right or termination is in addition to and not in lieu of the 

rights of Buyer set forth in Clause 14, herein. 

16. FORCE MAJEURE.    Neither party shall be held responsible for losses, resulting if the fulfillment of any 

terms of provisions of this contract is delayed or prevented by any cause not within the control of the party whose 

performance is interfered with, and which by the exercise of reasonable diligence said party is unable to prevent. 

17. ASSIGNMENT-DELEGATION.  No right or interest in this contract shall be assigned or delegation of any 

obligation made by Seller without the written permission of the Buyer.  Any attempted assignment or delegation by 

Seller shall be wholly void and totally ineffective for all purpose unless made in conformity with this paragraph. 

18. WAIVER. No claim or right arising out of a breach of this contract can be discharged in whole or in part by a 

waiver or renunciation of the claim or right unless the waiver or renunciation is supported by consideration and is in 

writing signed by the aggrieved party. 

19. INTERPRETATION-PAROLE EVIDENCE. This writing, plus any specifications for bids and performance  

provided  by  Buyer  in  its  advertisement for  bids,  and  any  other  documents provided by Seller as part of his bid, 

is intended by the parties as a final expression of their agreement and intended also as a complete and exclusive 

statement of the terms of their agreement.   Whenever a term defined by the Uniform Commercial Code is used in this 

agreement, the definition contained in the Code is to control. 

20. APPLICABLE LAW.  This agreement shall be governed by the Uniform Commercial Code. Wherever the term 

“Uniform Commercial Code” is used, it shall be construed as meaning the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in 

the State of Texas as effective and in force on the date of this agreement. 

21. RIGHT TO ASSURANCE.  Whenever one party to this contract in good faith has reason to question the other 

party’s intent to perform he may demand that the other party give written assurance of his intent to perform.  In the 

event that a demand is made and no assurance is given within five (5) days, the demanding party may treat this 

failure as an anticipatory repudiation of the contract. 

22. INDEMNIFICATION.  Seller shall indemnify, keep and save harmless the Buyer, its agents, officials and 

employees, against all injuries, deaths, loss, damages, claims, patent claims, suits, liabilities, judgments, costs and 

expenses, which may in anywise accrue against the Buyer in consequence of the granting of this Contract or which 

may anywise result therefrom, whether or not it shall be alleged or determined that the act was caused through 

negligence or omission of the Seller or its employees, or of the subSeller or assignee or its employees, if any, and the 

Seller shall, at his own expense, appear, defend and pay all charges of attorneys and all costs and other expenses 

arising therefrom of incurred in connection therewith, and, if any judgment shall be rendered against the Buyer in any 

such action, the Seller shall, at its own expenses, satisfy and discharge the same Seller expressly understands and 

agrees that any bond required by this contract, or otherwise provided by Seller, shall in no way limit the 

responsibility to indemnify, keep and save harmless and defend the Buyer as herein provided. 

23. TIME.   It is hereby expressly agreed and understood that time is of the essence for the performance of this 

contract, and failure by contract to meet the time specifications of this agreement will cause Seller to be in default 

of this agreement. 

24. MBE.  The City of Lubbock hereby notifies all bidders that in regard to any contract entered into pursuant to 

this request, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded equal opportunities to submit bids in response 

to this invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, sex or natural origin in 

consideration for an award. 

25. NON-ARBITRATION. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of competent 

jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to exercising its unrestricted 

right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised 

concurrently. To the extent of any conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, 

this provision shall control. 

26. RIGHT TO AUDIT. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized 

audit representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves the right to 

audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City under this Contract. In the event such 

an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount 

of such overpayments within thirty (30) days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to 

deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

27. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without written consent from 

the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. 

28. Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service 

with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

29. Texas Government Code. Section 2252.908 requires a business entity entering into certain contracts with a 

governmental entity or state agency to file with the governmental entity or state agency a disclosure of interested parties 

at the time the business entity submits the signed contract to the governmental entity or state agency.  Instructions for 

completing Form 1295 are available at: http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-

websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information 

30. No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that 

either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2271.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Israel and will not boycott 

Israel during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that make it 

exempt from the boycott certification in its Response.  

31. No Boycott of Energy Companies.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent 

certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it does not boycott Energy 

Companies and will not boycott Energy Companies during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. 

Respondent shall state any facts that make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

32. No Boycott of a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association.  Pursuant to Section 2274 of the Texas 

Government Code, Respondent certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2274.002; or (ii) it 

does not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm Trade Association and will not boycott a Firearm Entity or Firearm 

Trade Association during the term of the contract resulting from this solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that 

make it exempt from the boycott certification in its Response. 

33.  Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist Organization Prohibited.  

Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a 

vendor that is identified by The Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or 

service with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization 

34. TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, 

may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the contractor or 

vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that subchapter. 

35. Pursuant to Section 552.301(c) of the Texas Government Code, the City of Lubbock has designated the following 

email address for which public information requests may be made by an emailed request: orr@mylubbock.us. Please 

send this request to this email address for it to be processed

http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
http://www.ci.lubbock.tx.us/departmental-websites/departments/purchasing/vendor-information
mailto:orr@mylubbock.us


��������	
�	��
���
���������	�������	������� ��  !"#	�� $%&'	�"()"* 	+%,	�)% "	-	. !",/" 	0#1 &!"*2234	5���	6�7���89	������ :;�:8���	<89�����	=	>?@A2BC�D�9��89E	��F��	G>344 �������	H��I�	J	���9�D	�������E�  /�5�������9�	6�K�����9�	 �;KKD���	J	5L;�K��9�M!�N4GANB4A?O3> @42AO>GA3222	K9+P�N4GANB4A?O3G 4AN33A244A@O@O	��FQR�. 0�0�S Q"$1T",U	Q� " ��.�VW� 0W�X	Y�R �Z
Z �.��0 ��.	S��.�[\]]\]̂]_ �� `̂	-	_a	Q�U*	R�
 XXQ	b	R$$%#"c "* 	d�U Q"* 1/� 1%/ S" 	̀̂ �̀ âef����.� ��� Q.0���X��
S �S��	X���. �
�R�	X���.f 4B H5g5H	@	5�h5ij5�	�kl�<h		AA		�CiC6lmn	�iCool<	�p��5n� q43E33?r33 sf̀ t̂ffuẐ̂ivmm56<wn	i��2O2N�	kl�h	HB	�wo�kCi5	x	jw	nw6�yS
�.y		z{|}~�����~{|	���������������zz���	��������z����������������������	��{���yS
�.y	�����	���	|{�	��{����	��~�� ��	{|¡¢y�.�WS��R�	�S�
��R��
Sy��¡¡¢	£�|����	��¢��	�	�� ��|��	��~�� 	�~� 	�¤	�{	�¥	|{|�¦¡{�§~|�	~|���}��������|����	}{��	�̈��	�¦¤�	����	�¤¡~|§	¤{����		���¡	����|��|�	 {�	���¤¤�¦¡�	¤{���	��¤¤¡¢	£{��¡���		©¤����~|�	��£¤�������	{}	���	�{	�¥�	ªz	«}�|¡���¬�	�	�	�®	�̄�§	£{�|�	§~�°	¤�|�¡	£{�|�	§~�	±²	³�z	̈	³�z°	�����	���£~|�¡	±²	³�z	̈	³�z	́{|�	���	��|�¡	��{|��		��¢��	µ	¦��~�	��~�~{|] 2 H5g5H	B	nl�<r	�iCool<	<wn�wj5j�		AA		�CiC6lmn	�iCool<	�p��5n� q>>Br33 sft̀]eẐ̂ivmm56<wn	inn2?N2	O	�wi�	¶4x43m·̧	nw6vH5�		yS
�.y	z{|}~�����~{|	�����¥���������	��{���y�.�WS��R�	�S�
��R��
Sy¹��~�	¹{��¡�	}{�	̄º����z©¹	̄�»���¥�	���~��°	�	¼	����	�¡{��	» �	º̄����z©¹	̄¹¹�¥������	¹{��¡�	}�������	�{�§���	}{�	�¤	�{	}{��	����̈��������½	�£�¡¡	�{�£�}���{�	�¡����¦¡�	«���̈����¬	���|���~¾���°	����	���	|{�	~|�¡�����` 4 H5g5H	B	nl�<r	�iCool<	<wn�wj5j�		AA		�CiC6lmn	�iCool<	�p��5n� q>@3r33 seâẐ̂ivmm56<wn	inn2?GBAOi¿O@	O	�wi�	<w��5i	nw6vH5	yS
�.y	z{|}~�����~{|	�����À�µ̄��������	��{���y�.�WS��R�	�S�
��R��
Sy¹��~�	¹{��¡�	}{�	̄º����z©¹	̄�»����	���~��°	�	¼	̄Á��°	��̈���̈����	�����»½_ O H5g5H	B	nl�<r	�iCool<	<wn�wj5j�		AA		�CiC6lmn	�iCool<	�p��5n� qGO?r33 s]tÂÂeẐ̂ivmm56<wn	�o�Ã	w��l<CH	65gl<5�E	�ljmH5	nw65yS
�.y	z{|}~�����~{|	��������¥�»�������	��{���y�.�WS��R�	�S�
��R��
Sy���¦°	�z	�{||���{�°	���£°	�~|�¡�¹{��

�!1*	()% "	1*	T�$1c	+%,	ê	c�U*Z		�!","�+ ",	1 	1*	*)ÄÅ"& 	 %	&!�/Æ"	#1 !%) 	/% 1&"Z
��
�R��
SÇÈÉÊËÈÌ	ÍÎÏÎÐÑÐÏ	Ò	ÑÓÔÔÕÖ×	ØÇÙÚ�rwr	:8F	@@3N	ÛC�D�9��89	Û��F��	ÛG>33@A@@3NN4GrNB4r?O3>	Û��F	N4GrNB4r?O3G.* 1Ü� 1/ÆÝX�,�c1ÆÜ ,�++1&Z&%ÜÞÞÞrK��������������r�8�



���� ����� �	
��	�����	 ������� �������� ����� ����� ������������  � ! " �# $!�%�"&����'���� ����(��

)*	+ �	'��,�� �	'��-���)- �	��$! �$&!./�#���� ��0 ���1������� ��������1� ���������1�2����2��3456789:�;5<:5�=49>�?:�35;6:99:<�>75;4@7�AAABCDECFGHIBJKL�)��-��MN	'��)-'O�P)QQ	-�'�)�P)-P	-'O��
	�'	�	Q��
�N'����R�'��Q���-ST���+�SQ��UU�P�P)Q ����� V/$&O!�W�!!���������0R�)X	��#	

����+�SQ���UU�P���'�	Q'O��-P�YZ[\]̂ [\_̀ab̂ĉd\̀][ĉee\fgfh]�	+	�
���i�j&% & !$"/

�k�'�MN)�	��'���
�+�U)�.!�+��'����k		�U�	�����'�'NXl	P���)�Pk�-S	�*��k)N��-)��P	�
2�k�'�MN)�	��'���
�+�U)�.!�+��'���mnopoqrsop�ts�tu�uvwxoJs�sK�Jnqyzo�AtsnKvs�yKstJoB{mnqy|�}Kv�rKp�sno�K~~Kpsvyts}�sK�uvwLts�q�~pK~Kuq��sK�}Kv�Ky�sntu�o�vt~LoysB����oquo�poropoyJo�sntu��vKsqstKy��w}��m��yvLwop��Anoy�~�qJtyz�Kp�opB���r�}Kv�nq�o�qy}��voustKyu��~�oquo�Jq���Kp�uoy��q�rq��sK�LoB{�noy�uoy�tyz�H���u���F�u�Kp�H���u��~�oquo�uoy��sK�����������T��������������1�1��{Dy�ouu�~po�tKvu�}��tuJvuuo����vKso�tu�rKp�Lqsoptq��Ky�}



City of Lubbock
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
October 8, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92754
Capital Project Name: Cyber Security Infrastructure

Capital Project Number: 3410
Capital Project Name: Information Technology

Budget
Encumbered/Expended 92754 3410 Total
  Sciens LLC  $         85,620  $            85,620
  Dell Marketing LP        1,381,940           1,381,940
  Computex, Inc.             46,206                46,206
  Tom's Tree Place             64,849                64,849
  Johnston Technical Services             54,160                54,160
  ThinkGard           265,914              265,914
  Newspaper Ads                  548                     548

SHI Gov Solutions - DarkTrace             52,478                52,478
Information Technology        9,540,184           9,540,184
SHI Gov Solutions - DarkTrace             52,478                52,478

Agenda Item  October 8, 2024
 Paradigm Traffic Systems, Inc.           135,089                       -              135,089

Encumbered/Expended To Date        2,139,282        9,540,184         11,679,467

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Cyber Security Infrastructure           110,718              110,718
Information Technology        2,608,979           2,608,979

Remaining Appropriation           110,718        2,608,979           2,719,696

Total Appropriation  $    2,250,000      12,149,163  $     14,399,163



ProjectProject Scope

Many components that control the  crit ical infrastructures are  at  or near end of service  life .  This project will replace those
components,  and add addit ional functionality  to enhance our overall cyber security  capabilit ies.

ProjectProject Justi cation

Enhance cyber security for critical infrastructures.

ProjectProject Highlights Project Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:Council Priorities Addressed: FY 2021-22 $2,240,500 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0001
FY 2023-24 $9,500 was appropriated by Ord.
2024-O0037

ProjectProject Dates ProjectProject Location

Internal Project

ProjectProject Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Acquisition $2,250,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $2,250,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

ProjectProject Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

ARPA Funding $2,250,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $2,250,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCIIIIIIPPPPPPPPPPP 9999999999999922222222222777777777755555555555555444444444444444CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCIPPPPPPPP 999999999222222222227554444444444CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCIIIIIPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPP 99999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999999922222222222222222222222222777777777777777777777775555555555555555555555554444444444444444444444444444CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCC PPPPPPPPPP 99999999999999999999999222222222227777555555555555555555554444444444444CIP 92754 yyyyyyyyyyyy  yyyyyyyyyyyyy eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee bbbbbbbbbb fff CCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyybbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeerrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeecccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuurrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrriiiiiiiiiiiiiiitttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttttyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyy  IIIIIIIIInnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnfffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffffrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrraaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaassssssssssssssssssssssssssstttttttttttttttttttttttrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrruuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccctttttttttttttttttttttttttttuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuurrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrrreeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCCyyyyyyyyyyyybbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbbeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeer SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeccccccccccccccccccccuuuuuuuuuuuuuuriiiiiitttttttttttttttyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyy nnnnnnnnnnnffffffffffffrraaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaasssssssssssssssssssssttttttttttttruuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuucccccccccccccccccccccccttttttttttttttttuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuurreeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeCyber Security Infrastructure
InInnnnInInIInnnnnInnInInnnnnnInnnInnnnInnnnInnInnInnInfrfrfrfrfrfrfrfrfrfrfrffrfrfrfrfrfrfrfrfrffrfrffrfrfrrasasasasasasasasasasasaasasasasasasasasasasasasaasasasasasassssstrttrtrtrtrtrttrtrtrtrtrtrtrtrtrtrtrtrtrttrtrrttrttt ucuucucucucucucucucucucucucucucucucucucuccucuccucccucuu tutuutuuuututututtutututututtutututuuuuttuuuuuuuuututututtutuutuuuuuuuuuurerereeereeeeeeeeererrererereeeerererererereereeeeeerererererereeeeeeeeeeeeeerereeeeeeeeeeeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeerereeeeeeeeeee IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIImpmpmpmpmpmmmmmmpmpmmpmmpmpmmpmpmpmpmpmmpmpmpmmpmmmmmpmpmmpmpmpmpppmpmpmpmmpmpmpmpmpmmpmmmmmpmpmpmpmpmmpmpmpmpmpmpmpmmpmpmpmpmmpppmpmpmpmpmmpmpmmmmpmpmmpmmpmpmpmppmmmppmpmpmmpmmmpmpmpmpmpmmppmpmpmmmmmppppmpmpppppppppprrrorroororororororrorrooooroorrrororrrororooorororoororoorororooororororoooororroooooooorooororoooooororoooooroooroororororrrroooroorrrrroororoorrrrooroooroovevvevvveveeeeeevevevvevevvevevevevevvvvveveveveveeevevvevevevvveveeveveveveveevveveveveveveveveevvvveveveveeeevvveevevvveveeeveveveevevevveeeveveveeevevevevvevvevvvvevevvvvvvevevvevevevvveveveveveeveeevevememememmmmmmememememememeemeememmmmemmemmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmeeemememememmememmemmemmemmmmmmmemememememememememememmememmmememmemmmemememmmmmmmmmmememmmmmmmemememmmmmemmmmmememmemmmemememememememememememeemememeemee ttttttttttntttnttttntntntntnttttnttttntttntntntntntntntntntntnttntntnttntnntntntntntntntntnttntnntntntntntnttn sssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssInfrastructure Improvements

jjjjjjjjjjjj gggggggggggggggggggggg gggggggggggggggggggggggyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyPPP jj ffffff ii hhhhhhhhh llPPrPrPPrPPPrPrPrPrPrPrPrPrPPrPrPrPrPrPPPPPPPPPPrPPPrPrPPPPPPrPPPPPPPPPPPP ojojojojojojojojoojojojojojojojojojojojojojojojojojececececececceececececececececececececececcececceecceececeee t t tttttttttttttttttttttttttt MaMaMaMaMaMaMaMaMMaMaMMaaMaMMaMaMMaMaMaMaMaMaMaaMaMaaMaaM nannannaanannanannananaannanaanananaanaananaaaaannaaananaaannanaaanannnanannnaannaaanannannananannnnanananaanaaanannnaaananannaagegegggegegegegegegegeggggegggeggggegeggeegegegegegegegegegegegegeggeggeggegegegeggegeeeegegegegegegegeegegegeer:rr:rr:rr:r:r:r:r:rr:r:r:r:rrrr:r:r:rr:rrr JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJamamamammamamamamamamamamamamaammamamamamamamamamamamamammmmammmamamamammmmmmmmammmmaaammmamammaammamaamamammammmmmmammammmmmmeesesesseeseseseseseeseeseseseseseseeseseseseesesesessesseeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBrrrororororooooorrrorooorrororooooorroroorooororoooooroorooooooorororoooooorooooooooororooooooooooooooroooooooroooooorroowwnwnwnwwwwwwnwnwwwnwnwnwnwwwwwwnwnwnwnwnwnwnwnwwnwnwnwnwnwnwnwnwwwwwwnwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwnwwwwwwww -------------- IIIIIInfnfnnfnnfnfnfffnfnfnnnfnnfnffnffffnffnfnnfffnnnnfnnnnnnfnffnfnffffnfnfnnnnffnfnfnfnfnnnnnnnfnnnnfnfffforororooroororoororororooorororororororrorooroooorroroorrrrorrorrrmamamamaamamamamamamaamamammamamammaammamamamamamamaamaaamamaaaamammamaamamamaaamamamamaammmattitititititiitiitittitititittitttititiiititittittiiitiititttttionononoononoonoononononnonnonononononononooononononononononnonononooooononononoononnonooonnoononnoonnnnon TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTTececececececececececececececececececececececcecececececcececccccceecchnhnhnhnhnhhnhnhnhhhnhnhhnhnhnhnhnhnhnhnhnhnhnhnhhhnhnhnhnhnhnhhhnhnhhnnnnoolooololololololololololoooolooooloolooloolooololologogogogogogogogogogooggoogogogogogogogoggogogogogogogogoggogoogoggooggoggoogoogogogoggooggggyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyPPPPPPPPPPP ojoojjojoojojooojojojoojooo cccececcececececccceececeececceccecee ttttttttttttttttt MaMaMMaMaMaMaMMMaMaMaMaMaMMaMMaMaMaMaMaMM nnnnaaaananaaaaaaaaanaanaannanaaaaaagggggggeggeegeggegegegegeggegegegeeggegegggegeeggeg ::::: JJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJJamaamammamamaamamaaaaaaaaaaaaaa eseessesesssssesesesssseesesesseseeeeeeeeeeeeee BBBBBBBBBBBBBBB ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooownwnwwwwnwnwwwwwnwwwnnwwwwwwnwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwww --- nfnnnnfnfnffnffnfnnnnnffnnnnnfnnnnfn oooooooooooooooooo mammmammamammaamamamamaaaaaaamaaamaammaatttttttitittitttttt onooonnonoonononnooooonooonoonnonoooo TTTTTTTTTTTTTTececececececececececeececececececceeee nhnhhnnhhhhnhnnnnnhh oooooooooooooooooooo ogogoogoogogoggogogogoggogooggoggoggogoggooo yyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyProject Manager: James Brown - Information Technology



 AI# 12887 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 15. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager or his designee, to
purchase all approved vehicles and equipment, including their lighting and associated accessories, for
Fiscal Year 2024-25, to replace essential assets in various City departments.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock, like many other organizations, has experienced challenges related to supply chain
shortages, especially with vehicle purchases. The Fleet Operations Department continues to experience
issues in ordering and receiving vehicles for the current fiscal year.
 
While the vehicles and equipment have been ordered, the delivery of many of these purchases has been
delayed with no definitive timeframe or guarantee from the vendors that our orders will be fulfilled.

The following 146 vehicles and equipment, including lighting and associated accessories, from the
upcoming FY 2024-25 Vehicle Replacement Schedule, have been approved by the City Council and
need to be purchased for the City:
  
Codes (1) ½ Ton Pickup Truck
Traffic Operations (2) 1 ½ Ton Bucket Trucks
 (1) Heavy Duty Pole Truck
Paved Streets (1) Commercial Dump Truck
 (1) Asphalt Roller
 (2) 1 ½ Ton Bucket Trucks
Engineering Inspection
Services

(3) ½ Ton Pickup Trucks

Parks & Recreation (5) ¾ Ton Pickup Trucks
 (1) All Terrain Vehicle
 (1) Backhoe
 (1) Riding Mower
 (1) ½ Ton Pickup Truck
 (1) Utility Terrain Vehicle
Lubbock Fire & Rescue (2) E-One Platform Pumpers
Police Special Operations (2) ½ Ton Pickup Trucks
Police Special Investigations (14) Sedans
Police Patrol (6) Sedans



 (41) Sports Utility Vehicles
 (4) ½ Ton Pickup Trucks
 (1) ½ Ton K9 Pickup Truck
Residential Collections (5) Commercial Side Loader Trash Trucks
 (2) ¾ Ton Pickup Trucks
 (1) Roll-Off Truck
Alley Maintenance (1) Motor Grader
 (1) Hydraulic Excavator
 (1) Commercial Dump Truck with Snow Plow
 (1) 1-Ton Pickup Truck
 (1) Wheel Loader
 (1) Tractor 4x4
 (1) Landfill Compactor
 (1) ¾ Ton Pickup Truck
 (1) Articulated Dump Truck
Fleet Operations (1) ½ Ton Pickup Truck
Aviation Field Maintenance (1) Street Sweeper
Aviation Security (1) ½ Ton Pickup Truck
Civic Center (1) 1-Ton Pickup Truck
Water Meter & Customer
Service

(5) ¾ Ton Pickup Trucks

 (1) ½ Ton Pickup Truck
Water Distribution &
Maintenance

(1) 1-Ton Pickup Truck with Flatbed

 (1) Heavy Duty Commercial Truck with Service Body
 (1) 5th Wheel Trailer
 (2) Backhoe Loaders
 (2) Backhoe Loader Trailers
 (1) Lowboy Trailer                             
Water Pumping & Control (1) 1 Ton Pickup Truck with Service Body
 (1) ¾ Ton Pickup Truck with Service Body
Water Treatment (1) Utility Terraine Vehicle
Water Reservoir (1) Utility Terraine Vehicle
Wastewater Collections (1) Heavy Duty Vacuum Truck
 (1) 1-Ton Pickup Truck with Service Body
 (1) ¾ Ton Pickup Truck
Land Application (2) 1-Ton Pickup Trucks with Flatbeds
 (3) Tractors



 (1) Telescopic Handler
 (2) Hay Balers
 (1) Cultivator             
Street Cleaning (1) Street Sweeper
 (1) Heavy Duty Commercial Dump Truck with Salt

Spreader
 (1) ¾ Ton Pickup Truck
 (1) Regenerative Air Sweeper
Storm Sewer Maintenance (1) 6-Yard Dump Truck with Salt Spreader

The Fleet Operations Department estimates the cost of the proposed 146 vehicles and equipment,
including lighting and associated accessories, referenced above, not to exceed $20,637,707.
  
The resolution that is attached authorizes the City Manager to move forward with these purchases as the
opportunities to acquire the assets become available. The resolution is structured so that the vehicles and
quantities referenced above can be modified, if necessary, based on market conditions.

Fiscal Impact
The funds for the purchase of 146 vehicles and equipment, including lighting and associated
accessories, for Fiscal Year 2024-25 have been appropriated from the Water/Wastewater balance,
Stormwater balance, General Fund Fiscal Year 2024-25 Tax Note balance, Fleet balance, Civic Center
balance, and the General Fund balance.
 
The total cost of the vehicles and equipment purchase shall not exceed $20,637,707.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
Dominic Esperat, Director of Fleet Operations

Attachments
Resolution 
Exhibit A 
CIP 92863 Project Detail 
CIP 92864 Project Detail 

















Project Scope

This project is for the  annual vehicle  replacement for the  city.  For a list  of the  vehicles,  refer to the  replacement list
located at  the  end of this section.

Project Justi�cation

Vehicles included for replacement in this year are at end of life and maintenance costs have increased
to the point that the vehicles needs to be replaced.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Public Safety
Fiscal Discipline

FY 2024-25 $11,763,760 was appropriated by
Ord. 2024-O0129

Project Dates Project Location

Fiscal Year 24-25 City-wide

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Acquisition $0 $11,763,760 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $11,763,760 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Fund Cash $0 $6,413,260 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Civic Center Fund Cash $0 $47,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Fleet Fund Prior Year Cash $0 $60,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Stormwater Fund Cash $0 $1,504,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Water/Wastewater Fund Cash $0 $3,739,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $11,763,760 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

CIP 92863CIP 92863 Vehicle Replacements FY 2024- Vehicle Replacements FY 2024-
25 Cash25 Cash

Replacement Equipment/FleetReplacement Equipment/Fleet

Project Manager: Dominic Esperat - Vehicle MaintenanceProject Manager: Dominic Esperat - Vehicle Maintenance

https://opengov.com/


Project Scope

This project is for the  annual vehicle  replacement for the  city.  For a list  of the  vehicles,  refer to the  replacement list
located at  the  end of this section.

Project Justi�cation

Vehicles included for replacement in this year are at end of life and maintenance costs have increased
to the point that the vehicles needs to be replaced.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Public Safety
Fiscal Discipline

FY 2024-25 $9,899,500 was appropriated by
Ord. 2024-O0129

Project Dates Project Location

Fiscal Year 24-25 City-wide

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Acquisition $0 $9,899,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $9,899,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Fleet Prior Year Tax Notes $0 $1,341,053 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Fleet Fund Tax Notes $0 $8,558,447 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $9,899,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

CIP 92864CIP 92864 Vehicle Replacements FY 2024- Vehicle Replacements FY 2024-
25 Tax Note25 Tax Note

Replacement Equipment/FleetReplacement Equipment/Fleet

Project Manager: Dominic Esperat - Vehicle MaintenanceProject Manager: Dominic Esperat - Vehicle Maintenance

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 12875 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 16. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an agreement, by and
between the City of Lubbock, the United States Department of Justice, and the United States Drug
Enforcement Administration, for participation in the Fiscal Year 2025-High Intensity Drug Trafficking
Area Task Force Agreement and any associated documents, including an Asset Sharing Agreement,
to disrupt illicit drug traffic in the Lubbock area. 

Item Summary
Trafficking in narcotics and dangerous drugs in the Lubbock area has a substantial and detrimental effect
on the health and general welfare of Lubbock Citizens. Participation with the Lubbock High Intensity
Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) Task Force, under the purview of the United States Drug Enforcement
Administration (DEA), is effective in combating the problem. 
 
The Lubbock Police Department (LPD) participation in the Lubbock HIDTA will include the following
activities and duties:
 
a. Disrupt the illicit drug traffic in the Lubbock area by immobilizing targeted violators and trafficking
organizations;
b. Gather and report intelligence data relating to trafficking in narcotics and dangerous drugs; and
c. Conduct undercover operations where appropriate and engage in other traditional methods of
investigation in order that the Task Force’s activities will result in effective prosecution before the courts
of the United States and the State of Texas.
 
LPD will detail 3 experienced officers to the Task Force for not less than 2 years. These officers will be
under direct supervision and control of DEA supervisory personnel assigned to the Task Force. The
Lubbock Sheriff’s Office and the Texas Department of Public Safety will also supply personnel to the
HIDTA. DEA will assign 4 Special Agents to the Task Force.  DEA will provide necessary funds and
equipment to support the activities of the DEA Special Agents and officers assigned to the Task Force. 
This support will include office space, office supplies, travel funds, funds for the purchase of evidence
and information, investigative equipment, training, and other support items.
 
The Department of Justice (DOJ) will receive a minimum of 20% of awarded assets as a result of Task
Force investigations. Up to 80% of the remainder is subject to equitable sharing among the participating
agencies, based on the number of officers assigned to the Lubbock HIDTA at the time of the seizure.
 
Upon approval, the term of the agreement will be in effect until September 30, 2026.

Fiscal Impact
LPD will remain responsible for the salary and benefits including overtime of the officers assigned to



LPD will remain responsible for the salary and benefits including overtime of the officers assigned to
the Task Force. The Lubbock HIDTA will, subject to availability of funds, reimburse LPD for overtime
payments made to its officers assigned to the Task Force, capped at the equivalent of 25% of a GS-12,
Step 1, of the general pay scale for the rest of the United States, per officer.

Staff/Board Recommending
Seth Herman, Chief of Police 

Attachments
Resolution - HIDA DEA Task Force Agmt 
Agreement - HIDA DEA Task Force 









 AI# 12876 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 17. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an agreement, by and
between the City of Lubbock, the United States Department of Justice, and the United States Drug
Enforcement Administration, for participation in the FY 2025 Program-Funded State and Local Task
Force Agreement - Task Force Group (Lubbock) and any associated documents, including an Asset
Sharing Agreement, to disrupt illicit drug traffic in the Lubbock area.

Item Summary
Trafficking in narcotics and dangerous drugs in the Lubbock area has a substantial and detrimental effect
on the health and general welfare of Lubbock citizens.  Participation with the United States Drug
Enforcement Administration (DEA), as part of a task force, is effective in combating the problem. 

The Lubbock Police Department (LPD) participation in a Task Force with the U.S. DEA Lubbock
Resident Office, will include the following activities and duties:
 
a. Disrupt the illicit drug traffic in the Lubbock area by immobilizing targeted violators and trafficking
organizations;
b. Gather and report intelligence data relating to trafficking in narcotics and dangerous drugs; and
c. Conduct undercover operations where appropriate and engage in other traditional methods of
investigation in order that the Task Force’s activities will result in effective prosecution before the courts
of the United States and the State of Texas.

LPD will detail 3 experienced officers to the Task Force for not less than 2 years. These officers will be
under direct supervision and control of DEA supervisory personnel assigned to the Task Force.  DEA
will assign 5 Special Agents to the Task Force.  DEA will provide necessary funds and equipment to
support the activities of the DEA Special Agents and officers assigned to the Task Force.  This support
will include office space, office supplies, travel funds, funds for the purchase of evidence and
information, investigative equipment, training, and other support items.

The Department of Justice (DOJ) will receive a minimum of 20% of awarded assets as a result of Task
Force investigations.  Up to 80% of the remainder is subject to equitable sharing among the participating
agencies based on the number of officers assigned to the DEA Task Force Group (Lubbock) at the time
of the seizure.

Upon approval, the term of the agreement will be in effect until September 30, 2026.

Fiscal Impact
LPD will remain responsible for the salary and benefits including overtime of the officers assigned to



LPD will remain responsible for the salary and benefits including overtime of the officers assigned to
the Task Force. The DEA will, subject to availability of funds, reimburse LPD for overtime payments
made to its officers assigned to the Task Force, capped at the equivalent of 25% of a GS-12, Step 1, of
the general pay scale for the rest of the United States, per officer.

Staff/Board Recommending
Seth Herman, Chief of Police 

Attachments
Resolution - DEA Task Force Agmt. 
Agreement - DEA Task Force 









 AI# 12890 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 18. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Memorandum of
Understanding with the Children’s Advocacy Center of the South Plains, for coordination of joint
investigations involving child abuse.

Item Summary
Pursuant to the provisions of Texas Family Code, Title 5, Chapter 264, Subchapter E, the
Interagency Agreement defines the scope and extent of the City’s participation, along with other
Lubbock County entities and agencies, in a county-wide collaborative effort to promote child welfare
services.  A team approach among participating entities and the establishment and maintenance of
child-friendly environments are emphasized.  Specific roles for participating entities are defined to
minimize the trauma and other negative effects on children who are often associated with child abuse,
and to assist in the joint investigations of such abuse.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Seth Herman, Chief of Police

Attachments
Resolution - Crimes Against Children MOU 
MOU - Crimes Against Children 
Multidisciplinary Team Working Protocols 























































































































 AI# 12900 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 19. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Memorandum of
Understanding for Law Enforcement Services, by and between the City of Lubbock and the Lubbock
Independent School District, to outline communication and coordination efforts between the department
and the agency, according to Texas Education Code, Section 37.081 (g).

Item Summary
The Texas Education Code, Section 37.081 (g), requires school district police departments and the law
enforcement agencies with which it has overlapping jurisdiction, to enter into a Memorandum of
Understanding that outlines reasonable communication and coordination efforts between the
departments and the agencies.  This Memorandum of Understanding meets the requirements of this
statute.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Seth Herman, Chief of Police

Attachments
Resolution-LISD for Law Enforcement Services 
MOU - LISD for Law Enforcement Services 
Appendix A-Data and Communication Services 
Appendix B-TLETS/NLETS/TCIC/NCIC Crime Records Services 
Appendix C-Police Property Room Services 





























 AI# 12902 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 20. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0131, for Zone Case
2161-M, a request of HFA for Lubbock Commercial Buildings, for a zone change from Neighborhood
Commercial District (NC) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 2731 82nd Street, located south
of 82nd Street and east of Elgin Avenue, on approximately 1.25 acres of unplatted land out of Block E-2,
Section 13.

Item Summary
On September 24, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance, unanimously.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 5, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 7-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
 None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 2161-M 
Staff Report 2161-M 
Documentation 2161-M 







Exhibit "A"





Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report  Zone Case 2161-M 
City Council Meeting September 24, 2024 

 

Applicant HFA   

 

Property Owner  Lubbock Commercial Buildings 

 

Council District   4 

 

Recommendations   

 Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

 September 11, 1958, Ordinance No. 2535: The northern portion of the subject property was annexed 
into City limits. 

 June 11, 1959, Zone Case, 769, Ordinance No. 2813: The northern portion of the subject property was 
zoned Single Family District (R-1). 

 October 28, 1971, Ordinance No. 6201: The remainder of the subject property was annexed into City 
limits and zoned Single-Family District (R-1). 

 May 8, 1986, Zone Case 2161-B, Ordinance No. 8917: The subject property was rezoned from R-1 to 
Local Retail District (C-2). 

 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 

from C-2 to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) with the adoption of the Unified Development 

Code. 

 September 5, 2024, Zone Case 2161-M: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of 

a zone change from NC to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), by a vote of 7-0-0. 

Notification Summary   

 Notifications Sent: 87 

 Received In Favor: 0 

 Received In Opposition: 2 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property is currently vacant undeveloped land.  

 

Adjacent Property Development  

Properties to the north, east, and west are zoned for a mix of NC and Office District (OF) land uses. The eastern 

property is developed with a fast food restaurant, while the properties to the west and north feature various 

office spaces. To the south, the area is zoned Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) and is developed with 

single-family homes. 

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed at 2731 82nd street, located south of 82nd Street and east of Elgin Avenue. The 

applicant requests a zone change from Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) to Auto-Urban Commercial District 

(AC).   

 

Current zoning:  Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) 

 

Requested zoning:  Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Intent Statements 
The purpose of the Neighborhood Commercial (NC) zoning district is “to provide for small-scale retail and 

moderate density residential uses located away from major intersections (nodes), with building and site design 

standards that are compatible and have adjacent residential uses.” 

The intent of the proposed Auto-Urban Commercial (AC) zoning district is “to provide for a broad range of 

single-use and multi-tenant centers that vary in scale, and that provide for retail, service, and office uses 

typically with on-site surface parking. The district may be located along major thoroughfares or at nodes with 

increased intensity.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed zone change is along 82nd Street. The Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018 designates 82nd Street as a 

principal arterial. Arterial streets are continuous routes whose function is to serve the high-volume needs of local 

traffic and regional traffic.   

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.   

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for “Commercial Uses”. The proposed zone change to AC would be 

in conformance with the Commercial designation. This request would be appropriate next to adjacent lower 

intensity commercial land uses, and fronting an Arterial Street.    

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The properties are located along an 

arterial, and the requested zoning district is appropriate adjacent to the nearby commercial land uses. 

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed use and will not need any additional public improvements.   

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Future Land Use Map 

G. Photos 

H. Application and supporting documentation 

I. Notification Replies 

 

Staff Contacts 

Cassie Bermea     Victor Escamilla 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2096    806-775-3029 

cassiebermea@mylubbock.us    vescamilla@mylubbock.us  

mailto:cassiebermea@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2161-M 

 

Allowable Uses:    Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has a point of access from 82nd Street.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

82nd Street, 
Principal Arterial, 

Completed  

R.O.W. 90 feet, seven-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 62 feet, seven-lane, 
undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 4 

3.2 Zone Case 2161-M: HFA for Lubbock Commercial Buildings, request for a zone change from 

Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at:  

 2731 82nd Street, located south of 82nd Street and east of Elgin Avenue, on approximately 

1.25 acres of unplatted land out of Block E-2, Section 13. 

PLANNER CASSIE BERMEA gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff 

recommended approval of the request. 

APPLICANT HAYDEN BOCCHI, 1705 S Walton Boulevard, in Bentonville, Arkansas, was available for questions. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 2161-M, a motion was made by JORDAN WHEATLEY and seconded by TERRI MORRIS 

to approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 7 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx?secid=580&keywords=auto-urban%2Cauto%27s%2Cautoed%2Cautoes%2Cautoing%2Cautos%2Cautos%27%2Cauto%2Curban%2Ccommercial%27s%2Ccommercials%2Ccommercials%27%2Ccommercial#secid-580












2161-M

South View –Subject PropertyNorth View.

East View.West View.











 

HFA-AE, Ltd.    
www.hfa-ae.com  Page 1 of 1 

 

 
July 31, 2024  
 
City of Lubbock, TX 
 
RE:  Rezone Request   
 Valvoline Instant Oil Change  
 7231 82nd Street  
 
 
Dear City of Lubbock,   
 
On behalf of Valvoline Instant Oil Change, interested in developing the 1.25-acre site at 2731 82nd Street with a two-bay oil change 
facility, we are requesting a Rezone from NC (Neighborhood Commercial), to AC (Auto-Urban Commercial). We hope to develop this 
site with minor automotive repair to allow Valvoline Instant Oil Change to operate. Please see our included site plan and building 
elevations which show how we would propose to develop this site if this request is approved.  
 
Valvoline Instant Oil Change has a business model where customers remain in their vehicles while minor automotive repair services 
are performed, usually taking 15-20 minutes per vehicle. No major repair services will be offered. The business model for Valvoline is 
such that vehicles enter the bay for their services. The services are completed through the basement component of the building. 
Additional vehicles await service in the stacking spaces behind the bays.  
 
We believe Valvoline will provide a valuable service to the residents of Lubbock, TX, and the aesthetics of our building will suit the 
area well. Additionally, we also believe our business model to be above the standard auto shop in that no vehicles remain on site for 
extended periods of time, as Valvoline is a low traffic producer due to our services.  
 
If our request is approved, Valvoline and HFA will work together to create a formal plan submittal adhering to the City of Lubbock 
code.  
 
If additional information is needed, or if questions arise associated with this request or Valvoline business operations, please contact 
me.   
 
Sincerely,  
 
Kelsey Kreher 
Team Lead 
HFA 
479.273.7780 ext. 355 
kelsey.kreher@hfa-ae.com 









 AI# 12903 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 21. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0132, for Zone Case
3267-A, a request of Spindlebock Properties, LLC for a zone change from Neighborhood Commercial
District (NC) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 3202, 3204, 3206, 3208, 3210, and 3212
118th Street and 3215, and 3217 116th Street, located between 116th Street and 118th Street and east of
Indiana Avenue, Triple C Business Park Addition, Tracts A through H.

Item Summary
On September 24, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance, unanimously.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of this request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on September 5, 2024, and recommended approval of the request by a
unanimous vote of 7-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3267-A 
Staff Report 3267-A 
Documentation 3267-A 







Page 1 of 2 
 

 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

 

Staff Report Zone Case 3267-A 
City Council Meeting September 24, 2024 

 

Applicant Spindlebock Properties, LLC 
 

Property Owner Taylor Carmona 
 

Council District 4 

 
Recommendations 

 Staff recommends approval of the request. 

 
Prior Board or Council Action 

 December 7, 2006, Ordinance No. O0121: The subject properties were annexed into City limits and 
zoned Transition District (T). 

 December 17, 2015, Zone Case 3267, Ordinance No. O0127: The subject properties were rezoned from T 
to Local Retail District (C-2). 

 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject properties were 
rezoned from C-2 to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) with the adoption of the Unified 
Development Code. 

 August 1, 2024, Zone Case 3267-A: The Planning and Zoning Commission voted to postpone a request to 
rezone the subject property from NC to Heavy Commercial District (HC) to September 5, 2024 by a vote 
of 8-0-0. 

 September 5, 2024, Zone Case 3267-A: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

zone change from NC to HC, by a vote of 7-0-0. 

Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 25 

 Received In Favor: 3 

 Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 

The subject properties were originally platted as Triple C Business Park Addition, Tracts A through H on May 21, 
2024. The property is currently undeveloped, vacant land.  

 
Adjacent Property Development 

The properties to the north and south are zoned with a combination of HC, NC and Low Density Single-Family 
District (SF-2). To the east, there is a mini self-storage facility zoned HC. The property to the west is zoned SF-
2, built with a church. 

 

Item Summary 

The subject properties are addressed as 3202, 3204, 3206, 3208, 3210, and 3212 118th Street and 3215, and 3217 

116th Street, located between 116th Street and 118th Street, and east of Indiana Avenue, Triple C Business Park 

Addition, Tracts A through H. The applicant is requesting to rezone the properties from Neighborhood 

Commercial District (NC) to Heavy Commercial District (HC).    

 
Current zoning: Neighborhood Commercial District (NC)  

 
Requested zoning: Heavy Commercial District (HC) 

 
  



Page 2 of 2 
 

Purpose Statements 
The purpose of the Neighborhood Commercial (NC) zoning district “is to provide for small-scale retail and 
moderate density residential uses located away from major intersections (nodes), with building and site design 
standards that are compatible and have adjacent residential uses.”  
 
The purpose of the Heavy Commercial (HC) zoning district “is to provide or development of heavy vehicle repair, 
wholesale trade, warehousing and freight movement uses that typically are characterized by outside storage of 
materials or merchandise. The district should be located away from residential areas or, if unavoidable, should 
be heavily buffered.”  
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The location is between 116th Street and 118th Street, which are designated as local streets by the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Local streets typically provide access to smaller, destination oriented areas, such as 
neighborhoods, subdivisions or local business districts.  

 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The subject properties are surrounded by commercially zoned districts. The zoning change to Heavy Commercial 

District (HC) will not change the surrounding area or the character of the existing development.     

 

Conformance with the Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The future land use map designates this property for commercial land uses. The proposed zone change to HC 

would be in conformance with the Future Land Use Plan and the Comprehensive Plan Principles.  

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed zoning of HC, and will not need any additional public improvements as 
the property has recently been platted.  

 
Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Map 

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Future Land Use Map 

G. Photos 

H. Application and supporting documentation 

I. Notification Replies 

 
Staff Contacts 

Cassie Bermea Victor Escamilla 

Planner Planning and Zoning Manager  

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-2096 806-775-3029 

cassiebermea@mylubbock.us vescamilla@mylubbock.us 

  
 
 
 
 

mailto:cassiebermea@mylubbock.us
mailto:vescamilla@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3267-A 

 

Allowable Uses:    Heavy Commercial District (HC) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from 116th Street and 118th 

Street.    

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

116th Street, 
Local Street, 
Completed  

R.O.W. 62 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 62 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

118th Street, 
Local Street, 
Completed 

R.O.W. 62 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 62 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved    

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.  

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 4 

3.4 Zone Case 3267-A: Spindlebock Properties, LLC, request for a zone change from Neighborhood 

Commercial District (NC) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at:  

 3202, 3204, 3206, 3208, 3210, and 3212 118th Street and 3215, and 3217 116th Street, 

located between 116th Street and 118th Street and east of Indiana Avenue, Triple C Business 

Park Addition, Tracts A through H. 

PLANNER CASSIE BERMEA gave a presentation and answered questions from the Commission. Staff 

recommended approval of the request. 

APPLICANT TAYLOR CARMONA, 6309 Indiana Avenue, Suite B, gave comments and answered questions from the 

Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3267-A, a motion was made by ZACH SAWYER and seconded by JORDAN WHEATLEY 

to approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 7 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx?secid=1620&keywords=heavied%2Cheavies%2Cheavies%27%2Cheavy%27s%2Cheavying%2Cheavy%2Ccommercial%27s%2Ccommercials%2Ccommercials%27%2Ccommercial#secid-1620












3267-A

East View.

North View. South View from 116th Street of all Subject Properties.

West View.

















 AI# 12889 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 1. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance Single Reading - Finance: Consider an ordinance providing for the issuance of City of
Lubbock, Texas, General Obligation Refunding Bonds, not to exceed $50,000,000, in one or more series,
of current outstanding bond issuances with the refunding candidates being General Obligation
Refunding Bonds, Series 2014, Tax and Waterworks System Surplus Revenue Certificates of Obligation,
Series 2015, General Obligation Refunding, Series 2015 and General Obligation Refunding Bonds,
Taxable Series 2015; levying a tax in payment thereof; providing for the award of the sale thereof in
accordance with specified parameters; approving an official statement; approving execution of a
purchase contract; and enacting other provisions relating thereto.

Item Summary
The City’s bonds are hereby authorized to be issued and delivered in accordance with the Constitution
and laws of the State of Texas, including specifically Chapter 1207, Chapter 1371, and Article VIII of
the City’s Home-Rule Charter.  The bonds may be issued, from time to time, in one or more series, on
the dates and in the aggregate principal amount designated in the Pricing Certificate, for the purpose of
(i) refunding the Refunded Obligations and (ii) paying the costs of issuing the Bonds and refunding the
Refunded Obligations.

Current outstanding bond issuances that are refunding candidates are: 
1. General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014;
2. Tax and Waterworks System Surplus Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2015;
3. General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015; and
4. General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2015.

Fiscal Impact
The aggregate principal amount of all Bonds issued pursuant to this ordinance shall not exceed
$50,000,000.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Ordinance - 2024 GO Refunding 



























































































 AI# 12895 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 2. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance Single Reading - Finance: Consider an ordinance providing for the issuance of City of
Lubbock, Texas, Water and Wastewater System Revenue Refunding Bonds not to exceed $65,000,000,
in one or more series, of current outstanding bond issuances with the refunding candidates being the
General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014, Tax and Waterworks System Surplus Revenue
Certificates of Obligation, Series 2015, and General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015; providing
for the award of the sale thereof in accordance with specified parameters; approving an official
statement; approving execution of a purchase contract; and enacting other provisions relating thereto.

Item Summary
The City’s bonds are hereby authorized to be issued and delivered in accordance with the Constitution
and laws of the State of Texas, including specifically Chapter 1207, Chapter 1371, and Article VIII of
the City’s Home-Rule Charter. The bonds may be issued, from time to time, in one or more series, on the
dates and in the aggregate principal amount designated in the Pricing Certificate, for the purpose of:
(i) payment of professional services of attorneys, financial advisors, engineers, and other professionals in
connection with the Project and the issuance of the Certificates;
(ii) refunding the Refunded Obligations; and
(iii) paying the costs of issuing the Bonds and refunding the Refunded Obligations.

Current outstanding bond issuances that are refunding candidates are: 
1. General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014;
2. Tax and Waterworks System Surplus Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2015; AND,
3. General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015.

Fiscal Impact
The aggregate principal amount of all Bonds issued pursuant to this ordinance shall not exceed
$65,000,000.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
2024 WWW Refunding Ordinance 



























































































































 AI# 12896 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 3. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution authorizing the defeasance and redemption of Lubbock
Preston Smith International Airport's outstanding General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2019A;
approving and authorizing the execution of an escrow agreement; and resolving other matters incident
and related thereto.

Item Summary
The Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport (LPSIA) is requesting to prepay the remaining Airport
Fund allocation of the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2019A. 

LPSIA originally allocated these funds for boilers that are now failing.

Fiscal Impact
Upon the regular debt principal and interest payment of $77,572 for the Lubbock Preston Smith
International Airport portion of the 2019A General Obligation Refunding Bonds, the Airport will pay an
additional principal amount of $515,000 and an interest amount not to exceed $44,631.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution - LPSIA 2019A GO Ref Defeasance 















 AI# 12897 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 4. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution authorizing the redemption of Lubbock Preston Smith
International Airport's portion of the 2015 General Obligation Refunding Bonds.

Item Summary
The Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport (LPSIA) is requesting the redemption of the remaining
Airport Fund allocation of the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2015.

Fiscal Impact
Upon the regular debt principal and interest payment of $28,625 for the Lubbock Preston Smith
International Airport portion of the 2015 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, the Airport will pay an
additional principal amount of $60,000 and an interest amount not to exceed $3,000, for the
remaining FY26 and FY27 outstanding bond serials.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution - LPSIA 2015 GO Ref Redemption 

















 AI# 12898 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 5. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution expressing intent to finance expenditures to be incurred in
the General Fund, Internal Service Fund, Airport fund and Water/Wastewater Fund for various capital
projects and equipment approved by the City Council in the Fiscal Year 2024-25 Operating Budget and
Capital Program, and to reimburse the City from the proceeds of obligations that will be issued after the
expenditure of funds to pay costs of such projects and equipment.

Item Summary
The City will issue bonds during Fiscal Year 2024-25 to fund projects that the City Council approved in
the FY 2024-25 Capital Program. To allow capital projects to be completed within prescribed
timeframes, the design, engineering, and construction costs may be incurred prior to delivery of the bond
proceeds. For the costs to be eligible for reimbursement with bond proceeds, the City must declare its
intent to reimburse bond-funded costs that are incurred prior to the bond issuance.

Total cost of $120,234,447 is divided into 4 categories: 
General Fund is $45,300,000.
Internal Service Fund is $8,558,447.
Airport Fund is $5,600,000.
Water/Wastewater Fund is $60,776,000

The annual debt service is budgeted through the annual operating budget process and is included in
long-term financial planning and rate models. The annual payments are made from the annual revenues
of the respective Enterprise and Governmental Funds where the projects are incurred.

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of projects funded is $120,234,447, and the maximum principal amount of obligations to
be issued will not exceed $135,000,000.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution - 24-25 Reimbursement 









 AI# 12899 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 6. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution authorizing publication of Notice of Intent to issue City of
Lubbock, Texas, Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bonds, not to exceed $66,000,000 for the
following projects: Lake 7 Design and Land Acquisition, West Lubbock Water System Expansion,
Pump Station 11B, East 50th Street Water Line Extension, Southwest Lubbock Sanitary Sewer
Expansion and SEWRP Plant #4 Primary Clarifier Rehabilitation.

Item Summary
The Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bonds (the "Bonds") are being issued for the following
purposes: 

Paying the costs of acquiring, purchasing, constructing, improving, renovating, enlarging and
equipping property, buildings, structures, facilities and related infrastructure for the System;

1.

Funding capitalized interest on the Bonds;2.
Funding the reserve fund requirement for the Bonds; and,3.
Paying the costs of issuing the Bonds.4.

Specifically, the Bonds are designated to fund the following projects: 

Lake 7 Design and Land Acquisition1.
West Lubbock Water System Expansion2.
Pump Station 11B3.
East 50th Street Water Line Extension4.
Southwest Lubbock Sanitary Sewer Expansion5.
SEWRP Plant #4 Primary Clarifier Rehabilitation6.

Fiscal Impact
The total amount of the Project costs financed with the Revenue Bonds will not exceed the $66,000,000
total principal amount of one or more series of Water and Wastewater System Revenue Bonds. The
annual debt service payments for the Bonds are budgeted through the annual operating budget process
and are included in long-term financial planning and rate models. The annual payments are made from
all or part of the net revenues of the City's Water and Wastewater System.

Staff/Board Recommending
Cheryl Brock, Interim Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Resolution - 2025 WWW Notice of Intent 









 AI# 12907 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 7. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Consider a resolution authorizing the redemption of the
outstanding Series 2015 Electrical Light and Power Systems Revenue Bonds.

Item Summary
The Electric Light and Power System Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 (“Bonds”), were issued for the
purposes of (i) acquiring, purchasing, constructing, improving, renovating, enlarging and/or equipping
property, buildings, structures, facilities, and/or related infrastructure for Lubbock Power & Light
(LP&L).
 
The preliminary plan of finance contemplates that the outstanding bonds maturing on April 15, 2026, in
the years 2026 through 2035 can be called and redeemed on April 15, 2025. The redemption of the
Series 2015 Bond based on its 10-Year callable period, in the amount of $7,660,000, would provide
$2.1M in future interest costs at 5% for the remaining life of the Bond.  The reserve funds used to
redeem this bond are expected to be earning a rate less than 5% in interest.

Fiscal Impact
The $7,660,000 redemption will be paid out of reserve funds with savings of $2,097,000 in future
interest costs

Staff/Board Recommending
Joel Ivy, Director of Electric Utilities
Electric Utility Board

Attachments
Resolution - Redemption of Revenue Bond - CC 
Resolution - EUB 























 AI# 12877 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 8. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Airport Board, Animal Services
Advisory Board, Capital Improvements Advisory Committee, Health/Educational Facilities
Development Corporation Board, Keep Lubbock Beautiful Advisory Committee, Lubbock Economic
Development Alliance, Inc. Board of Directors, Lubbock Emergency Communications District Board of
Managers, Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors, Model Codes & Construction Advisory Board,
Planning & Zoning Commission, Veterans Advisory Committee, and the Zoning Board of Adjustment.

Item Summary
Consider appointments to the Airport Board, Animal Services Advisory Board, Capital Improvements
Advisory Committee, Health/Educational Facilities Development Corporation Board, Keep Lubbock
Beautiful Advisory Committee, Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Inc. Board of Directors,
Lubbock Emergency Communications District Board of Managers, Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of
Directors, Model Codes & Construction Advisory Board, Planning & Zoning Commission, Veterans
Advisory Committee, and the Zoning Board of Adjustment.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 12881 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 9. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Electric Utility Board.

Item Summary
Consider appointments to the Electric Utility Board.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



 AI# 12909 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 10. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Planning: Consider and take action on the City of Lubbock Planning and
Zoning Commission's final report of October 3, 2024, to the Lubbock City Council, on proposed
amendments to the Unified Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054) recommended for
adoption, limited to the following:

1. Section 39.03.015.e – Ground cover Requirements
2. Table 39.03.016-2 – Bufferyard Classifications and Division 3.4 Trees, Landscaping, and Buffering
3. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System
4. Section 39.10.002 Definitions
5. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System
6. Section 39.03.019.a.6.B - Installation & Maintenance
7. Section 39.10.002 - Definitions
8. Appendix A Plant List and Chapter 39 – Unified Development Code
9. Section 39.03.019.a.2 – Installation and Maintenance
10. Section 39.03.016.e.1 – Bufferyard Standards
11. Section 39.03.014.b General Provisions and Table 39.03.014-1 Required Landscaping Types
Summary
12. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System
13. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System
14. Section 39.03.016.e.3.B – Parking Bufferyard Standards
15. Section 39.03.019.e.6 - Installation and Maintenance
16. Table 39.03.014-1 – Required Landscaping Types Summary
17. Table 39.03.015-1 – Landscape Points System
18. Table 39.03.015-1 – Landscape Points System - Other
19. Section 39.03.016.e.4 – Street Bufferyard
20. Table 39.03.016-3 – Street Bufferyard Requirements
21. Section 39.03.016.e.3.A – Parking Bufferyard Standards
22. Section 39.03.016.e.3.B.i – Parking Bufferyard Standards - Composition
23. Section 39.03.019.d.6 - Installation and Maintenance
24. Section 39.03.015 – Development Landscaping
25. Section 39.03.015 – Development Landscaping
26. Figure 39.03.015-2 – Illustrative Parking Lot Planting Requirements
27. Section 39.03.016.d.1 - Composition of Bufferyards
28. Table 39.03.016-1 – District Bufferyard Standards

Item Summary
The Planning and Zoning Commission (PZC) and City Council held a joint public hearing on September



The Planning and Zoning Commission (PZC) and City Council held a joint public hearing on September
26, 2024, to discuss amending the Unified Development Code (Ordinance No. 2023-O0054). 

The attached amendments were presented by staff at the joint hearing. The Planning and Zoning
Commission (PZC) will make a recommendation on the amendments at their regular meeting on
Thursday, October 3, 2024.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance - UDC Landscape Amendments 
Proposed UDC Landscape Amendments 









Staff Proposed Amendments to Landscaping and Bufferyards 

 

1. Section 39.03.015.e – Groundcover Requirements    

 

a. Current Language: Groundcover Requirements. Eligible groundcover area shall not include concrete, 

asphalt, or other impervious surfaces, with the exception of xeriscape groundcover, rocks, decorative 

pavers, or stamped, dyed concrete which may be used only within the first one and one-half feet of the 

parking island to allow persons to access their vehicle without stepping on landscaping. The height of 

the groundcover plant species chosen shall not interfere with the triangle established in 

Section 39.02.022, Measurements, along access drives or anywhere throughout the parking lot. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Groundcover Requirements. Eligible groundcover area shall not include concrete, 

asphalt, or other impervious surfaces., with the exception of x Xeriscape groundcover, rocks 

(gravel), decorative pavers, or stamped, dyed concrete which may be used, provided there are a 

minimum of 5 live plants planted within the groundcover area, for every 100 square feet of the 

groundcover area only within the first one and one-half feet of the parking island to allow persons to 

access their vehicle without stepping on landscaping. The height of the groundcover plant species 

chosen shall not interfere with the triangle established in Section 39.02.022, Measurements, along 

access drives or anywhere throughout the parking lot.  

 

 

2. Table 39.03.016-2 – Bufferyard Classifications and Division 3.4 Trees, Landscaping, and Buffering 

 

a. Proposed Revision: Remove all references to shrubs and Natural Bufferyards.  

 

b. Add:  

i. When a District Bufferyard is required along the rear property line, a minimum 7 foot tall solid 

masonry fence meeting the regulations in Section 39.03.016.e., may be installed along the rear 

property line, in lieu of the landscape bufferyard. 

 

ii. When a District Bufferyard is required along the rear property line adjacent to an alley, either a 

minimum 7 foot tall solid masonry fence meeting the regulations in Section 39.03.016.e., or the 

required landscape bufferyard with a minimum 7 foot tall solid wood fence, must be installed 

along the rear property line. 

 

c. Change the berm width from 34’ to 18’ on Type A. 

d. Change the berm width from 34’ to 26’ on Type B. 

e. Change the number of Ornamental Trees per 100 Linear Feet from 4 to 3 on Type C. 

f. Change the number of Canopy Trees per 100 Linear Feet from 4 to 3 on Type D. 

g. Change the number of Ornamental Trees per 100 Linear Feet from 6 to 3 on Type D. 

h. Amend Figure 39.03.016-1 Bufferyard Examples to only show the one bufferyard example for each of 

the four types. 

i. On Type D change Structural to Without Berm: 30 

j. On Height of Wall or Fence change from 6 to 7 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-604
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-604


 

 

3. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System 

 

a. Proposed Revision: Change “One canopy or two ornamental trees per 1,000 square feet to 2,000 square 

feet.” Change “Six shrubs per 1,000 square feet to 2,000 square feet. ” 

 

 

 

4. Section 39.10.002 Definitions 

 

a. Current Language: Groundcover means plants of species that will not generally reach a height of more 

than two feet, installed in such a manner as to form a continuous cover over the ground.  Groundcover 

includes sod, ornamental grasses, mulch, or perennial or seasonal plantings and are listed as a 

Groundcover in Appendix A, Plant List. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Groundcover means plants of species that will not generally reach a height of more 

than two feet, installed in such a manner as to form a continuous cover over the ground.  Groundcover 

includes sod, ornamental grasses, mulch, or perennial or seasonal plantings and are listed as a 

Groundcover in Appendix A, Plant List. Xeriscape groundcover, where a minimum of 5 live plants are 

planted within the groundcover area, for every 100 square feet of the groundcover area, is included in 

this definition. 

 

18 

26 

3 

3 3 

7 

7 

7 

7 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-762
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-762


 

5. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System 

 

a. Proposed Revision: Replace this element with the proposal below: 

 

 

 

6. Section 39.03.019.a.6.B -  Installation & Maintenance 

 

a. Current Language: Two one-gallon shrubs are the equivalent of one three-gallon shrub. The minimum 

number of shrubs required per this Division is based on three-gallon shrubs. If one-gallon shrubs are 

used, the required number of shrubs shall increase to comply with the 2:1 ratio.    

 

 



b. Proposed Revision: Two one-gallon shrubs are the equivalent of one three-gallon shrub. The minimum 

number of shrubs required per this Division is based on three-gallon shrubs. If one-gallon shrubs are 

used, the required number of shrubs shall increase to comply with the 2:1 ratio.    

 

c. Change the minimum size for shrub from 3 gal. to 1 gal. 

 

7. Section 39.10.002 - Definitions 

 

a. Current Language: Canopy Tree means a tree exceeding 30 feet in height at maturity, planted for its 

high crown of foliage or overhead canopy and listed as a Canopy Tree in Appendix A, Plant List. 

 

b. Proposed Revision:  Canopy Tree means a tree whose canopy is a minimum of 20 feet in width 

exceeding 30 feet in height at maturity, planted for its high crown of foliage or overhead canopy and 

listed as a Canopy Tree in Appendix A, Plant List. 

 

c. Current Language: Ornamental Tree means a tree 30 feet or less in height at maturity, planted primarily 

for its ornamental value such as flowers, leaf color, size, or shape and listed as an Ornamental Tree in 

Appendix A, Plant List. 

 

d. Proposed Revision:  Ornamental Tree means a tree whose canopy is a minimum of 10 feet in width 30 

feet or less in height at maturity, planted primarily for its ornamental value such as flowers, leaf color, 

size, or shape and listed as an Ornamental Tree in Appendix A, Plant List. 

 

8. Appendix A Plant List and Chapter 39 – Unified Development Code 

 

a. Proposed Revision: Remove Appendix A in its entirety and all references to it within the UDC. 

 

 

9. Section 39.03.019.a.2 – Installation and Maintenance  

 

a. Current Language: Standards. Within each category of required landscaping (canopy trees, ornamental 

trees, evergreen trees, and shrubs): 

A. Not more than 60 percent shall be of any one genus; and 

B. Not more than 40 percent shall be of any one species. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Standards. Within each category of required landscaping (canopy trees, ornamental 

trees, evergreen trees, and shrubs): 

A. Not more than 60 percent shall be of any one genus; and 

B. Not more than 40 percent shall be of any one species. 

 

 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-762
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-762
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-762
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-762
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=940
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=940


10. Section 39.03.016.e.1 – Bufferyard Standards 

 

a. Proposed Revision: Generally. 

A. Voluntary Increase in Bufferyard.  Where a lower classification bufferyard is required, the 

applicant may voluntarily provide a higher classification bufferyard, in part or in whole. 

B. Groundcover Requirements.  In addition to the required plantings, walls, fences, and berms, the 

remaining portions of all bufferyards shall contain groundcover. 

C. Landscape Points for Bufferyard. Where a bufferyard is needed, correct location and 

composition of bufferyard shall result in +10 points towards the total number of landscape points 

required on a project. 

 

11. Section 39.03.014.b General Provisions and Table 39.03.014-1 Required Landscaping Types Summary 

 

a. Current Language: Required Landscaping Types. Table 39.03.014-1, Required Landscaping Types 

Summary, sets out the landscaping types eligible for points in each zoning district. Figure 39.03.014-

1, Illustrative Landscape Types, depicts these types. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Required Eligible Landscaping Types. Table 39.03.014-1, Required Landscaping 

Types Summary, sets out the landscaping types eligible for points in each zoning district. 

Figure 39.03.014-1, Illustrative Landscape Types, depicts these the landscaping types eligible for points. 

 

c. Proposed Revision: Delete Table 39.03.014-1 in its entirety and all references to it.  

 

12. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System 

 

a. Proposed Revision: Remove the following items 

 

 

13. Table 39.03.015-1 Landscape Points System 

 

a. Proposed Revision: Remove this item in its entirety 

https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/lubbock-tx/doc-view.aspx?pn=0&ajax=0&secid=1465


 

 

14. Section 39.03.016.e.3.B – Parking Bufferyard Standards 

 

a. Current Language: Composition. A parking area buffer shall be composed of one of the following 

screening devices that are two feet tall:   

 

b. Proposed Revision: Composition. A parking area buffer shall be composed of one any combination of 

the following screening devices that are two feet tall:   

 

15. Section 39.03.019.e.6 -  Installation and Maintenance  

 

a. Current Language: Maintenance Easement. In a multi-tenant development, a maintenance easement a 

minimum of five feet in width shall be dedicated to the homeowners' or property owners' association, 

PID, or TIF along applicable property lines within the development. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Maintenance Easement. In a multi-tenant development, a maintenance easement a 

minimum of five feet in width shall be dedicated to the homeowners' or property owners' association, 

PID, or TIF along applicable property lines within the development. 

 

 

16. Table 39.03.014-1 – Required Landscaping Types Summary 

 

a. Current Language: Bufferyards are required for new residential development that is developed using 

the Cluster subdivision option. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Remove this requirement. 

 

 

17. Table 39.03.015-1 – Landscape Points System 

 



a. Proposed Revision: Replace all Parking Lot Landscape Elements with one element: 

 

 

18. Table 39.03.015-1 – Landscape Points System - Other 

 

a. Proposed Revision: Remove this item: 

 

 

19. Section 39.03.016.e.4 – Street Bufferyard 

 

a. Current Language: Street Bufferyard. A street bufferyard shall be required for any new residential 

development that is developed using the Cluster subdivision option or any applicable development in 

the OF or AC zoning districts based on the classification of the adjacent street in the current City of 

Lubbock Master Thoroughfare Plan and according to Table 39.03.016-3, Street Bufferyard Requirements. 

The street bufferyard shall be located along the entire length of the street (except for alleys) and shall 

be owned and maintained by the property owner, homeowners' association, property owners' 

association, Public Improvement District (PID), or Tax Increment Finance District (TIF).  These buffers 

shall meet the requirements of the district bufferyard standards in composition.      

 

b. Proposed Revision: Street Bufferyard. A street bufferyard shall be required for any new residential 

development that is developed using the Cluster subdivision option or any applicable development in 

the OF or AC zoning districts based on the classification of the adjacent street in the current City of 

Lubbock Master Thoroughfare Plan and according to Table 39.03.016-3, Street Bufferyard Requirements. 

The street bufferyard shall be located along the entire length of the street (except for alleys) and shall 

be owned and maintained by the property owner, homeowners' association, property owners' 

https://ci.lubbock.tx.us/storage/images/efKby968P0G2df0opb2ELfUMSEwVTb3XZ88xA4s0.pdf
https://ci.lubbock.tx.us/storage/images/efKby968P0G2df0opb2ELfUMSEwVTb3XZ88xA4s0.pdf


association, Public Improvement District (PID), or Tax Increment Finance District (TIF).  These buffers 

shall meet the requirements of the district bufferyard standards in composition.      

 

20. Table 39.03.016-3 – Street Bufferyard Requirements  

 

a. Proposed Revision:  

 

 

21. Section 39.03.016.e.3.A – Parking Bufferyard Standards 

 

c. Current Language: Applicability. All parking areas with more than 10 parking spaces shall have a 

bufferyard between the street and the edge of the parking areas as follows:   

 

d. Proposed Revision: Applicability. All parking areas with more than 10 30 parking spaces between the 

building and the street shall have a bufferyard between the street and the edge of the parking areas as 

follows:   

 

 

22. Section 39.03.016.e.3.B.i – Parking Bufferyard Standards - Composition 

 

a. Current Language:  

i. Continuous hedge; 

ii. Continuous row of ornamental grasses; 

 

b. Proposed Revision:  

i. Continuous hedge; plant spacing at time of planting to provide continuous screening at time of 

plant maturity; 

ii. Continuous row of ornamental grasses; 

 

23. Section 39.03.019.d.6 -  Installation and Maintenance  

 

a. Current Language: Mulch and Inorganic Ground Cover. Wood-based mulch and inorganic ground cover, 

including rock and wood chips, may be used around all plantings and in all plant beds. Large areas of 

wood mulch or inorganic ground cover that do not contain plantings are not permitted except when 

used around a site amenity. Synthetic turf is prohibited except in limited applications deemed 

acceptable by the Director of Planning. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: Mulch and Inorganic Ground Cover. Wood-based mulch and inorganic ground cover, 

including rock and wood chips, may be used around all plantings and in all plant beds. Large areas of 

wood mulch or inorganic ground cover that do not contain plantings are not permitted except when 



used around a site amenity. Synthetic turf is allowed prohibited except in limited applications deemed 

acceptable by the Director of Planning. 

 

24. Section 39.03.015 – Development Landscaping 

 

a. Current Language: None. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: f. Contextual Landscape Requirement. Where an infill project is constructed on 

property zoned Industrial Park (IP), Light Industrial (LI), or General Industrial (GI) and the property is not 

adjacent to or across from any residentially zoned property, the infill site may match the landscape area 

coverage percentage and planting materials density on the average of those developed neighboring 

properties. 

 

25. Section 39.03.015 – Development Landscaping 

 

a. Current Language: None. 

 

b. Proposed Revision: f. Landscape Architect. When the landscape plan is stamped and sealed by a 

licensed landscape architect, it shall result in +5 points towards the total number of landscape points 

required on a project. 

 

26. Figure 39.03.015-2 – Illustrative Parking Lot Planting Requirements 

 

a. Proposed Revision: 

 

27. Section 39.03.016.d.1 - Composition of Bufferyards  

 

a. Proposed Revision: Delete the language below in its entirety 



 

 

28. Table 39.03.016-1 – District Bufferyard Standards 

 

a. Proposed Revisions:  

i. Move the IP district to the LI category 

ii. Move the MU-1 district to the MU-2 through MU-5 district 

iii. Remove the requirement for a Type B bufferyard when developing GI property adjacent to LI/IP 

iv. Remove the requirement for a Type A bufferyard when developing SF-1/SF-2 property adjacent 

to RE 

v. Remove the requirement for a Type A bufferyard when developing AC/HC adjacent to NC/OF 

 

 

MU-1 

LI, IP 

LI, IP 
MU-1 



 AI# 12784 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 11. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Public Works Water Utilities: Consider an ordinance amending Section
22.03.083 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, regarding deposit requirements and related
exceptions for utility service.

Item Summary
On February 2023, Lubbock Power and Light (LP&L) amended the electric rate schedule, terms and
conditions of customers, applicable to all rate classes.  This amendment removed deposits
being collected for utility service. On March 4, 2024, LP&L officially transitioned to retail electric
competition.  

In order to protect the City of Lubbock against the financial risk from customers that do not pay their
utility bill, or have no history with the City of Lubbock, Water Utilities is proposing amendments to the
Ordinance to collect deposits from new and at-risk water service customers. 

The proposed amendments would enable the City to charge deposits for the following conditions. 
Deposits are required to start new service or if a current customer is no longer in good standing
with an account.
Deposits can be exempt if conditions are met by customers.
Deposits are refunded by check or credited to eligible customers' account after 12 months of good
pay history including interest earned.

Fiscal Impact
The attached proposed ordinance does not include a rate increase for any rate class.  The proposed rates
allow for a $150 deposit for a residential customer and $550 for a non-residential customer.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, Division Director of Public Works
Lubbock Water Advisory Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 
RedLine Ordinance 
LWAC Recommendation Letter 

















  Page 1 of 7 

 

ORDINANCE NO._____________  
 
 AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 22.03.083 OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK REGARDING DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS 
FOR UTILITY SERVICE AND EXCEPTIONS THERETO; PROVIDING A PENALTY; 
PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH STATE LAW; AND PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lubbock deems it to be in the best interest 
of the citizens of the City of Lubbock to amend Section 22.03.083 of the code of ordinances 
of the city of Lubbock regarding deposit requirements for utility service and exceptions thereto; 
NOW THEREFORE: 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 
 
 SECTION 1.  THAT Section 22.03.083 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 
Lubbock is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

§ 22.03.083  Deposit required; exceptions. 
 
(a) The city shall require a deposit from any consumer of the city’s water 

system in order to obtain water service, in accordance with the following 
terms and conditions: 

 
(1) Water Utilities may require a deposit from a residential consumer in 

an amount equal to $ one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00), as 
determined by written policy of the Director of Water Utilities, 
except as provided herein. 

 
(2) A residential consumer may be exempt from the deposit requirement 

if any of the following conditions are met by the consumer: 
 

(A) The consumer provides proof to the satisfaction of 
City of Lubbock Utilities (COLU), that during the 
two years prior to applying for service from COLU, 
the consumer was a customer of one or more of the 
COLU services for at least twelve (12) consecutive 
months; and 

 
i) The consumer demonstrates adequate and 

available credit, to the satisfaction of COLU 
or,  

 



  Page 2 of 7 

 

ii) The consumer is at least sixty-five (65) years 
of age and has no outstanding account 
balance for COLU services  

 
(B) The consumer demonstrates adequate and available 

credit, to the satisfaction of COLU, by producing 
evidence of creditworthiness in the consumer’s name 
from a utility providing city service of whom the 
primary consumer was a customer during the two 
years prior to applying for Service from COLU, the 
consumer was a customer of a utility providing 
service, other than an energy provider for at least 
twelve (12) consecutive months; and 

 
i) While a customer, the consumer was not 

delinquent in paying for any utility service on 
more than one occasion; and while a 
customer, the consumer never had any of the 
utility services subject to interruption for 
nonpayment; or 
 

ii) The consumer demonstrates adequate and 
available credit, to the satisfaction of COLU, 
by producing evidence of creditworthiness in 
the consumer’s name from a utility providing 
city service of whom the primary consumer 
was a customer; or 

 
 

iii) The consumer is at least sixty-five (65) years 
of age and has no outstanding account 
balance for utility service(s) including COLU 
services that accrued within the last two 
years. 

 
(C)  The consumer has been determined to be a victim of 

family violence as defined in the Texas Family Code 
§71.004, by a family violence center as defined in 
Texas Human Resources Code § 51.002, by treating 
medical personnel, by law enforcement personnel, 
by the Office of a Texas District Attorney or County 
Attorney, by the Office of the Attorney General, or 
by a grantee of the Texas Equal Access to Justice 
Foundation. This determination shall be evidenced 
by submission of a certification letter developed by 



  Page 3 of 7 

 

the Texas Council on Family Violence. The 
certification letter may be submitted directly to 
COLU. 

 
(3) A residential consumer who is exempted from the deposit 

requirement under Section (a)(2) above may have the exemption 
withdrawn and a deposit applied to the account if the Customer is 
no longer able to demonstrate creditworthiness. Events that are 
considered in this determination include but are not limited to: 

 
(A) The consumer’s account for Services becomes delinquent 

and services are interrupted due to non-payment; 
 
(B) Payment for Services has been returned to City of Lubbock 

Utilities as a dishonored payment; 
 
(C) Tampering with COL Property, or theft of Service, has been 

found; or 
 
(D) The consumer fails to comply with the terms of any agreed 

payment plan and/or Payment Arrangement 
 
(4) Residential Deposit Refund. Consumers from whom a deposit has 

been collected shall be eligible for a refund of said deposit after the 
Customer has paid bills for Service for twelve (12) consecutive 
residential billings and during this twelve (12) month period, 
demonstrated creditworthiness as defined in Section B.  
 

(5) Non-Residential.  
 

(A) Water Utilities may require a deposit from the consumer for 
non-residential Service in an amount equal to $ five hundred 
fifty ($550).  

(B) A residential consumer that demonstrates sufficient 
creditworthiness, according to all other criteria herein, may 
stand in proxy for new businesses establishing utility service 
and can be exempted from the requirement for deposit if 
ownership of the business can be proven. Proof of ownership 
shall be in a form and manner as determined by COLU. 

(A)(C) (B) A consumer for non-residential Service shall be exempt 
from the deposit requirement if any of the following 
conditions are met by the consumer: 
i)  The consumer was during the two years prior to 

applying for service from COLU a customer of one 
or more of the COLU service, excluding energy 

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt

Formatted: Font: (Default) +Body (Calibri), 11 pt



  Page 4 of 7 

 

services, for at least twelve (12) consecutive 
months; and The consumer demonstrates adequate 
and available credit to the satisfaction of COLU.  

ii) The consumer demonstrates adequate and available 
credit, to the satisfaction of COLU, by producing 
evidence of creditworthiness in the consumer’s 
name from a utility providing services, excluding 
energy services, of whom the primary consumer 
was a customer.  

iii)  Additional forms of creditworthiness include Surety 
Bonds and Letter of Guarantee. of these mechanisms 
must guarantee payment to the utility in the event of 
the consumer’s default.  

iv) Deposits will not be required for service to or for the 
following: 

1.  Landlord transferring services to tenant 

2. Property Developer transferring services to 
home owner 

 
(C) A non-residential consumer who is exempted from the 

deposit requirement under Section B may have the 
exemption withdrawn and a deposit applied to the account if 
the consumer is no longer able to demonstrate 
creditworthiness. Events that are considered in this 
determination include but are not limited to: 

 
i)  The Customer’s account for Services become 

delinquent and the Customer’s Services are 
interrupted due to non-payment; 

ii)  Payment for Services has been returned to City of 
Lubbock Utilities as a dishonored payment; 

iii)  Tampering with COL Property, or theft of Service, 
has been found; or 

iv)  The Customer fails to comply with the terms of any 
agreed payment plan or payment arrangement. 

(6) Deposit Refunds 



  Page 5 of 7 

 

(A) Interest Payment to Depositor.  When the service is 
discontinued COLU shall return the deposit and any unpaid 
interest on the deposit to the depositor or the depositor’s 
heirs or legal representatives. COLU may deduct from the 
amount returned for any payments due for the services.   

(B) Refunds to eligible consumers shall be made promptly either 
in the form of a check payable to the consumer or as a credit 
to the consumer’s bill, as determined at the sole discretion of 
COLU. A consumer who received a refund of their deposit 
may have the deposit requirement reapplied if the consumer 
no longer demonstrates creditworthiness as defined in 
Section B.  

(C) COLU shall keep the following records for all deposits 
collected by COLU pursuant to this Section: 

i) The name and address of each depositor; 

ii) The amount and date of the deposit; and 

iii) Each transaction concerning the deposit. 

(D) Any deposit not previously refunded to consumer or credited 
to consumer’s account as provided herein shall be credited 
to consumer’s final bill for Service. 

(b)  The city shall require a deposit for portable meter accounts and related 
backflow prevention assembly used to obtain water from fire hydrants. If 
the meter and backflow prevention assembly are not returned in working 
order, or are otherwise damaged, or if the fire hydrant or water supply line 
to the fire hydrant are damaged, the customer shall pay for the cost of 
repair. If the customer does not pay for the cost of repair, the city shall use 
the deposit to pay for the cost of repair. Any portion of the deposit so used 
must be repaid to city by the customer before the customer can continue 
using water through the portable meter account. Deposits for portable 
meter accounts shall be as follows: 

(1)  The deposit for portable meter account and related backflow 

prevention assembly shall be: $2500.00. 

(2)  The deposit for a special event for a nonprofit, community or other 
non-construction and non-utility entity shall be $150.00 per day 
with a minimum of $300.00 for a small hose-end meter assembly. 



  Page 6 of 7 

 

(3)  No deposit fee shall be required by other city departments. 

(4)  Failure to report monthly non-Automated Metering Infrastructure 
(AMI) meter reads will result in a non-refundable $75.00 service fee 

and estimated volume usage charges will be applied.  

(5)  Unauthorized use charge of $1,000.00 assessed to any consumer or 
corporation found connected up to a fire hydrant without a valid and 
current fire hydrant meter contract and metering device issued by 
city. 

(c)  The consumer or the owner of property served must notify the COLU within 

five calendar days after the occurrence of: 

(A) Any change in ownership, whether by sale, foreclosure, business 
reorganization or otherwise; or 

(B) Any occupancy of previously vacant property; or 

(C) Any total vacancy in the property served; or 

(D) Any change of place of residence or business.  

(d)  Where no charge specified.  When charges for a service are not specified in 
this article, the city manager shall establish charges which are based on the 
cost of performing the services including, but not limited to, such services 
as the moving of meter locations, and repair to damaged facilities.  

 
 SECTION 2. THAT violation of any provision of this ordinance shall be deemed a 
misdemeanor punishable as provided by Section 1.01.004 of the Code of Ordinances of the 
City of Lubbock, Texas. 

 SECTION 3. THAT should any section, paragraph, sentence, phrase, clause or word of 
this Ordinance be declared unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, the remainder of this 
Ordinance shall not be affected thereby. 
 

SECTION 4. THAT the City Secretary of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and 
directed to cause publication of the descriptive caption of this Ordinance as an alternative 
method provided by law. 

AND IT IS SO ORDERED. 
 



  Page 7 of 7 

 

Passed by the City Council on first reading this ______________________________, 2023. 
 
Passed by the City Council on second reading this ____________________________, 2024.  
 
 

      
 TRAY PAYNE, MAYOR 
 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Courtney Paz, City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Greg Baier, P.E., Interim Director of Water Utilities  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Amy L. Sims, Deputy City Attorney 
 







 AI# 12904 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 12. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Wastewater Utility: Consider Ordinance No. 2024-O0133, amending the
City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances, Chapter 22, "UTILITIES", to provide for establishing new
definitions, delineating sewer line repair and maintenance responsibilities, amending the regulation for
City participation for large mains, and repealing certain inapplicable provisions. 

Item Summary
On September 24, 2024, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

City staff is recommending amendments to Chapter 22 of the City of Lubbock Code of Ordinances
based on discussions from budget work sessions related to the replacement of private sewer lateral lines
located within public right-of-way (Street or Alley). The proposed changes discussed during the budget
work sessions are as follows. 

City crews will perform the work.
The Property Owner will pay a standard cost to the City Water Department of $1,000 per repair.
A payment plan is available for owner-occupied properties. 

The payment plan cannot exceed 365 days or 12 monthly billing cycles.
An assistance program for low income residents will be developed by the City Staff.

The proposed ordinance addresses the changes referenced above, and authorizes staff to establish the
appropriate policies to support the program, as well as to establish an assistance program.

Fiscal Impact
$300,000 is appropriated in the FY 2024/2025 Budget for the establishment of an Assistance Program. 
Expenditures for the private sewer lateral repairs are funded by Capital Improvement Program (CIP)
92747 - Sewer Tap Replacements.
The sewer lateral repair cost of $1,000 paid for by the owner will cover the average material and labor
costs associated with each repair and will reimburse the expenditures in the CIP. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Sewer Lateral Ordinance 















 AI# 12905 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 13. 
10/08/2024:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Business Development: Hold a public hearing for the City Council to consider the
creation of a Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone for the North Park development area, whose boundaries
include approximately 332.8 acres of land in a portion of the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas,
generally bounded by Erskine Street to the north, North Winston Avenue to the east, West Loop 289 to
the south, and Frankford Avenue to the west. 
 

Item Summary
The purpose of this public hearing is to present information to the City Council regarding the
advisability of establishing a Tax Increment Financing (TIF) reinvestment zone pursuant to Chapter 311
of the Texas Tax Code, and to provide an opportunity for public comment in favor of, or in opposition
to, the creation of the district, its boundaries, or the concept of tax increment financing. The City
Council approved the calling of the Public Hearing at the September 24, 2024 City Council Meeting. A
notice of the Public Hearing was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on September 27, 2024,
as required by the Act. 

The proposed North Park TIF includes approximately 332.8 acres of land in a portion of the City of
Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, generally bounded by Erskine Street to the north, North Winston
Avenue to the east, West Loop 289 to the south, and Frankford Avenue to the west. The purpose of the
district is to facilitate development and / or redevelopment by financing the costs of public works, public
improvements, and other projects benefiting the district, as well as other costs incidental to those
expenditures. Section 311.005(a)(4) of the Tax Code states that an area is eligible to be designated as a
Tax Increment Financing reinvestment zone if it is:  

In an area described in a petition requesting that the area be designated as a reinvestment zone, if
the petition is submitted to the governing body of the City by the owners of property constituting at
least fifty percent (50%) of the appraised value of the property in the area according to the most
recent certified appraisal roll for the county in which the area is located. 

A petition has been received and verified as meeting the requirements by City of Lubbock staff. The
next step in the creation process will be for the City Council to adopt a Creation Ordinance, where they
will make the following findings:  

The petition has been submitted to the City by the owners of property constituting at least 50% of
the appraised value of Property within the Zone; 

1.

The improvements in the Zone will significantly enhance the value of all the taxable real property
in the Zone and will be of general benefit to the City; and

2.

That the Zone meets the requirements of Section 311.005 of the Act. 3.



 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director 

Attachments
TIF District Map 




	Agenda
	2.03.__Executive Session - Board Appts.
	5.01.__Minutes
	       ATT_8.30.2024 S EUB
	       ATT_9.10.2024
	6.01.__Reyes Settlement
	       ATT_Resolution - Compromise and Settlement Agreement
	       ATT_Reyes Settlement
	6.02.__Closure Easement Ranchland Terrace, Section 6, Block E-2
	       ATT_Ordinance - Ranchland Terrace,TrB
	       ATT_Easement Doc., V938, P451
	       ATT_Location Exhibit
	6.03.__ROW Deed & Drainage Easement - Erskine Street Parcel 5, Hunter
	       ATT_Resolution - Parcel 5 ROW Deed and Drainage Easement
	       ATT_Parcels 5A and 5B ROW Deed
	       ATT_Parcel 5 Drainage Easement
	       ATT_Parcels 5A and 5B ROW GIS Map
	       ATT_Parcel 5 Drainage Easement GIS Map
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Project Detail
	6.04.__Pump Station 11B Rebuild
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	       ATT_Location Exhibit
	       ATT_CIP Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Project Detail
	6.05.__Contract 18335 with Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. for Impact Fee Restudy
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract 18335
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	8685 CIP Detail
	8702 CIP Detail

	6.06.__STR - SHI Government Solutions for Deckard Software
	       ATT_Resolution - SHI Government Solutions
	       ATT_Purchase Order - SHI Government Solutions
	6.07.__ADA Transition Plan
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_AtkinsRealis Contract 17858 Amendment 1
	       ATT_AtkinsRealis Contract 17858 Amendment 1 Attachments A and B
	       ATT_AtkinsRealis Extension Contract 17858
	       ATT_AtkinsRealis Professional Services Agmt.
	       ATT_CIP Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP  Project Detail
	6.08.__HUD CDBG to COL
	       ATT_CDBG Resolution
	       ATT_Agreement 12871 pdf
	6.09.__HUD ESG to COL
	       ATT_ESG Resolution
	       ATT_Agreement - 12872 pdf
	6.10.__HUD HOME to COL
	       ATT_HOME Resolution
	       ATT_Agreement - 12873 pdf
	6.11.__LHA PILOT FY 2023
	       ATT_LHA PILOT Resolution
	       ATT_PILOT Computation
	6.12.__Amendment 19 RS&H, Inc. Runway Lights Replacement at LPSIA
	       ATT_Resolution Amendment 19 RSandH, Inc. Runway Light Replacement
	       ATT_Amendment 19 RSandH, Inc. Runway Light Replacement
	       ATT_CIP 92884 Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Project Detail
	6.13.__Amendment 5 Webber LLC
	       ATT_Resolution Amendment 5 Webber LLC
	       ATT_Amendment 5 Webber LLC
	6.14.__Resolution - Paradigm Traffic Systems PO
	       ATT_Resolution - Paradigm Traffic Systems
	       ATT_PO - Paradigm Traffic Systems 
	       ATT_Budget Detail 
	       ATT_CIP  ProjectDetail
	6.15.__Purchase Authorization for FY 2024-25 Vehicles on Replacement List
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_CIP 92863 Project Detail
	       ATT_CIP 92864 Project Detail
	6.16.__HIDA DEA Task Force Agreement
	       ATT_Resolution - HIDA DEA Task Force Agmt
	       ATT_Agreement - HIDA DEA Task Force
	6.17.__DEA Task Force Agreement
	       ATT_Resolution - DEA Task Force  Agmt.
	       ATT_Agreement - DEA Task Force
	6.18.__Crimes Against Children Interagency MOU
	       ATT_Resolution - Crimes Against Children MOU
	       ATT_MOU - Crimes Against Children
	       ATT_Multidisciplinary Team Working Protocols
	6.19.__MOU with LISD for Law Enforcement Services
	       ATT_Resolution-LISD for Law Enforcement Services
	       ATT_MOU - LISD for Law Enforcement Services
	       ATT_Appendix A-Data and Communication Services
	       ATT_Appendix B-TLETS_NLETS_TCIC_NCIC Crime Records Services
	       ATT_Appendix C-Police Property Room Services
	6.20.__ZC 2161-M
	       ATT_Ordinance 2161-M
	       ATT_Staff Report 2161-M
	       ATT_Documentation 2161-M
	Slide Pics.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	Elevations.pdf
	Sheets
	RE-1 - 2BAY FLAT ROOF - BRICK / EIFS          NO REAR TOWER
	RE-3 - 2BAY FLAT ROOF - BRICK / BRICK           NO REAR TOWER
	RE-2 - 2BAY FLAT ROOF - BRICK / EIFS          NO REAR TOWER
	RE-4 - 2BAY FLAT ROOF - BRICK / BRICK           NO REAR TOWER



	6.21.__ZC 3267-A
	       ATT_Ordinance 3267-A
	       ATT_Staff Report 3267-A
	       ATT_Documentation 3267-A
	Council District 4
	Prior Board or Council Action
	 December 7, 2006, Ordinance No. O0121: The subject properties were annexed into City limits and zoned Transition District (T).
	 December 17, 2015, Zone Case 3267, Ordinance No. O0127: The subject properties were rezoned from T to Local Retail District (C-2).
	 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject properties wwere rezoned from C-2 to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code.
	Notification Summary
	Site Conditions and History
	Adjacent Property Development
	Current zoning: Neighborhood Commercial District (NC)
	Attachments
	Staff Contacts
	Slide Pics.pdf
	Slide Number 1

	3267-A staff report-Cassie Updated_VE Edit SEPT.pdf
	Council District 4
	Prior Board or Council Action
	 December 7, 2006, Ordinance No. O0121: The subject properties were annexed into City limits and zoned Transition District (T).
	 December 17, 2015, Zone Case 3267, Ordinance No. O0127: The subject properties were rezoned from T to Local Retail District (C-2).
	 May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject properties were rezoned from C-2 to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code.
	 August 1, 2024, Zone Case 3267-A: The Planning and Zoning Commission voted to postpone a request to rezone the subject property from NC to Heavy Commercial District (HC) to September 5, 2024 by a vote of 8-0-0.
	Notification Summary
	Site Conditions and History
	Adjacent Property Development
	Current zoning: Neighborhood Commercial District (NC)
	Attachments
	Staff Contacts


	7.01.__General Obligation Refunding Bonds
	       ATT_Ordinance - 2024 GO Refunding
	7.02.__Water & Wastewater System Revenue Refunding Bonds
	       ATT_2024 WWW Refunding Ordinance
	7.03.__Redemption and Defeasance of LIPSA General Obligation Bonds
	       ATT_Resolution - LPSIA 2019A GO Ref Defeasance
	7.04.__Redemption of LIPSA General Obligation Bonds
	       ATT_Resolution - LPSIA 2015 GO Ref Redemption
	7.05.__Reimbursement Resolution
	       ATT_Resolution - 24-25 Reimbursement
	7.06.__Authorization for Publication of Notice of Intent - Issue W&WW System Revenue Bonds
	       ATT_Resolution - 2025 WWW Notice of Intent
	7.07.__Resolution - Redemption of Outatnding Series 2015 Electrical Light & Power Systems Revenue Bonds
	       ATT_Resolution - Redemption of Revenue Bond - CC
	       ATT_Resolution - EUB
	7.08.__Board Appointments
	7.09.__Board Appointments - EUB
	7.10.__Ordinance - UDC - Landscape Amendments
	       ATT_Ordinance - UDC Landscape Amendments
	       ATT_Proposed UDC Landscape Amendments
	7.11.__Water Utilities Security Deposit
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_RedLine Ordinance
	       ATT_LWAC Recommendation Letter
	7.12.__Chapter 22- Ordinance Update
	       ATT_Sewer Lateral Ordinance 
	7.13.__North Park TIF Public Hearing 
	       ATT_TIF District Map 

